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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Newell Rubbermaid is traded on the New York Stock Exchange 

under the symbol NWL. Additional copies of this annual report, 

Newell Rubbermaid’s Form 10-K and proxy statement fi led with 

the Securities and Exchange Commission, dividend reinvestment 

plan information, recent and historical financial data, and other 

information about Newell Rubbermaid are available without 

charge to interested stockholders upon request. 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

All requests and inquiries should be directed to:

Newell Rubbermaid Inc.

Investor Relations

3 Glenlake Parkway

Atlanta, GA 30328

(800) 424-1941

investor.relations@newellco.com

www.newellrubbermaid.com

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
The annual meeting of stockholders will be held on 

Tuesday, May 11, 2010, at 9:00 a.m. ET at: 

Newell Rubbermaid Inc.

Corporate Headquarters

3 Glenlake Parkway

Atlanta, Georgia 30328

Phone: (770) 418-7000

STOCKHOLDER ACCOUNT MAINTENANCE
Communications concerning the transfer of shares, lost certifi cates, 

dividends, dividend reinvestment, duplicate mailings or change of 

address should be directed to the Transfer Agent and Registrar:

Computershare Investor Services

P.O. Box 43036 

Providence, RI  02940-3036

(877) 233-3006

www.computershare.com

This annual report should be read in conjunction with 

Newell Rubbermaid’s 2010 annual meeting proxy 

statement and the 2009 Form 10-K. Copies of the 

proxy statement and Form 10-K may be obtained 

online at www.newellrubbermaid.com.

BRAND WEB DIRECTORY
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sharpieuncapped.com

shurline.com

solanopower.com

technicalconcepts.com

teutonia.com
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waterman.com
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………………………………………………………………………………………2009…………LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS…………………………………………

……………MARK D. KETCHUM……………PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER……………………………………… 

The year 2009 was extraordinary in many ways: extraordinary for the 

depth and breadth of its economic challenges, and extraordinary 

for the way our employees at Newell Rubbermaid responded to 

it. Despite the challenges, we delivered what we promised. We 

achieved our fi nancial goals, we made meaningful progress on the 

execution of our strategic transformations and we demonstrated 

that our brands can grow market share in a down economy – all 

requisites for being the best-in-class company to which we aspire. 

Our vision to become a global company of Brands That Matter™ 

and great people, known for best-in-class results, is becoming 

reality. Throughout Newell Rubbermaid today are examples of real 

transformations that are delivering results. Given our journey of 

recent years – and the challenging economic hurdles of the last 

12 months – I could not be more proud of “Brand NWL.”
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………………………FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS……………………………………
……………NEWELL RUBBERMAID INC.…………………………………………………………

SOLID PERFORMANCE
We began 2009 in a rapidly declining sales 

environment on the heels of the global economic 

meltdown that began in late 2008. Our fi nancial 

priorities were clear: protect earnings and maxi-

mize cash fl ow, despite pressures from inevitable 

revenue declines. Even more importantly, we 

were determined to preserve investments in new 

product innovation and consumer understanding 

to keep the momentum we had worked so hard to 

establish in our strategic brand-building initiatives. 

Our organization achieved this ambitious agenda 

and more. 

•    Normalized earnings grew by 8 percent 

from $1.21 to $1.31 per share. 

•    Gross margin expanded by 390 basis points 

to 36.7 percent of sales, putting us well within 

reach of our 40 percent gross margin target 

over the next few years.

•    Operating cash fl ow increased by 33 percent 

year-over-year to $603 million, restoring our 

cash generation to pre-recession levels. 

 An emphasis on working capital discipline, 

rigorous inventory management and disciplined 

cost control also contributed signifi cantly to this 

performance. We eliminated almost $130 million 

in SG&A expense during the year and preserved  

a healthy level of brand-building investment as 

a percentage of sales. The emphasis on main-

taining our new product pipeline will serve us 

especially well as we set our sights on renewed 

growth in a recovering marketplace.

AN OPTIMIZED PORTFOLIO
The Company’s fi nancial and operational 

achievements in 2009 speak to the tremendous 

progress made in recent years to achieve best 

costs through manufacturing and sourcing 

rationalization, as well as sharing services and 

best practices. Without these enterprise-wide 

effi  ciency and productivity enhancements 

to support our brands, I would be less upbeat 

about our progress. 

 Our 2009 performance also demonstrated 

the strength of the Newell Rubbermaid brand 

portfolio. The decision to exit $500 million in sales 

of low-margin, commoditized product categories 

in the Offi  ce Products and Rubbermaid Consumer 

businesses was critical to our improved results. 

We now have a portfolio of core platforms that 

are responsive to consumer understanding, 

product innovation and brand marketing. This 

was demonstrated in 2009 when despite declines 

ranging from 5 to 25 percent in our end-user 

markets, about two-thirds of our businesses 

achieved market share gains. 

 With a product portfolio centered upon 

everyday necessities such as food preparation and 

storage, baby care and hair styling, our Home & 

Family segment proved to be the most resilient 

among our businesses in 2009. This segment 

experienced a low-single-digit decline in core 

sales for the full year, with a return to core sales 

growth in the fourth quarter. At the other end of 

the spectrum, the Tools, Hardware & Commercial 

Products segment was particularly challenged due 

to sustained weakness in the housing, industrial 

and commercial markets. As a result, this segment 

reported a mid-teens-percentage decrease in 

core sales. Serving both retail and commercial 

consumers, the Offi  ce Products segment’s core 

sales fell mid-single digits, in line with the 

overall Company performance. The good news 

is that all three operating segments showed 

sequential improvement in sales trends in the 

fourth quarter, which we believe to be a leading 

indicator of a return to growth in 2010.

BRAND BUILDING SUCCESS
Though these fi nancial results tell the story of the 

past year, they do not fully impart the progress 

that has been made within our business units in 

recent years and the potential that lies ahead. 

While work remains, we can increasingly see a 

distinct cause and eff ect between brand-building 

excellence and share gains in our portfolio. 

($ in millions, except per share amounts)

 2009 2008 2007

Net Sales $ 5,578 $ 6,471 $ 6,407

Gross margin %   36.7%  32.8%  35.2%     

Operating Income, excluding charges 1  $ 674.9 $ 620.5 $ 826.3

Operating Income % 1  12.1%   9.6%  12.9%     

“Normalized” earnings per share 1  $ 1.31 $ 1.21 $ 1.81

1  Please refer to the Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 81 for a reconciliation 

to the most directly comparable GAAP fi nancial measure. 
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………………MARK D. KETCHUM…………………………………………………………………

……PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER………………………

 The team at Rubbermaid Food Storage, for 

example, has done an outstanding job of put-

ting the brand-building process to work. Using 

consumer research, they identifi ed container 

and lid organization as the number one unmet 

need with food storage containers. This insight 

led to a solution in the form of an innovative 

new product – Easy Find Lids™. Rubbermaid 

Food Storage then commercialized the new 

product by investing in advertising and market-

ing that resonated with their target consumers. 

A commercial for Rubbermaid Easy Find Lids™ 

was rated the most eff ective TV spot of 2009.

 Our Sharpie® brand has a similar story. 

Innovative new products, such as the Sharpie® 

pen, and integrated marketing campaigns have 

propelled Sharpie® from the largest marker 

brand to the largest writing brand in North 

America today. The success of the Sharpie® 

brand refl ects the strategy of our Offi  ce Prod-

ucts segment to focus its portfolio around four 

leading global brands – Paper Mate®, Sharpie®, 

Parker® and Dymo® – in order to leverage supply 

chain management, product innovation and 

marketing investments on a global basis. As part 

of this eff ort, we are consolidating our regional 

everyday writing brands under the Paper Mate® 

brand. We recently unveiled a new logo and will 

introduce new global packaging later this year.

 In our Tools, Hardware & Commercial Products 

segment, Rubbermaid Commercial Products 

continues to set the standard in the commercial 

facilities cleaning and maintenance market. Our 

2008 addition of Technical Concepts (TC) to this 

business has proven to be an excellent example 

of how strategic acquisitions can enhance our 

portfolio. As a leading provider of touch-free 

hygiene, skincare and aircare solutions, TC grew 

25 percent in 2009, largely due to heightened 

demand for its hand sanitizer and hand cleaner 

dispensing products.

 Though the Tools, Hardware & Commercial 

Products segment continues to battle market 

cyclicality, our brands are outperforming many 

peers and gaining market share in key catego-

ries and channels. This team worked hard to 

improve the cost structure, and the segment is 

now well positioned for sales growth as indus-

trial and construction markets recover.

PRIMED FOR PERFORMANCE
These are but a few of many examples that 

demonstrate the meaningful progress we have 

made over the past year despite a challenging 

economic environment. Newell Rubbermaid is 

a stronger organization and better competitor 

for having proven it can deliver under adverse 

circumstances. Indeed, the Company is in an 

excellent position to perform well going for-

ward, with a more streamlined cost structure, 

signifi cantly improved margins and a portfolio 

responsive to innovation and brand building.

 As 2010 begins to unfold, we have seen a 

degree of stability return to the marketplace. 

While the rate of recovery will vary across our 

businesses, we expect a modest level of sales 

growth this year as we continue to grow share 

in what is likely to be a fl at to slightly positive 

economy. Consumers are seeking value more 

than ever, and our emphasis on best costs 

combined with innovative solutions provides 

all of our business units with a compelling 

go-to-market proposition.

 In last year’s letter to you, I expressed my 

confi dence in our ability to weather the economic 

crisis and achieve our goals because of my trust 

and high regard for the men and women of 

Newell Rubbermaid. This year, I give them all 

the credit for rising to the challenge and doing 

an admirable job on behalf of our consumers, 

customers and shareholders. This team is the 

essence of Brand NWL, and their potential to 

create value is just beginning to emerge. 

Sincerely,

……APRIL 1, 2010…………………………………………………………………………………………



Just as strong brands leverage their 

attributes to create value, so too 

do eff ective companies. Here is 

how BRAND NWL is creating 

shareholder value through its 

portfolio of Brands That Matter™.

……………BRAND NWL… 
 ……BRANDS THAT MATTER…………………
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Demand creation begins by understanding consumer needs. Accordingly, our brand portfolio is organized 

around common end-users and primary decision-makers. The female head of household, for example, is 

the primary decision-maker for our Home & Family brands. Though the end-user varies greatly across the 

portfolio, every Newell Rubbermaid brand utilizes proven research techniques to develop proprietary 

insights into the needs, motivations and value requirements that guide purchasing decisions. This insight 

leads to the necessary level of consumer-centric understanding that creates a brand that truly matters.

UNDERSTANDS
……BRAND NWL……………………………………………………

In-depth focus groups with potential consumers are one of the many methods used to gather critical insights 

and feedback on new products.
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Our strategy to sustain profi table growth strikes a balance between investments at the 

brand level and those across the enterprise. At the brand level, this means funding research 

and development to understand consumers and create a continuous pipeline of new product 

innovation. Further, it means training programs designed to build long-term capabilities 

in marketing at every level across the organization. At the corporate level, we continue to 

invest in strategic SG&A initiatives, such as our global enterprise resource planning platform, 

SAP, which is a key enabler of best-in-class business processes across the organization. The 

SAP implementation will be substantially complete in our North American businesses this 

year and deployed globally by 2012.

7

…INVESTS……

With over 500 marketing professionals across the organization, our comprehensive 

Marketing Excellence training programs cover introductory marketing skills up to 

senior-level executive education.



INNOV
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COMING SOON……………… 
……MORE INNOVATIONS 
………FROM BRAND NWL…

Calphalon’s premium line of Unison™ gourmet cookware 

doubles the value by combining two non-stick surfaces in 

the same set – one for easy release and one to sear in fl avor.

In the belief that every little bit helps our environment, 

Paper Mate® has introduced a line of pens and mechanical 
pencils with a majority of parts that will naturally biode-
grade within about a year in soil or in a home compost. 



 

ATES…
WL…INNOVATES……NWL……INNOVATES……NWL…INNOVATES……NWL……INNOVATES……NW
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Our strategy to sustain top-line growth 

centers around a simple thesis: apply 

consumer-driven insights to develop 

features that lead to innovative products, 

which retailers will support and consumers 

will buy. We are investing strategically 

to fund such eff orts, and our success is 

evident in market share growth across 

our brand portfolio.

The Graco® Blossom™ 4-in1 Seating System is designed to adjust 
to a child’s seating needs as he or she grows from infancy to youth.

Rubbermaid Lock-its™ extend the Easy Find Lids™ system to feature 
locking tabs and a built-in gasket to prevent spills and keep food fresh.

The Dymo® LabelWriter® 450 Twin Turbo label printer (featuring 

new Dymo Label™ v.8 Software) incorporates in-depth consumer 
research into labeling habits to improve ease of use, enhance 
productivity and inspire increased label usage.  



Consumer-driven innovation only drives sales if its benefi cial value is communicated to the target end-user. Today, our 

brands are commercializing new products more eff ectively than ever. From Calphalon’s partnership with leading culinary 

experts to Rubbermaid Food Storage’s award-winning television commercials, we are supporting our brands with smart, 

memorable advertising and promotion that communicates performance and value.

……BRAND NWL…………………………………………………………………
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MARKETS

Top journalists got a sneak peek at Calphalon® Unison™ 

Nonstick cookware at Williams-Sonoma in Manhattan. 

Celebrity Chef Michael Symon showcased Slide Nonstick 

and Sear Nonstick during three hands-on sessions.
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……BRAND NWL…………………………………………………………………

Brands That Matter™ have the power to create growth opportunities by expanding into new product categories. The acquisition 

of Technical Concepts (TC) expanded the platform of our Rubbermaid Commercial Products global business unit into the 

$2.5 billion away-from-home washroom market. With heightened concerns about the spread of communicable illnesses such 

as H1N1, TC’s hygiene and skin care platforms are growing rapidly into new markets and new categories. 

MIGRATES



LATIN AMERICA
The need for eff ective food storage and an 

organized kitchen is universal. With this in 

mind, Rubbermaid Food Storage began test 

marketing its line of Easy Find Lids™ to con-

sumers in Mexico during 2009.  A television 

campaign, in-store demonstrations and free-

standing displays are among the advertising 

and promotion initiatives to support this 

geographic expansion. 

NORTH AMERICA
For more than 60 years, teutonia has applied 

Germany’s legendary engineering excellence 

to the design and manufacture of custom-

built strollers. In 2007, Newell Rubbermaid 

acquired the teutonia® brand and has begun 

to introduce this premium stroller experience 

to parents and their babies through boutique 

retail outlets across North America.

…EXPANDS……………

…………BRAND NWL………EXPANDS WORLDWIDE…………………………………BRAND NWL…………
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ASIA
Lenox entered the fast-growing Chinese  
market in 2007 and is garnering top recognition. 
The Lenox® Q Performance Solution bimetal 
band saw blades claimed the Technology 
Innovation Award for Metalworking, which 
recognizes companies committed to deliver-
ing quality products and innovative solutions. 
The award underscores why industrial and 
commercial customers in more than 70 countries 
turn to Lenox to improve productivity.

eMeA
A panel of more than 20,000 French consumers 
selected the Paper Mate® Flexgrip® Elite™ – 
“perhaps the world’s smoothest pen” – as 
Product of the Year in 2009. This highly recog-
nized award recognizes product innovation 
and high value for end-users. It also provides 
the Paper Mate® brand with value:  surveys 
indicate the award increases visibility  
among consumers by 84 percent  
and among retail  customers  
by 94 percent. 

……expAndS……………………………………………

…………BRAnd nWL………expAndS WORLdWIde…………………………………BRAnd nWL……………expAndS WORLdWIde…………BRAnd nWL…………………expAndS WORLdWIde……
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Newell Rubbermaid is a more productive 

and effi  cient enterprise today thanks to  

the streamlining of our supply chain and  

the leveraging of our expertise and scale 

in recent years. These initiatives are creating 

best-in-class cost structures to improve 

our operating competitiveness and allow 

our brands to deliver the appropriate level 

of value for today’s consumers. Our Project 

Acceleration restructuring program, which 

will be completed this year, is on track 

to deliver more than $200 million in 

annualized savings.

…NWL 
DELIV

ERS…
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Portfolio enhancements, cost structure improvements, 

working capital management and brand-building 

excellence have fueled incremental improvements in 

cash fl ow generation, earnings performance and – most 

notably – gross margin expansion. Though extraordinary 

macroeconomic weakness set us back in 2008, we 

regained our footing in 2009 and delivered a nearly 

400-basis-point increase in gross margin, as well as 

year-over-year increases in earnings and cash flow.  

Continued investments in innovation and branding, 

improved product mix, ongoing productivity savings 

and cost discipline will help drive further gross margin 

expansion and solid earnings growth.

NWL GROSS MARGIN
*  Please refer to the Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 81 for a reconciliation to the most directly comparable GAAP fi nancial measure.

PERFORMS
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“NORMALIZED” 
EARNINGS PER SHARE*

2009

$1.31

2008

$1.21

2007

$1.81

2006

$1.51

2005

$1.25

OPERATING CASH FLOW
in millions

2009

$603

2008

$455

2007

$655

2006

$643

2005

$642



1616

…………………………………………………OFFICE
PRODUCTS

-PANT 281C -

Landor Associates
Branding Consultants and
Designers Worldwide

44 rue des petites écuries
75010 Paris
+33 1 53 34 31 00

WARNING: IN ACCORDANCE WITH FRENCH REGULATIONS, FONTS ARE NOT SUPPLIED WITH THIS DOCUMENT (INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 
CODE ARTICLE L.22-4). THEREFORE, TWO ILLUSTRATOR FILES ARE PROVIDED WHICH CONTAIN THE EXACT SAME INFORMATION, ONE BEING 
OUTLINED, THE OTHER BEING EDITABLE IN ADOBE ILLUSTRATOR CS 3.

SUPPLIERS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR CHECKING WORKING DRAWINGS BEFORE PLATES ARE MADE FOR ACCURACY IN MEASUREMENTS, PLATE 
TOLERANCE REQUIREMENTS, REGISTRATION AND CONSTRUCTION DETAILING. ANY CHANGES MADE TO SUIT PRODUCTION REQUIREMENTS 
SHOULD BE APPROVED BY LANDOR. COLOR PROOFS SHOULD BE SUBMITTED TO LANDOR. ALL COPY SHOULD BE PROOFREAD LANDOR’S 
LEGAL DEPARTMENT.

APPROVAL MECH. ARTIST APPROVAL PROD. DEPT. APPROVAL CREATIVE DEPT. APPROVAL MARKETING DEPT. APPROVAL CLIENT

Date: 10/12/09

Job #: -

Printing process:  offset TBC

Scale: 100%

Country: -

INFORMATION

Tech. Drawing: -

Mechanical Artist: NL

- - -

- --

- -PANT 485C

PRINTING STATIONS SPECIFIC LAYERS

PAPER MATE 
PM Logos-Horizon_EXE_2Clr.ai

-

-

……………BRAND NWL… 

HOME  & 
FAMILY……………………………………………… 

 ……………………TOOLS…
 HARDWARE &  
 COMMERCIAL
 PRODUCTS………………

 ……BRANDS THAT MATTER…………………
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Selected Financial data 
the following is a summary of certain consolidated financial information relating to the company as of and for the year ended december 31, (in millions, except 
per share data). the summary has been derived in part from, and should be read in conjunction with, the consolidated Financial Statements of the company 
included elsewhere in this report and the schedules thereto. 

     2009 2008 (1) 2007(1) 2006(1) 2005(1)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS DATA
net sales   $ 5,577.6 $ 6,470.6 $ 6,407.3 $ 6,201.0 $ 5,717.2
cost of products sold    3,528.1  4,347.4  4,150.1  4,131.0  3,959.1
Gross margin    2,049.5  2,123.2  2,257.2  2,070.0  1,758.1
Selling, general and administrative expenses    1,374.6  1,502.7  1,430.9  1,347.0  1,117.7
impairment charges    —  299.4  —  —  0.4
Restructuring costs (2)    100.0  120.3  86.0  66.4  72.6
operating income    574.9  200.8  740.3  656.6  567.4
nonoperating expenses:
  interest expense, net    140.0  137.9  104.1  132.0  127.1
  other expense (income), net    6.7  59.1  4.2  6.1  (25.9)
 net nonoperating expenses    146.7  197.0  108.3  138.1  101.2
income before income taxes    428.2  3.8  632.0  518.5  466.2
income taxes    142.7  53.6  149.7  44.2  57.1
income (loss) from continuing operations    285.5  (49.8)  482.3  474.3  409.1
loss from discontinued operations, net of tax (3)   —  (0.5)  (12.1)  (85.7)  (155.0)
net income (loss)    285.5  (50.3)  470.2  388.6  254.1
net income noncontrolling interests    —  2.0  3.1  3.6  2.8
net income (loss) controlling interests   $ 285.5 $ (52.3) $ 467.1 $ 385.0 $ 251.3

Weighted-average shares outstanding:
 basic     280.8  279.9  278.6  276.7  275.3
 diluted    294.4  279.9  287.6  276.8  275.4
 earnings (loss) per share:
  basic:
   income (loss) from continuing operations  $ 1.02 $ (0.18) $ 1.72 $ 1.70 $ 1.48
   loss from discontinued operations    —  —  (0.04)  (0.31)  (0.56) 
   net income (loss) controlling interests  $ 1.02 $ (0.18) $ 1.68 $ 1.39 $ 0.91
  diluted:
   income (loss) from continuing operations  $ 0.97 $ (0.18) $ 1.72 $ 1.70 $ 1.48
   loss from discontinued operations    —  —  (0.04)  (0.31)  (0.56)
   net income (loss) controlling interests  $ 0.97 $ (0.18) $ 1.67 $ 1.39 $ 0.91
  dividends   $ 0.26 $ 0.84 $ 0.84 $ 0.84 $ 0.84
BALANCE SHEET DATA
inventories, net   $ 688.2 $ 912.1 $ 940.4 $ 850.6 $ 793.8
Working capital (4)    422.6  159.7  87.9  580.3  675.3
total assets    6,423.9  6,792.5  6,682.9  6,310.5  6,446.1
Short-term debt, including current portion of long-term debt   493.5  761.0  987.5  277.5  166.8
long-term debt, net of current portion    2,015.3  2,118.3  1,197.4  1,972.3  2,429.7
total stockholders’ equity   $ 1,782.2 $ 1,588.6 $ 2,222.1 $ 1,867.6 $ 1,620.4

(1)  Supplemental data regarding 2009, 2008 and 2007 is provided in item 7, management’s discussion and analysis of Financial condition and Results of operations. certain statement of operations information 
has been revised to present noncontrolling interests and earnings per share amounts for 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005 in accordance with the provisions of relevant authoritative accounting pronouncements 
adopted during 2009. total stockholders’ equity as of december 31, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005 reflect the retrospective adoption in 2009 of accounting pronouncements related to noncontrolling interests, which 
resulted in the reclassification of noncontrolling interests previously classified as other noncurrent liabilities to stockholders’ equity as well as an increase in liabilities with a corresponding reduction in stockholders’ 
equity attributable to a commitment to purchase noncontrolling interests in a subsidiary. Working capital as of december 31, 2008 has also been adjusted to give effect to the purchase commitment, because 
the commitment to purchase the noncontrolling interest as of december 31, 2008 was a current liability. See Footnote 1 and Footnote 14 in the notes to consolidated Financial Statements for further information. 

(2)  the restructuring costs include asset impairment charges, employee severance and termination benefits, employee relocation costs, and costs associated with exited contractual commitments and other 
restructuring costs. 

(3) loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, attributable to noncontrolling interests was not material. 
(4) Working capital is defined as current assets less current liabilities. 
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acQuiSitionS oF buSineSSeS 
2009, 2008 and 2007 
information regarding significant businesses acquired in the last three years is included in Footnote 2 of the notes to consolidated Financial Statements. 

2006 and 2005 
no significant acquisitions occurred during 2006. on november 23, 2005, the company acquired dymo, a global leader in designing, manufacturing and 
marketing on-demand labeling solutions, from esselte ab for $699.2 million. the transaction was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting 
and was finalized in 2006, after consideration of certain working capital and other adjustments. the company funded the acquisition with available cash 
and borrowings from pre-existing credit facilities. the acquisition of dymo strengthened the company’s position in the office Products segment by expanding 
and enhancing the company’s product lines and customer base. 

QuaRteRly SummaRieS
Summarized quarterly data for the last two years is as follows (in millions, except per share data) (unaudited): 

calendar year  1st 2nd 3rd 4th year

2009
net sales  $ 1,203.9 $ 1,504.3 $ 1,449.0 $ 1,420.4 $ 5,577.6
Gross margin   422.8  558.3  542.6  525.8  2,049.5
net income   33.7  105.7  85.5  60.6  285.5
net income noncontrolling interests   —  —  —  —  — 
net income controlling interests  $ 33.7 $ 105.7 $ 85.5 $ 60.6 $ 285.5 

earnings per share:
 basic   $ 0.12 $ 0.38 $ 0.30 $ 0.22 $ 1.02
 diluted    $ 0.12 $ 0.37 $ 0.28 $ 0.20 $ 0.97

2008 (1) 
net sales  $ 1,433.7 $ 1,825.1 $ 1,760.3 $ 1,451.5 $ 6,470.6
Gross margin   490.5  623.2  574.7  434.8  2,123.2
income (loss) from continuing operations   57.8  92.9  55.6  (256.1)  (49.8)
loss from discontinued operations   (0.5)  —  —  —  (0.5)
net income (loss)   57.3  92.9  55.6  (256.1)  (50.3)
net income noncontrolling interests   0.4  0.4  0.6  0.6  2.0
net income (loss) controlling interests    $ 56.9 $ 92.5 $ 55.0 $ (256.7) $ (52.3)

earnings (loss) per share:
 basic:
  income (loss) from continuing operations    $ 0.21 $ 0.33 $ 0.20 $ (0.92) $ (0.18)
  loss from discontinued operations   —  —  —  —  —  
  net income (loss) controlling interests  $ 0.20 $ 0.33 $ 0.20 $ (0.92) $ (0.18)
 diluted: 
  income (loss) from continuing operations    $ 0.21 $ 0.33 $ 0.20 $ (0.92) $ (0.18)
  loss from discontinued operations   —  —  —  —  —
  net income (loss) controlling interests    $ 0.20 $ 0.33 $ 0.20 $ (0.92) $ (0.18)

(1)  certain statement of operations information for 2008 has been revised to present noncontrolling interests and earnings per share amounts in accordance with the provisions of relevant authoritative 
accounting pronouncements adopted during 2009. 
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manaGement’S diScuSSion and analySiS oF Financial condition  
and ReSultS oF oPeRationS
the following discussion and analysis provides information which management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of the company’s 
consolidated results of operations and financial condition. the discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated Financial 
Statements and notes thereto. 

BuSINESS OvERvIEw 
newell Rubbermaid is a global marketer of consumer and commercial products that touch the lives of people where they work, live and play. the company’s 
products are marketed under a strong portfolio of brands, including Rubbermaid®, Graco®, aprica®, levolor®, calphalon®, Goody®, Sharpie®, Paper mate®, 
dymo®, Parker®, Waterman®, irwin®, lenox® and technical concepts™. the company’s multi-product offering consists of well-known name-brand consumer 
and commercial products in three business segments: Home & Family; office Products; and tools, Hardware & commercial Products. 

Business Strategy 
newell Rubbermaid’s vision is to become a global company of brands that matter™ and great people, known for best-in-class results. the company is 
committed to building consumer-meaningful brands through understanding the needs of consumers and using those insights to create innovative, highly 
differentiated product solutions that offer performance and value. to support its multi-year transformation into a best-in-class global consumer branding 
and marketing organization, the company has adopted a strategy that focuses on optimizing the business portfolio, building consumer-meaningful brands 
on a global scale, and achieving best cost and efficiency in its operations. 

•   optimizing the business portfolio includes reducing the company’s exposure to non-strategic businesses and product lines and acquiring  
businesses that facilitate geographic and category expansion, thus enhancing the potential for growth and improved profitability of the  
overall portfolio. 

•   building consumer-meaningful brands involves embracing a consumer-driven innovation process, developing best-in-class marketing and 
branding capabilities across the organization and investing in strategic brand-building activities, including investments in research and 
development to better understand target consumers and their needs. 

•   achieving best cost involves the company’s adoption of best-in-class practices, such as leveraging scale, restructuring the supply chain to 
improve capacity utilization and to deliver productivity savings, reducing costs in nonmarket-facing activities, designing products to optimize 
input costs, and utilizing strategic sourcing partners when it is cost effective. achieving best cost allows the company to improve its competitive 
position, generate funds for increased investment in strategic brand-building initiatives, and preserve cash and liquidity. 

Market Overview 
the company operates in the consumer and commercial products markets, which are generally impacted by overall economic conditions in the regions in 
which the company operates. the company’s results in 2009 have been adversely impacted by weakness in consumer confidence and consumer spending due 
to the deterioration in worldwide economic conditions. in particular, the company’s results for 2009 have been impacted by the following principal factors: 

•   lower consumer confidence and corresponding lower demand, which has resulted in reduced consumer foot traffic and destocking of customer 
inventory, negatively impacting sales and contributing to an overall year-over-year core sales decline of approximately 7%. core sales represent 
net sales excluding the impacts of acquisitions, currency and product line exits. the primary drivers of the core sales decline were continued 
weakness in economic conditions internationally, which resulted in a year-over-year core sales decline of approximately 11% in the company’s 
international businesses and lower demand in the commercial and industrial channels, which contributed to a year-over-year core sales decline 
of approximately 16% in the company’s tools, Hardware & commercial Products segment. 

•   less volatile commodities markets, which have resulted in lower input costs relative to 2008, as the company’s input costs in 2008 were higher 
due to dramatic raw material inflation. 

•   continued volatility in the credit markets, which has contributed to the decline in consumer demand and has resulted in reductions in available 
capital and financing for businesses and increases in costs associated with capital and financing. 

 
in response to these conditions, the company took the following actions: 
•   managed working capital to improve operating cash flows, with a particular focus on reducing inventory levels. during 2009, the company focused 

on optimizing its production capacity and sourcing of finished goods to correspond to anticipated reductions in demand. the company reduced 
inventory levels and realized cash flows from such reductions of $243 million in 2009, compared to approximately $31 million in 2008. 

•   continued to exit and rationalize low-margin product categories where demand is less responsive to innovation and input costs are subject to 
volatile commodities markets. in 2009, the product line exits have resulted in an approximate 5% year-over-year sales decline while contributing 
approximately 140 basis points to the year-over-year gross margin expansion. overall, the company realized a 390 basis point improvement in 
gross margins in 2009 due to the positive impact of the product line exits, productivity gains, the effect of pricing initiatives and input cost 
moderation compared with the dramatic inflation experienced in 2008, which combined more than offset the adverse effects of an unfavorable 
customer and product mix and lower plant utilization rates resulting from the sales decline and the customer inventory reductions. 
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•   continued to improve the cost structure of the business by reducing and streamlining structural selling, general and administrative (“SG&a”) 
costs, including consolidating the segment structure from four to three. the company also outlined and implemented an initiative with a focus on 
continuing to reduce structural overhead costs by simplifying work and consolidating offices, and implemented selected contingency plans early 
in 2009 to eliminate or delay costs where possible. 

•   Selectively invested in strategic SG&a to drive sales and enhance its new product pipeline. during 2009, the company’s selective investments in 
strategic brand building and consumer demand creation included investments in the following: 

 –  the “uncap What’s inside™ ” campaign for the company’s Sharpie® products; 
 –  the expansion of the calphalon product family to include the unison™ line of non-stick, dishwasher safe gourmet cookware; 
 –  the expansion of Rubbermaid consumer’s food storage product line to include lock-its™ storage containers with locking lid tabs; 
 –  the introduction of Graco products such as the blossom™ 4-in-1 feeding chair and the Pack ‘n Play® Playard with its newborn napper™ feature; and 
 –   sales and new product development activities in selected areas to improve public health, including the technical concepts™ offering of hand 

sanitizer and hand cleanser dispensers, and education, such as mimio®’s interactive whiteboard technology and student response systems. 
 
  the company maintained its investments in research and development in 2009 compared to 2008 despite deterioration in economic conditions 

and the associated impact on the company. the company expects to continue to make incremental investments in research and development and 
other strategic SG&a activities in 2010. 

•   improved liquidity and reduced total indebtedness by $371 million in 2009, including raising approximately $590 million in the public debt markets 
(after transaction costs and net costs associated with the convertible note hedge and warrant transactions) and completing a new receivables-backed 
credit facility that provides for maximum borrowings of up to $200 million. the company repaid $448 million of amounts outstanding under its previous 
receivables facility and redeemed $395 million principal amount of medium-term notes. 

•   Reduced the dividend payable on its common stock from $0.84 per year to $0.20 per year. the new dividend policy better positions the company 
to protect its investment-grade credit rating and enhance its liquidity. 

Ongoing Initiatives 
Project Acceleration 
Project acceleration is designed to reduce manufacturing overhead, better align the company’s distribution and transportation processes, and reorganize 
the overall business structure to align with the company’s core organizing concept, the global business unit, to achieve best total cost. through the 
Project acceleration restructuring program and other initiatives, the company has made significant progress in improving capacity utilization rates to 
deliver productivity savings and in increasing the use of strategic sourcing partners. during the year ended december 31, 2009, the company completed or 
implemented a number of restructuring programs as part of Project acceleration to reduce and realign its manufacturing footprint, including two programs 
in its Home & Family segment in north america, two programs in its office Products segment’s international operations, one program in its office Products 
segment’s north american operations, and three programs in its tools, Hardware & commercial Products segment’s international operations. Since the 
inception of Project acceleration, the company has reduced its manufacturing footprint by more than 50%, including the closure or disposition of more than 
20 manufacturing facilities and the transfer of 19 manufacturing facilities to purchasers in connection with divestitures of businesses. 

the company expects to have completed implementation of its Project acceleration restructuring initiative by the end of 2010, and the total costs 
incurred over the life of the initiative are expected to be between $475 million and $500 million, including $250 million to $270 million of employee-related 
costs, $155 million to $175 million in non-cash asset-related costs, and $50 million to $70 million in other associated restructuring costs. the company 
has incurred $421 million of restructuring costs under Project acceleration through december 31, 2009 and expects to incur between $60 million and 
$80 million of additional costs to complete Project acceleration. approximately 67% of the total Project acceleration restructuring costs are expected to be 
cash charges. cumulative annualized savings expected to be realized from the implementation of Project acceleration are in excess of $200 million once 
completed, with more than $160 million in annualized savings realized to date. 

the company continues to evaluate its supply chain to identify opportunities to realize efficiencies in purchasing, distribution and transportation. in 2009, 
the company began consolidating its Southeast u.S. distribution operations into a single Southeast u.S. distribution center, which included the closure of multiple 
distribution facilities throughout the Southeast region of the u.S. the company also continues to focus on rationalizing its use of multiple third-party distribution 
and logistics service providers, consolidating such operations into company-owned facilities where possible. 

in an effort to align the business with the global business unit structure and achieve best total cost, the company continues to evaluate and optimize 
its overall organizational structure and consolidate activities. in this regard, the company has reduced its worldwide headcount by 10%, or 2,400 employees, 
in 2009. 

One Newell Rubbermaid 
the company strives to leverage the common business activities and best practices of its business units, and to build one common culture of shared values 
with a focus on collaboration and teamwork. through this initiative, the company has established regional shared service centers to leverage nonmarket-facing 
functional capabilities to reduce costs. the company is migrating multiple legacy systems and users to a common SaP global information platform in a 
phased, multi-year rollout. SaP is expected to enable the company to integrate and manage its worldwide business and reporting processes more efficiently. 
to date, the north american operations of 10 of the company’s 13 Gbus have successfully gone live with their SaP implementation efforts, with the majority 
of the company’s remaining north american operations scheduled to go live in 2010. 



newell Rubbermaid inc. 2009 annual Report

22

CONSOLIDATED RESuLTS OF OPERATIONS 
the company believes the selected data and the percentage relationship between net sales and major categories in the consolidated Statements of operations 
are important in evaluating the company’s operations. the following table sets forth items from the consolidated Statements of operations as reported and as 
a percentage of net sales for the year ended december 31, (in millions, except percentages): 
 
 2009    2008 2007

net sales $ 5,577.6 100.0% $ 6,470.6 100.0% $ 6,407.3 100.0%
cost of products sold  3,528.1 63.3  4,347.4 67.2  4,150.1 64.8
Gross margin  2,049.5 36.7  2,123.2 32.8  2,257.2 35.2
Selling, general and administrative expenses  1,374.6 24.6  1,502.7 23.2  1,430.9 22.3
impairment charges  — —  299.4 4.6  — —
Restructuring costs  100.0 1.8  120.3 1.9  86.0 1.3
operating income  574.9 10.3  200.8 3.1  740.3 11.6
nonoperating expenses:
  interest expense, net  140.0 2.5  137.9 2.1  104.1 1.6
  other expense, net  6.7 0.1  59.1 0.9  4.2 0.1
 net nonoperating expenses  146.7 2.6  197.0 3.0  108.3 1.7
income before income taxes  428.2 7.7  3.8 0.1  632.0 9.9
income taxes  142.7 2.6  53.6 0.8  149.7 2.3
income (loss) from continuing operations  285.5 5.1  (49.8) (0.8)  482.3 7.5
loss from discontinued operations, net of tax  — —  (0.5) —  (12.1) (0.2)
net income (loss)  285.5 5.1  (50.3) (0.8)  470.2 7.3
net income noncontrolling interests  — —  2.0 —  3.1 —
net income (loss) controlling interests $ 285.5 5.1% $ (52.3) (0.8)% $ 467.1 7.3%

 
Results of Operations — 2009 vs. 2008 
net sales for 2009 were $5,577.6 million, representing a decrease of $893.0 million, or 13.8%, from $6,470.6 million for 2008. core sales declined 7.3% 
compared to the prior year resulting from the lower consumer foot traffic and lower product demand as well as inventory destocking at the retail level and in 
the commercial and industrial channels. Geographically, core sales of the company’s domestic and international businesses declined approximately 6% 
and 11%, respectively, versus the prior year. Planned product line exits and foreign currency contributed an additional 5.2% and 2.1% to the year-over-year 
sales decline, respectively. the technical concepts and aprica acquisitions increased sales 0.8% over the prior year. 

Gross margin, as a percentage of net sales, for 2009 was 36.7%, or $2,049.5 million, versus 32.8% of net sales, or $2,123.2 million, for 2008. the 
primary drivers of the 390 basis point gross margin expansion included benefits realized from product line exits, moderating input costs compared to 2008 
and pricing actions initiated late in 2008 and early 2009. these improvements more than offset the adverse impacts of reduced production volumes in the 
company’s manufacturing facilities and unfavorable product and customer mix. 

SG&a expenses for 2009 were 24.6% of net sales, or $1,374.6 million, versus 23.2% of net sales, or $1,502.7 million, for 2008. the $128.1 million 
decrease was primarily driven by the company’s continued management of SG&a spending as well as cost reduction programs initiated during late 2008 
and early 2009 to mitigate the negative impact of the decline in sales. Foreign currency translation represented $37.8 million of the $128.1 million decline, 
which was partially offset by $21.2 million of incremental SG&a costs resulting from the technical concepts and aprica acquisitions. 

the company recorded restructuring costs of $100.0 million and $120.3 million for 2009 and 2008, respectively. the company’s restructuring costs in 
2009 related primarily to optimizing the cost structure of the business and secondarily to reducing the company’s manufacturing footprint, whereas the 
restructuring costs in 2008 primarily related to product line exits and reducing the company’s manufacturing footprint. the restructuring costs for 2009 
included $32.4 million of facility and other exit and impairment costs, $48.8 million of employee severance, termination benefits and employee relocation 
costs, and $18.8 million of exited contractual commitments and other restructuring costs. the restructuring costs for 2008 included $46.1 million of facility 
and other exit and impairment costs, $57.5 million of employee severance, termination benefits and employee relocation costs, and $16.7 million of exited 
contractual commitments and other restructuring costs. See Footnote 4 of the notes to consolidated Financial Statements for further information. 

the adverse impact of the macroeconomic environment on the company during the fourth quarter of 2008, particularly the rapid decrease in consumer 
demand, combined with the updated outlook for certain of the company’s reporting units led the company to evaluate the carrying value of goodwill as of 
december 31, 2008. as a result of this evaluation, the company recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $299.4 million during the fourth quarter of 2008 
principally related to goodwill of certain reporting units in the tools, Hardware & commercial Products and office Products segments. no similar impairment 
charges were recorded in 2009. 



newell Rubbermaid inc. 2009 annual Report

23

operating income for 2009 was 10.3% of net sales, or $574.9 million, versus 3.1% of net sales, or $200.8 million for 2008. the 720 basis point improvement 
primarily relates to the goodwill impairment charges recorded in 2008, with no similar impairment charges in 2009. the improvement also reflects the favorable 
impacts of product line exits and moderating input costs in 2009, partially offset by an increase in SG&a costs as a percentage of sales. 

interest expense, net, for 2009 was $140.0 million compared to $137.9 million for 2008. the $2.1 million increase in interest expense reflects higher 
average debt outstanding year-over-year. 

other expense, net, for 2009 was $6.7 million versus $59.1 million for 2008. the decrease in other expense, net, is primarily attributable to the 
$52.2 million loss on debt extinguishment relating to the company’s redemption of its $250.0 million of medium-term Reset notes in July 2008. 

the company recognized income tax expense of $142.7 million in 2009 compared to $53.6 million in 2008. the increase in tax expense was primarily 
a result of an increase in income before income taxes in 2009 compared to 2008 as well as the recognition of income tax benefits of $3.1 million and 
$29.9 million in 2009 and 2008, respectively, related to favorable outcomes from the iRS’s review of specific deductions and accrual reversals for items 
for which the statute of limitations expired. the impacts of these items were partially offset by the tax impacts of the impairment charges recorded in 2008, 
because substantially all of the impairment charges were not deductible for tax purposes, and accordingly, only nominal tax benefits were recognized in 
2008 associated with the impairment charges. See Footnote 16 of the notes to consolidated Financial Statements for further information. 

Results of Operations — 2008 vs. 2007 
net sales for 2008 were $6,470.6 million, representing an increase of $63.3 million, or 1%, from $6,407.3 million for 2007. core sales declined approximately 
3.0% compared to the prior year. the technical concepts and aprica acquisitions increased sales by $204.7 million, or 3.2%, over the prior year, and foreign 
currency contributed 0.8% of sales growth. 

Gross margin, as a percentage of net sales, for 2008 was 32.8%, or $2,123.2 million, versus 35.2%, or $2,257.2 million, for 2007. the primary drivers 
of the 240 basis point gross margin contraction included the impact of raw material and sourced goods inflation as well as lower manufacturing volumes 
and unfavorable product mix experienced during the fourth quarter of 2008, partially offset by benefits from productivity improvements from Project 
acceleration and other initiatives. 

SG&a expenses for 2008 were 23.2% of net sales, or $1,502.7 million, versus 22.3% of net sales, or $1,430.9 million, for 2007. the $71.8 million 
increase was primarily driven by SG&a expenses associated with the technical concepts and aprica acquisitions and the impact of foreign currency, 
which more than offset the impacts of the company’s management of structural and strategic SG&a spending. 

the company recorded restructuring costs of $120.3 million and $86.0 million for 2008 and 2007, respectively. the increase in restructuring costs for 
2008 compared to the prior year is primarily attributable to $36.0 million of asset impairment charges recorded in 2008 associated with the company’s 
plan to divest, downsize or exit certain product categories where resin is the primary component of cost of products sold. the 2008 restructuring costs 
included $46.1 million of facility and other exit costs, including the $36.0 million of asset impairment charges noted above, $57.5 million of employee 
severance, termination benefits and employee relocation costs, and $16.7 million of exited contractual commitments and other restructuring costs, of 
which $3.1 million relates to the company’s 2001 Restructuring Plan. the 2007 restructuring costs included $27.7 million of facility and other exit costs, 
$36.4 million of employee severance and termination benefits and $21.9 million of exited contractual commitments and other restructuring costs. See 
Footnote 4 of the notes to consolidated Financial Statements for further information. 

the company recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $299.4 million during the fourth quarter of 2008 principally related to goodwill of certain 
reporting units in the tools, Hardware & commercial Products and office Products segments. no similar impairment charges were recorded in 2007. 

operating income for 2008 was $200.8 million, or 3.1% of net sales, versus $740.3 million, or 11.6% of net sales, in 2007. the 850 basis point decline is 
primarily attributable to the $299.4 million of impairment charges noted above, the impact of raw material and sourced goods inflation on gross margin and 
the $36.0 million of Project acceleration asset impairment charges in 2008 discussed above, partially offset by improvements from productivity initiatives. 

 interest expense, net, for 2008 was $137.9 million versus $104.1 million for 2007. the $33.8 million year-over-year increase was primarily driven by 
additional borrowings in 2008 used to fund the acquisitions of aprica and technical concepts. 

other expense, net, for 2008 was $59.1 million versus $4.2 million for 2007. the increase in other expense, net, in 2008 is primarily attributable to 
the $52.2 million loss on debt extinguishment relating to the company’s redemption of its $250.0 million of medium-term Reset notes in July 2008. 

the company recognized income tax expense of $53.6 million for 2008, compared to $149.7 million for 2007. the decrease in tax expense was primarily 
a result of a decrease in income before income taxes in 2008 compared to 2007. the impact of the decrease in operating income from 2007 to 2008 on income 
tax expense was partially offset by a decrease in the tax rates applied to the various discrete expenses, including restructuring and impairment charges, in 
2008 compared to 2007, which had the effect of increasing income tax expense in 2008 compared to 2007. income tax expense for 2008 and 2007 was favorably 
impacted by the recognition of net income tax benefits of $29.9 million and $41.3 million, respectively, primarily related to favorable outcomes from the iRS’s 
review of specific deductions and accrual reversals for items for which the statute of limitations expired. See Footnote 16 of the notes to consolidated 
Financial Statements for further information. 

For 2007, the company recognized a loss from operations of discontinued operations of $0.2 million, net of tax, related to the results of the remaining 
operations of the Home décor europe business and a loss on disposal of discontinued operations of $11.9 million, net of tax, related primarily to the 
disposal of the remaining operations of the Home décor europe business. 
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BuSINESS SEgMENT OPERATINg RESuLTS 
2009 vs. 2008 Business Segment Operating Results 
net sales by segment were as follows for the year ended december 31, (in millions, except percentages) : 

 
       2009 2008 % change

Home & Family    $ 2,377.2 $ 2,654.8 (10.5)%
office Products     1,674.7  1,990.8 (15.9) 
tools, Hardware & commercial Products     1,525.7  1,825.0 (16.4)  
 total net Sales    $ 5,577.6 $ 6,470.6 (13.8)% 

 
operating income (loss) by segment was as follows for the year ended december 31, (in millions, except percentages) : 
 

       2009 2008 % change

Home & Family    $ 274.7 $ 218.3 25.8%
office Products     235.2  212.4 10.7
tools, Hardware & commercial Products     245.6  271.7 (9.6) 
corporate     (80.6)  (81.9) 1.6 
impairment charges     —  (299.4) nmF
Restructuring costs     (100.0)  (120.3) 16.9%
 total operating income    $ 574.9 $ 200.8 nmF

nmF-not meaningful 

Home & Family 
net sales for 2009 were $2,377.2 million, a decrease of $277.6 million, or 10.5%, from $2,654.8 million for 2008. core sales declined 2.1% as low-single-digit 
core sales growth in the culinary lifestyles Gbu was offset by a high-single-digit decline in the décor Gbu, which continues to be impacted by softness in 
residential construction, as well as a mid-single-digit decline in the baby & Parenting essentials Gbu, which was adversely impacted by softness in the baby 
category worldwide. net sales declined 8.1% due to product line exits in the Rubbermaid consumer Gbu and 1.3% due to unfavorable foreign currency 
impacts. the aprica acquisition increased sales 1.0% compared to the prior year. 

operating income for 2009 was $274.7 million, or 11.6% of net sales, an increase of $56.4 million, or 25.8%, from $218.3 million, or 8.2% of net sales, 
for 2008. the 340 basis point improvement in operating margin was primarily due to moderating input costs, product line exits and productivity improvements. 
in the aggregate, these improvements contributed 450 basis points to the net expansion in operating margin and were partially offset by unfavorable mix 
and an increase in SG&a expenses as a percentage of net sales. 

Office Products 
net sales for 2009 were $1,674.7 million, a decrease of $316.1 million, or 15.9%, from $1,990.8 million for 2008. core sales declined 6.5%, which was 
primarily attributable to weak consumer demand both domestically and internationally and inventory destocking at the retail level. Reduced sales relating 
to product line exits and unfavorable foreign currency contributed an additional 6.0% and 3.4%, respectively, to the year-over-year decline. 

operating income for 2009 was $235.2 million, or 14.0% of net sales, an increase of $22.8 million, or 10.7%, from $212.4 million, or 10.7% of net 
sales for 2008. the 330 basis point improvement in operating margin was primarily attributable to product line exits. in constant currency, SG&a expenses 
as a percentage of net sales in 2009 were comparable to 2008. 

Tools, Hardware & Commercial Products 
net sales for 2009 were $1,525.7 million, a decrease of $299.3 million, or 16.4%, from $1,825.0 million for 2008. core sales declined 15.8% as sales volumes 
were negatively impacted by inventory management by retail, commercial and industrial customers; continued softness in the residential construction 
market, both domestically and internationally; and sustained weakness in industrial and commercial channels. unfavorable foreign currency contributed an 
additional 2.0% decline, and the technical concepts acquisition increased sales $26.2 million, or 1.4%, versus the prior year. 

operating income for 2009 was $245.6 million, or 16.1% of net sales, a decrease of $26.1 million, or 9.6%, from $271.7 million, or 14.9% of net sales, 
for 2008. the 120 basis point expansion in operating margin was primarily driven by the moderation of input costs compared to the prior year and improved 
product mix, which combined contributed 190 basis points to the expansion, as well as productivity gains, all of which were partially offset by the adverse 
impacts of lower production volumes. the lower production volumes were primarily the result of aggressive management of inventory levels by the company’s 
customers and lower sales resulting from weak demand. in constant currency, SG&a expenses as a percentage of net sales in 2009 were comparable to 2008. 
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2008 vs. 2007 Business Segment Operating Results 
net sales by segment were as follows for the year ended december 31, (in millions, except percentages) : 
 
       2008 2007 % change

Home & Family    $ 2,654.8 $ 2,610.8 1.7% 
office Products     1,990.8  2,026.2 (1.7)
tools, Hardware & commercial Products     1,825.0  1,770.3 3.1
  total net Sales    $ 6,470.6 $ 6,407.3 1.0%

 
 operating income (loss) by segment was as follows for the year ended december 31, (in millions, except percentages) :

 
       2008 2007 % change

Home & Family    $ 218.3 $ 307.5 (29.0)%
office Products     212.4  315.8 (32.7)
tools, Hardware & commercial Products     271.7  285.0 (4.7)
corporate     (81.9)  (82.0) 0.1
impairment charges     (299.4)  —  nmF
Restructuring costs     (120.3)  (86.0) (39.9)
 total operating income    $ 200.8 $ 740.3 (72.9)%

nmF-not meaningful 

 
Home & Family 
net sales for 2008 were $2,654.8 million, an increase of $44.0 million, or 1.7%, from $2,610.8 million in 2007. core sales declined 0.8% as mid-single-digit 
core sales growth in the baby & Parenting essentials Gbu was offset by softness in the décor Gbu. the aprica acquisition increased sales $95.5 million, or 
3.7%, while favorable foreign currency contributed an additional 0.2% to the overall sales improvement. the adverse impact from product line exits reduced 
sales 1.4%. 

operating income for 2008 was $218.3 million, or 8.2% of net sales, a decrease of $89.2 million from $307.5 million, or 11.8% of net sales, in 2007. 
the 360 basis point decline was primarily driven by unfavorable mix and by sourced product and input cost inflation, particularly in resin, which combined 
contributed an estimated 590 basis points to the decline. these declines were partially offset by benefits realized from tighter management of SG&a costs.

Office Products 
net sales for 2008 were $1,990.8 million, a decrease of $35.4 million, or 1.7%, from $2,026.2 million in 2007. core sales declined 3.2%, due to lower consumer 
demand and customer inventory management. Favorable foreign currency increased sales 1.5%. 

operating income for 2008 was $212.4 million, or 10.7% of net sales, a decrease of $103.4 million, from $315.8 million, or 15.6% of net sales, in 2007. 
the 490 basis point decline was primarily attributable to input cost inflation, unfavorable mix and reduced production volumes at the company’s manufacturing 
facilities, which combined contributed an estimated 330 basis points to the overall decline. the remaining decline was primarily driven by an increase in SG&a 
spending as a percentage of sales, partially offset by benefits from pricing initiatives implemented during 2008. 

Tools, Hardware & Commercial Products 
net sales for 2008 were $1,825.0 million, an increase of $54.7 million, or 3.1%, from $1,770.3 million in 2007. core sales declined 3.9% as mid-single-digit 
core sales growth in the Rubbermaid commercial Products Gbu was more than offset by declines in core sales in the company’s industrial Products & Services 
and construction tools & accessories Gbus due to continued declines in the residential construction market, customer inventory management and increased 
softness in industrial and commercial channels. the technical concepts acquisition increased net sales $109.2 million, or 6.2%, while favorable foreign currency 
increased sales 0.8%. 

operating income for 2008 was $271.7 million, or 14.9% of net sales, a decrease of $13.3 million from $285.0 million, or 16.1% of net sales, in 2007. 
the 120 basis point decline is attributable to input cost inflation and unfavorable mix, which combined contributed approximately 420 basis points to the 
overall decline, partially offset by contributions from SG&a expense reduction initiatives, favorable pricing and productivity improvements.
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LIQuIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOuRCES 
Cash Flows 
cash and cash equivalents increased (decreased) as follows for the year ended december 31, (in millions) : 
  
       2009 2008 2007

cash provided by operating activities     $ 602.8 $   454.9 $ 655.3
cash used in investing activities     (149.4)  (804.1)  (265.6)
cash (used in) provided by financing activities     (427.0)  306.0  (266.8)
exchange rate effect on cash and cash equivalents     (23.5)  (10.6)  5.3
increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    $ 2.9 $ (53.8) $ 128.2

 
in the cash flow statement, the changes in operating assets and liabilities are presented excluding the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange 

rates and the effects of acquisitions, as these do not reflect actual cash flows. accordingly, the amounts in the cash flow statement differ from changes in 
the operating assets and liabilities that are presented in the balance sheets.

 
Sources 
Historically, the company’s primary sources of liquidity and capital resources have included cash provided by operations, issuance of debt and use of 
available borrowing facilities. 

cash provided by operating activities for 2009 was $602.8 million compared to $454.9 million for 2008. this improvement is primarily attributable to 
working capital improvements, driven mainly by $243.1 million of cash provided by reducing inventories in 2009 compared to $30.9 million in 2008, and an 
approximate $75.0 million decrease in payments in 2009 compared to 2008 for annual performance-based compensation, which is generally paid in the first 
quarter of the year based on the previous year’s results. cash provided by operating activities for 2009 includes a $75.0 million voluntary cash contribution 
the company made to its primary u.S. defined benefit pension plan and $126.6 million paid to settle foreign exchange contracts on intercompany financing 
arrangements and cross-currency interest rate swaps. cash provided by operating activities for 2008 reflects a $200.4 million decrease from $655.3 million 
for 2007. the decrease is attributable primarily to lower income from continuing operations, a reduction in accounts payable, and the timing of payments of 
accrued liabilities, including income taxes, partially offset by working capital reductions driven by improved collection on accounts receivable and tighter 
management of inventory levels. 

 the company received proceeds of $827.3 million, $1,318.0 million and $420.8 million from the issuance of debt in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 
in march 2009, the company completed the offering and sale of $300.0 million unsecured and unsubordinated notes and $345.0 million convertible senior 
notes. the $624.3 million of net proceeds from these note issuances were used to complete the tender offers to repurchase $325.0 million principal amount 
of medium-term notes and convertible note hedge transactions and for general corporate purposes. also related to the issuance of the convertible senior 
notes, the company entered into warrant transactions in which the company sold warrants to third parties for approximately $32.7 million. See Footnote 10 
of the notes to consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on these transactions. during 2009, the company borrowed and repaid 
$70.0 million under a 364-day receivables facility that was completed in September 2009 and borrowed and repaid $125.0 million under its syndicated 
revolving credit facility (the “Revolver”). in September 2008, the company entered into a $400.0 million credit agreement, under which the company received 
an unsecured three-year term loan in the amount of $400.0 million (the “term loan”). net proceeds from the term loan were used to repay outstanding 
commercial paper and for general corporate purposes. in march 2008, the company completed the offering and sale of senior unsecured notes, consisting 
of $500.0 million in 5.50% senior unsecured notes due april 2013 and $250.0 million in 6.25% senior unsecured notes due april 2018. net proceeds from 
this offering were used to fund acquisitions, repay debt, and for general corporate purposes. Proceeds from the issuance of debt in 2007 include the 
issuance of commercial paper to fund acquisitions and the repayment of a five-year, $250.0 million medium-term note that matured in 2007. 

Uses 
Historically, the company’s primary uses of liquidity and capital resources have included acquisitions, dividend payments, capital expenditures and 
payments on debt. 

the company made aggregate payments on short- and long-term debt of $1,113.0 million, $772.5 million and $478.3 million during 2009, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively. the $1,113.0 million of repayments in 2009 includes $329.7 million used to complete tender offers to repurchase $180.1 million principal amount 
of the $250.0 million medium-term notes due december 2009 and $144.9 million principal amount of the $250.0 million medium-term notes due may 2010 
(the “tender offers”), the $448.0 million repayment of the floating-rate note issued under the company’s 2001 receivables facility, the repayment of $125.0 million 
of borrowings under the Revolver, a $50.0 million principal payment on the term loan, and the repayment of the remaining $69.9 million principal amount 
outstanding of the $250.0 million medium-term notes due december 2009. also, as part of the convertible note hedge transactions entered into in march 2009, 
the company purchased call options from third parties for $69.0 million. See Footnote 10 of the notes to consolidated Financial Statements for additional 
information on the call option transaction. in July 2008, the company redeemed its $250.0 million of Reset notes due July 2028 for $302.2 million, which includes 
the company’s purchase of the remarketing option embedded in the Reset notes from a third party for $52.2 million. in July 2008, the company also repaid 
$65.0 million of its $75.0 million outstanding 6.11% medium-term notes due July 2028 in accordance with the terms of the notes. the company utilized its 
commercial paper program to fund the redemption of the Reset notes, the purchase of the remarketing option, and the repayment of the $65.0 million of 
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6.11% medium-term notes due July 2028. the remaining payments made on debt during 2008 mainly represent the payoff of commercial paper. in 2007, the 
company retired a five-year, $250 million, 6% fixed-rate note, at maturity, and made payments on commercial paper. 

the company did not invest in significant acquisitions in 2009. cash used for acquisitions was $655.7 million and $106.0 million in 2008 and 2007, 
respectively. the cash used in 2008 relates primarily to the acquisitions of technical concepts and aprica, while cash used in 2007 included the acquisition 
of endicia. See Footnote 2 of the notes to consolidated Financial Statements for further information. 

aggregate dividends paid were $71.4 million, $234.5 million and $234.7 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 
capital expenditures were $153.3 million, $157.8 million and $157.3 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. the largest single capital project in 

each of 2009, 2008 and 2007 was the implementation of SaP. 
the company purchased noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiaries for $29.2 million during 2009. 
cash used for restructuring activities and cash used to settle foreign exchange contracts and cross-currency interest rate swaps are included in changes 

in accrued liabilities and other in the consolidated Statements of cash Flows. cash used for restructuring activities was $84.0 million, $60.9 million and 
$53.1 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively, which primarily relates to employee termination benefits. the company paid approximately $126.6 million 
to settle foreign exchange contracts on intercompany borrowings and cross-currency interest rate swaps during 2009. 
 
Financial Position 
the company is committed to maintaining a strong financial position through maintaining sufficient levels of available liquidity, managing working capital 
and monitoring the company’s overall capitalization. 

•   cash and cash equivalents at december 31, 2009 were $278.3 million, and the company had $690.0 million and $188.8 million of borrowing capacity 
under its Revolver and new receivables facility, respectively. 

•   Working capital at december 31, 2009 was $422.6 million compared to $159.7 million at december 31, 2008, and the current ratio at december 31, 
2009 was 1.24:1 compared to 1.07:1 at december 31, 2008. the increase in working capital and the current ratio is primarily due to net cash realized 
from the company’s financing activities and the repayment of current maturities of debt as well as cash flows generated from operating activities. 

•   the company monitors its overall capitalization by evaluating total debt to total capitalization. total debt to total capital capitalization is defined as 
the sum of short and long-term debt, less cash, divided by the sum of total debt and stockholders’ equity, less cash. total debt to total capitalization 
was .56:1 at december 31, 2009 and .62:1 at december 31, 2008. 

the company reduced the quarterly dividend payable on its common stock from $0.21 per share to $0.05 per share during 2009 to enhance its liquidity 
and to maintain its investment-grade credit rating. 

over the long-term, the company plans to improve its current ratio and total debt to total capitalization by improving operating results, managing working 
capital and using cash generated from operations to repay debt maturities. the company has from time to time refinanced, redeemed or repurchased its debt 
and taken other steps to reduce its debt or lease obligations or otherwise improve its overall financial position and balance sheet. Going forward, depending on 
market conditions, its cash positions and other considerations, the company may continue to take such actions.

 
Borrowing Arrangements 
during 2009, the company enhanced its liquidity and financial position by completing the issuance of $300.0 million of unsecured and unsubordinated 
notes and $345.0 million of convertible senior notes. Proceeds from these offerings were used to complete the convertible note hedge transactions and to 
complete the tender offers and for general corporate purposes. in addition, in September 2009 the company completed a new 364-day receivables facility 
that provides for borrowings of up to $200.0 million. as of december 31, 2009, $188.8 million was available for borrowing under the new receivables 
facility, and there were no amounts outstanding. in connection with the completion of the new receivables facility, the company repaid the $448.0 million 
floating-rate note outstanding under the previous receivables facility. 

the company’s Revolver expires in november 2012. as of december 31, 2009, there were no borrowings outstanding under the Revolver, and the company 
had $690.0 million of borrowing capacity (in november 2010, the borrowing capacity is reduced to $665.0 million). in lieu of borrowings under the Revolver, 
the company may use the borrowing capacity under the Revolver to provide the committed backup liquidity required to issue commercial paper. accordingly, 
commercial paper may only be issued up to the amount available for borrowing under the Revolver. However, the company’s current short-term debt credit ratings, 
coupled with continued uncertainty in the credit markets, may preclude it from accessing the commercial paper market. the Revolver also provides for the issuance 
of up to $100.0 million of standby letters of credit so long as there is a sufficient amount available for borrowing under the Revolver. as of december 31, 2009, 
no commercial paper was outstanding, and there were no borrowings or standby letters of credit outstanding under the Revolver. 

the indentures governing the company’s medium-term and convertible senior notes contain usual and customary nonfinancial covenants. the company’s 
borrowing arrangements other than the medium-term and convertible senior notes contain usual and customary nonfinancial covenants and certain financial 
covenants, including minimum interest coverage and maximum debt to total capitalization ratios. as of december 31, 2009, the company had complied with 
all covenants under the indentures and its other borrowing arrangements, and the company could access the full borrowing capacity available under the Revolver 
and the new receivables facility and utilize the $878.8 million for general corporate purposes without exceeding the debt to total capitalization limits in its 
financial covenants. a failure to maintain the financial covenants would impair the company’s ability to borrow under the Revolver and new receivables facility 
and may result in the acceleration of the repayment of certain indebtedness. 
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Debt 
the company has varying needs for short-term working capital financing as a result of the seasonal nature of its business. the volume and timing of production 
impacts the company’s cash flows and has historically involved increased production in the first quarter of the year to meet increased customer demand through 
the remainder of the year. Working capital fluctuations have historically been financed through short-term financing arrangements, such as borrowings under 
the Revolver or commercial paper supported by the Revolver. 

 total debt decreased $370.5 million to $2.5 billion as of december 31, 2009 from $2.9 billion as of december 31, 2008. the net decrease was attributable 
to a $325.0 million reduction in outstanding debt as a result of the completion of the tender offers, the repayment of the $448.0 million floating-rate note outstanding 
under the company’s previous receivables facility, a $50.0 million repayment on the term loan, as well as the repayment of the remaining $69.9 million principal 
amount outstanding of the $250.0 million medium-term notes due december 2009. these decreases were partially offset by the march 2009 issuance of 
$300.0 million of medium-term notes and $345.0 million of convertible senior notes, which have a carrying value of $284.3 million at december 31, 2009. the 
december 31, 2009 debt balance was also affected by the mark-to-market adjustments necessary to record the fair value of interest rate hedges of fixed-rate 
debt, in accordance with relevant authoritative guidance. the mark-to-market adjustments decreased the carrying value of debt by $43.9 million in 2009 
compared to 2008. 

the company’s 364-day receivables financing facility provides for maximum borrowings of up to $200.0 million, of which $188.8 million was available 
for borrowing and no amounts were outstanding at december 31, 2009. the completion of the new receivables facility was coincident with the September 
2009 repayment of the $448.0 million floating-rate note outstanding under the company’s previous receivables facility. 
 in may 2009, the company completed cash tender offers to repurchase $180.1 million of the $250.0 million aggregate outstanding principal amount of 
notes due december 2009 and $144.9 million of the $250.0 million aggregate outstanding principal amount of notes due may 2010. in december 2009, the 
company repaid the remaining $69.9 million principal amount outstanding of the $250.0 million medium-term notes due december 2009. 

as of december 31, 2009, the company had $493.5 million of short-term debt, including $105.1 million of medium-term notes that mature in may 2010 
and a $100.0 million principal payment due on the term loan in September 2010. in addition, because the closing sale price of the company’s common stock 
exceeded $11.19 for more than 20 of the last 30 consecutive trading days in the three months ended december 31, 2009, the convertible senior notes are 
convertible at the election of the holders of the notes at any time during the three months ended march 31, 2010. Since conversion of the notes is outside the 
control of the company, the carrying value of the convertible senior notes, $284.3 million, is classified as current portion of long-term debt in the consolidated 
balance Sheet at december 31, 2009. 

Reset Notes 
in July 1998, the company issued $250.0 million of medium-term notes, maturing in July 2028 with interest payable semiannually (the “Reset notes”). the 
Reset notes contained a coupon rate reset feature occurring at two ten-year intervals, July 2008 and July 2018. the Reset notes contained a coupon rate of 
6.35% through the first interest reset date of July 2008. in addition, the Reset notes contained an embedded remarketing option pursuant to which a third 
party could call the Reset notes at par at the end of each ten-year remarketing interval, and the third party or another securities dealer could remarket the 
Reset notes at a reset coupon rate which would result in the third party realizing proceeds for the remarketed notes in an amount approximately equal to the 
discounted present value of a $250.0 million ten-year note with a coupon of 5.485%, discounted at the ten-year treasury note yield to maturity prevailing at 
the time of remarketing. in the event the remarketing option at the end of each remarketing interval was not exercised, the Reset note holders were required 
to put the Reset notes back to the company at a price of par. 

the embedded remarketing option was accounted for separately, as it was deemed a purchase by the company of a transferable, freestanding call 
option from the Reset note investors and the company’s concurrent transfer of the freestanding call option to the third party. as a result, the remarketing 
option, which provided for the call and remarketing of the Reset notes, was in effect a contract between the third party and the Reset note holders that 
allowed the third party to call the Reset notes from the holders at par at the end of each ten-year remarketing interval and remarket the Reset notes. the 
fair value of the remarketing option purchased by the company from the Reset note investors at the date of issuance was determined based on the amount 
the third party paid the company for the remarketing option. in summary, at issuance the company was cash neutral with respect to the remarketing option 
but implicitly issued the Reset notes at a premium because the investors purchased the Reset notes from the company simultaneous with the company 
purchasing the remarketing option from the investors (which the company concurrently monetized by selling it to a third party). as a result, the Reset notes 
carried a premium at issuance, and the company recognized no gain or loss upon issuance of the Reset notes. 

in connection with the issuance of the Reset notes in July 1998, the company entered into an agreement with the third party that afforded the company 
the right to purchase the remarketing option from the third party at the end of each ten-year remarketing interval at its then fair value in order to avoid the 
remarketing of the Reset notes. the company exercised this right in July 2008 to avoid the third party calling and remarketing the Reset notes. the company 
redeemed the $250.0 million of Reset notes in July 2008 because prevailing interest rates as of the July 2008 remarketing date would have resulted in the third 
party exercising the remarketing option and calling the Reset notes at par, and the Reset notes subsequently being remarketed. the Reset notes would have 
been remarketed at a premium to par in order for the third party to realize the discounted present value described above in the remarketing. a note priced 
at a premium to par would carry a coupon rate greater than the rate carried by a security priced at par. accordingly, the coupon rate arising from a potential 
remarketing was estimated to approximate 9.0%, exceeding the company’s then incremental borrowing rate of 6.25% for comparable debt. to achieve a 
lower net cost of borrowing, in July 2008, the company redeemed the Reset notes and recorded a loss on extinguishment of the Reset notes of $52.2 million 
associated with the purchase of the embedded remarketing option from the third party. 

the company did not have any Reset notes outstanding as of december 31, 2009. 
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Pension Obligations 
the company has adopted and sponsors pension plans in the u.S. and in various other countries. the company’s ongoing funding requirements for its 
pension plans are largely dependent on the value of each of the plan’s assets and the investment returns realized on plan assets. in 2009, the company 
made a $75.0 million voluntary cash contribution to its primary u.S. defined benefit pension plan in order to improve the overall funded status of the plan. 
the company expects to contribute approximately $33.0 million to its pension plans in 2010. 

Future increases or decreases in pension liabilities and required cash contributions are highly dependent on changes in interest rates and the actual 
return on plan assets. the company determines its plan asset investment mix, in part, on the duration of each plan’s liabilities. to the extent each plan’s 
assets decline in value or do not generate the returns expected by the company, the company may be required to make contributions to the pension plans 
to ensure the pension obligations are adequately funded as required by law or mandate. 

Dividends 
in the first quarter of 2009, the company reduced the quarterly dividend payable on its common stock from $0.21 per share to $0.05 per share to improve 
liquidity and maintain its current investment-grade credit rating. the payment of dividends to holders of the company’s common stock remains at the discretion 
of the board of directors and will depend upon many factors, including the company’s financial condition, earnings, legal requirements and other factors 
the board of directors deems relevant. 

Credit Ratings 
the company’s credit ratings are periodically reviewed by rating agencies. the company’s current senior debt credit ratings from moody’s investors Service, 
Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Ratings are baa3, bbb- and bbb, respectively. its current short-term debt credit ratings from moody’s investors Service, Standard 
& Poor’s and Fitch Ratings are P-3, a-3 and F-2, respectively. Standard & Poor’s has a stable outlook, and moody’s and Fitch maintain a negative outlook on 
their ratings. changes in the company’s operating results, cash flows or financial position could impact the ratings assigned by the various rating agencies. 
the ratings from credit agencies are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold the company’s securities, and each rating should be evaluated independently of 
any other rating. Refer to item 1a. Risk Factors for a more detailed discussion of the company’s credit ratings. 

Outlook 
For the year ending december 31, 2010, the company expects to generate cash flows from operations of more than $500.0 million after restructuring cash 
payments of approximately $70.0 million to $80.0 million. the company plans to fund capital expenditures of approximately $160.0 million, which include 
expenditures associated with the implementation of SaP. 

overall, the company believes that available cash and cash equivalents, cash flows generated from future operations, access to capital markets and 
availability under the Revolver and new receivables facility will be adequate to support the cash needs of existing businesses. the company plans to use 
available cash to repay debt maturities as they come due, including $105.1 million of medium-term notes that mature in may 2010 and a $100.0 million 
principal payment due under the term loan in September 2010.

 
Resolution of Income Tax Contingencies 
in 2009, 2008 and 2007, the company recorded $3.1 million, $29.9 million and $41.3 million, respectively, in net income tax benefits as a result of the favorable 
resolution of certain tax matters with the iRS, the settlement of certain tax contingency reserves, the reversal of a valuation allowance, the expiration of the 
statute of limitations on certain tax matters and the reorganization of certain legal entities in europe. these benefits are reflected in the company’s 2009, 2008 
and 2007 consolidated Statements of operations. the ultimate resolution of outstanding tax matters may be different than that reflected in the historical income 
tax provisions and accruals, which may adversely impact future operating results and cash flows. 
 
CONTRACTuAL OBLIgATIONS, COMMITMENTS AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANgEMENTS 
the company has outstanding debt obligations maturing at various dates through 2028. certain other items, such as purchase commitments and other 
executory contracts, are not recognized as liabilities in the company’s consolidated financial statements but are required to be disclosed. examples of 
items not recognized as liabilities in the company’s consolidated financial statements are commitments to purchase raw materials or inventory that has not 
yet been received as of december 31, 2009 and future minimum lease payments for the use of property and equipment under operating lease agreements. 
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the following table summarizes the effect that lease and other material contractual obligations are expected to have on the company’s cash flow in the 
indicated period. in addition, the table reflects the timing of principal and interest payments on borrowings outstanding as of december 31, 2009. additional 
details regarding these obligations are provided in the notes to consolidated Financial Statements (in millions) : 
 
 Payments due by Period

      less than   more than
     total  1 year  1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years

debt (1)  $ 2,508.8 $ 493.5 $ 517.3 $ 506.2 $ 991.8
interest on debt (2)  1,165.2  144.5  264.6  244.8  511.3
operating lease obligations (3)  404.3  96.5  137.7  79.4  90.7
Purchase obligations (4)  414.6  340.9  73.7  —  — 
total contractual obligations (5) $ 4,492.9 $ 1,075.4 $ 993.3 $ 830.4 $ 1,593.8

(1)  amounts represent contractual obligations based on the earliest date that the obligation may become due, excluding interest, based on borrowings outstanding as of december 31, 2009. the carrying value 
of the $345.0 million of convertible senior notes is included in the table as due within one year since the convertible senior notes are convertible as of december 31, 2009. Provisions of the convertible senior 
notes entitle the holders to convert their notes during specified periods if certain conditions are met, and since such conditions were met, the convertible senior notes are convertible during the quarter 
ended march 31, 2010. the convertible senior notes may be convertible in future periods and mature in march 2014 if not earlier converted. For further information relating to these obligations, see Footnote 
9 of the notes to consolidated Financial Statements. 

(2)  amounts represent estimated interest payable on borrowings outstanding as of december 31, 2009, excluding the impact of interest rate swaps that adjust the fixed rate to a floating rate for $1.0 billion of 
medium-term notes. interest on floating-rate debt was estimated using the rate in effect as of december 31, 2009. For further information, see Footnote 9 of the notes to consolidated Financial Statements. 

(3)  amounts represent contractual minimum lease obligations on operating leases as of december 31, 2009. For further information relating to these obligations, see Footnote 12 of the notes to consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

(4)  Primarily consists of purchase commitments entered into as of december 31, 2009 for finished goods, raw materials, components and services pursuant to legally enforceable and binding obligations, which 
include all significant terms. 

(5) total does not include contractual obligations reported on the december 31, 2009 balance sheet as current liabilities, except for current portion of long-term debt and short-term debt. 

the company also has liabilities for uncertain tax positions and unrecognized tax benefits. as a large taxpayer, the company is under continual audit by 
the iRS and other taxing authorities on several open tax positions, and it is possible that the amount of the liability for uncertain tax positions and unrecognized 
tax benefits could change in the coming year. While it is possible that one or more of these examinations may be resolved in the next year, the company is not 
able to reasonably estimate the timing or the amount by which the liability will increase or decrease over time; therefore, the $191.6 million in unrecognized tax 
benefits, including interest and penalties, at december 31, 2009 is excluded from the preceding table. See Footnote 16 of the notes to consolidated Financial 
Statements for additional information. 

additionally, the company has obligations with respect to its pension and postretirement medical benefit plans which are excluded from the preceding 
table. the timing and amounts of the funding requirements are uncertain because they are dependent on interest rates and actual returns on plan assets, 
among other factors. as of december 31, 2009, the company had liabilities related to its unfunded and underfunded pension and postretirement benefit 
plans of $594.7 million. See Footnote 13 of the notes to consolidated Financial Statements for further information. 

 as of december 31, 2009, the company had $59.4 million in standby letters of credit primarily related to the company’s self-insurance programs, 
including workers’ compensation, product liability and medical. See Footnote 20 of the notes to consolidated Financial Statements for further information. 

as of december 31, 2009, the company did not have any significant off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined in item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Sec 
Regulation S-K. 

CRITICAL ACCOuNTINg POLICIES 
the company’s accounting policies are more fully described in Footnote 1 of the notes to consolidated Financial Statements. as disclosed in that footnote, the 
preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions about 
future events that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying footnotes. Future events and their effects cannot be determined 
with absolute certainty. therefore, the determination of estimates requires the exercise of judgment. actual results inevitably will differ from those estimates, and 
such differences may be material to the consolidated Financial Statements. the following sections describe the company’s critical accounting policies. 

Sales Recognition 
Sales of merchandise and freight billed to customers are recognized when title passes and all substantial risks of ownership change, which generally occurs 
either upon shipment or upon delivery based upon contractual terms. Sales are net of provisions for cash discounts, returns, customer discounts (such as 
volume or trade discounts), cooperative advertising and other sales-related discounts. 

Recovery of Accounts Receivable 
the company evaluates the collectibility of accounts receivable based on a combination of factors. When aware of a specific customer’s inability to meet its 
financial obligations, such as in the case of bankruptcy filings or deterioration in the customer’s operating results or financial position, the company 
records a specific reserve for bad debt to reduce the related receivable to the amount the company reasonably believes is collectible. the company also 
records reserves for bad debt for all other customers based on a variety of factors, including the length of time the receivables are past due and historical 
collection experience. accounts are reviewed for potential write-off on a case by case basis. accounts deemed uncollectible are written off, net of expected 
recoveries. if circumstances related to specific customers change, the company’s estimates of the recoverability of receivables could be further adjusted. 
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Inventory Reserves 
the company reduces its inventory value for estimated obsolete and slow-moving inventory in an amount equal to the difference between the cost of 
inventory and the net realizable value based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions. Provisions for excess and obsolete inventories, 
including shrink reserves, totaled $57.0 million, $79.0 million and $41.8 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and are included in cost of products 
sold. if actual market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be required. 

Goodwill and Other Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets 
the company performs its impairment testing of goodwill at a reporting unit level, and all of the company’s goodwill is assigned to the company’s reporting 
units. Reporting units are one level below the operating segment level. in connection with the company’s realignment of its businesses under a Global 
business unit (“Gbu”) structure, the company redefined its reporting units, where necessary, to align with the Gbu structure effective January 1, 2009. 
Reporting units in the office Products segment and certain reporting units in the tools, Hardware & commercial Products segment that were geographically 
aligned were impacted by the realignment. the goodwill of these geographically aligned reporting units was reallocated to reporting units defined under the 
Gbu structure on a relative fair value basis. the company has not had any other material changes to the reporting units identified and used to test goodwill 
for impairment since January 1, 2006 due to restructuring activities or otherwise. acquired businesses, including goodwill arising from such transactions, 
are integrated into the company’s existing reporting units. 

after the realignment of the reporting units and the reallocation of goodwill, the company had 13 reporting units with total goodwill of $2.7 billion as of 
January 1, 2009. Five of the company’s 13 reporting units accounted for approximately 70% of the company’s total goodwill. these five reporting units were 
as follows: baby & Parenting essentials; Rubbermaid commercial Products; industrial Products & Services; markers, Highlighters, art & office organization; 
and office technology. 

the company conducts its annual test of impairment of goodwill as of the first day of the third quarter because it generally coincides with its annual 
strategic planning process. the company also tests for impairment if events and circumstances indicate that it is more likely than not that the fair value of 
a reporting unit is below its carrying amount. For example, if macroeconomic factors, such as consumer demand and consumer confidence, deteriorate 
materially such that the company’s reporting units’ projected sales and operating income decline significantly relative to previous estimates, the company 
will perform an interim test to assess whether goodwill is impaired. the company determined that no interim tests of impairment were necessary during 
2009, due to declining macroeconomic conditions, significant reductions in reporting units’ expected sales and profitability, or otherwise. 

in the company’s goodwill impairment testing, if the carrying amount of a reporting unit is greater than its fair value, impairment may be present. estimates 
made by management in performing its impairment testing can impact whether or not an impairment charge is necessary and the magnitude of the impairment 
charge to the extent one is recorded. the company uses multiple valuation approaches in its impairment testing, each of which requires estimates to arrive 
at an estimate of fair value. For the company’s reporting units that are stable businesses and have a history and track record of generating positive operating 
income and cash flows, the company relies on a multiple of earnings approach to assess their fair value. the material assumptions used to value a reporting 
unit using this approach are the reporting units’ estimated financial performance for the remainder of the year and the applicable multiple to apply to earnings 
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“ebitda”). the estimated financial performance for the remainder of the year is based on the company’s 
internal forecasting process. to determine the ebitda multiple, the company obtains information from third parties on ebitda multiples observed for recent 
acquisitions and other transactions in the marketplace for comparable businesses. the company evaluates the ebitda multiples used for the reporting units 
relative to the company’s market capitalization plus an equity control premium. the equity control premium is defined as the sum of the individual reporting 
units’ estimated market values compared to the company’s market value, with the sum of the individual values typically being larger than the market value of 
the company. the company considers premiums paid by acquirers of comparable businesses to determine the reasonableness of the implied control premium. 

the ebitda multiple observed in the marketplace for recent transactions ranged from 9 to 11 for the annual impairment test as of July 1, 2009. For the 
July 1, 2009 impairment test, the company adjusted the ebitda multiples from the observed multiples, generally to multiples ranging from 6 to 12 so that 
the aggregate value of all reporting units relative to the company’s total market value resulted in a reasonable implied equity control premium. the company 
considers several factors in estimating the ebitda multiple applicable to each reporting unit, including the reporting unit’s market position, brand awareness, 
gross and operating margins, and prospects for growth, among other factors. after adjusting the ebitda multiples for the reporting units, no potential 
goodwill impairment was indicated for reporting units for which this approach was used. Furthermore, the company’s equity market value at July 1, 2009 
of approximately $3.0 billion was significantly in excess of its book value of stockholders’ equity of approximately $1.8 billion. For the impairment test as of 
July 1, 2009, if each reporting unit’s ebitda multiple were reduced by 0.5 from the 6 to 12 multiple used for each reporting unit, all reporting units where 
the ebitda multiple approach was used to value the reporting unit would have passed step one of the goodwill impairment test. 

the company relies on a discounted cash flow approach to value reporting units in certain circumstances, such as when the reporting unit is growing 
at a significantly slower rate than planned, is declining at a significantly faster rate than the overall market, has experienced significant losses, is in a 
stage of hyper-growth, is executing significant restructuring efforts, or is in a stage of development where it has not yet fully realized the benefits of scale 
and operating efficiencies. the company used the discounted cash flow approach to value three of its reporting units for the annual impairment test as of 
July 1, 2009, industrial Products & Services, everyday Writing and Fine Writing, because these reporting units are executing significant restructuring 
projects or the reporting unit’s financial results are significantly impacted by economic cycles. the material assumptions used to value a reporting unit 
using the discounted cash flow approach are the future financial performance and cash flows of the reporting unit, the discount rate, and the working 
capital investment required. estimates of future financial performance include estimates of future sales growth rates, raw material costs, currency 
fluctuations, and operating efficiencies to be realized. the company determines a discount rate based on an estimate of a reasonable risk-adjusted return 
an investor would expect to realize on an investment in the reporting unit. in using the discounted cash flow approach to value reporting units in 2009, the 
company generally used average compound long-term sales growth rates ranging from 2% to 3%, average operating margins ranging from 13% to 26%, 



newell Rubbermaid inc. 2009 annual Report

32

and discount rates ranging from 11% to 12%. the company concluded these three reporting units passed step one of the goodwill impairment test based 
on the values determined using the discounted cash flow approach. 

if the estimated fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, the company measures the amount of goodwill impairment, if any, based on 
the estimated fair value of the underlying assets and liabilities of the reporting unit, including any unrecognized intangible assets, and estimates the implied 
fair value of goodwill. the company identifies unrecognized intangible assets, such as trade names and customer relationships, and uses discounted cash flow 
models to estimate the values of the reporting unit’s recognized and unrecognized intangible assets. the estimated values of the reporting unit’s intangible 
assets and net tangible assets are deducted from the reporting unit’s total fair value to determine the implied fair value of goodwill. an impairment charge is 
recognized to the extent the recorded goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill. 

if the discount rates used to estimate the fair value of the industrial Products & Services, everyday Writing and Fine Writing reporting units increased 
100 basis points, the estimated fair values of the reporting units would have declined by $63 million, $63 million, and $30 million, respectively. if the 
discount rates were increased by 100 basis points, all three reporting units would still have passed step one of the goodwill impairment test. 

the company has one reporting unit, baby & Parenting essentials, whose estimated fair value at July 1, 2009 exceeded net assets by less than 10% of 
the reporting unit’s net assets using the adjusted ebitda multiple or discounted cash flow value, as applicable. the baby & Parenting essentials reporting 
unit has goodwill of $416 million as of July 1, 2009. if the ebitda multiple used to estimate the fair value of baby & Parenting essentials reporting unit were 
reduced by 1.0, the estimated fair value of the reporting unit would have been approximately 1% less than the net assets of the reporting unit. additional 
valuation procedures would have been required to determine whether baby & Parenting essentials’ goodwill was impaired, and to the extent goodwill was 
impaired, the magnitude of the impairment charge. 

the company continues to implement specific restructuring projects and business and operational strategies to further strengthen the profitability of baby 
& Parenting essentials. the company continues to monitor whether these initiatives are being executed as planned and improve its financial performance. to 
the extent the company is not successful in implementing these projects and strategies, it is possible the company would record goodwill impairment charges 
associated with baby & Parenting essentials in future periods. baby & Parenting essentials has been adversely impacted by recently enacted child safety 
legislation in north america and continues to integrate two acquired international businesses. baby & Parenting essentials has undertaken and is executing 
restructuring projects to reduce supply chain costs and administrative overhead worldwide and has taken steps to minimize the impact inflation has on its 
operating results, and to reduce inventories. these efforts are being taken to reduce the working capital investment required in the short-term and improve 
profitability over the mid- to long-term. 

the company’s indefinite-lived intangible assets totaled $320 million as of July 1, 2009. the company assesses the fair value of its indefinite-lived 
intangible assets using a discounted cash flow model based on royalties estimated to be derived in the future use of the asset were the company to license 
the use of the trademark or trade name. an impairment charge for indefinite-lived intangible assets is recorded if the carrying amount of an indefinite-lived 
intangible asset exceeds the estimated fair value on the measurement date. the company completed its annual impairment test of indefinite-lived 
intangible assets as of July 1, 2009 and concluded none of the assets were impaired. 

the company considers qualitative and quantitative factors in determining whether impairment testing of the trademark and trade name assets is 
necessary at dates other than the annual impairment testing date, such as whether the company has plans to abandon or significantly reduce the use of a 
trademark or trade names. based on consideration of these factors, the company determined that no impairment indicators have been present, and 
therefore, impairment testing as of a date other than July 1, 2009 is not required. 

See Footnote 7 of the notes to consolidated Financial Statements for further information. 
the company cannot predict the occurrence of events that might adversely affect the reported value of goodwill and other intangible assets. Such events 

may include, but are not limited to, strategic decisions made in response to economic and competitive conditions, the impact of the economic environment on 
the company’s customer base and net sales, a material negative change in its relationships with significant customers or sustained declines in the company’s 
market capitalization relative to its reported stockholders’ equity. the company periodically evaluates the impact of economic and other conditions on the 
company and its reporting units to assess whether impairment indicators are present. 

Capitalized Software Costs 
the company capitalizes costs associated with internal-use software during the application development stage after both the preliminary project stage has been 
completed and the company’s management has authorized and committed to funding for further project development. capitalized internal-use software costs 
include: (i) external direct costs of materials and services consumed in developing or obtaining the software; (ii) payroll and payroll-related costs for employees 
who are directly associated with and who devote time directly to the project; and (iii) interest costs incurred while developing the software. capitalization of 
these costs ceases no later than the point at which the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended purpose. the company expenses as incurred 
research and development, general and administrative, and indirect costs associated with internal-use software. in addition, the company expenses as incurred 
training, maintenance and other internal-use software costs incurred during the post-implementation stage. costs associated with upgrades and enhancements 
of internal-use software are only capitalized if such modifications result in additional functionality of the software. capitalized software costs were $185.9 million 
at december 31, 2009. capitalized interest costs included in capitalized software were not material as of december 31, 2009. 

the company amortizes internal-use software costs using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the software, which typically 
ranges from three to 12 years. capitalized software costs are evaluated annually for indicators of impairment including but not limited to a significant 
change in available technology or the manner in which the software is being used. impaired items are written down to their estimated fair values. 
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Other Long-Lived Assets 
the company continuously evaluates if impairment indicators related to its property, plant and equipment and other long-lived assets are present. these 
impairment indicators may include a significant decrease in the market price of a long-lived asset or asset group, a significant adverse change in the extent 
or manner in which a long-lived asset or asset group is being used or in its physical condition, or a current-period operating or cash flow loss combined 
with a history of operating or cash flow losses or a forecast that demonstrates continuing losses associated with the use of a long-lived asset or asset group. 
if impairment indicators are present, the company estimates the future cash flows for the asset or group of assets. the sum of the undiscounted future cash 
flows attributable to the asset or group of assets is compared to their carrying amount. the cash flows are estimated utilizing various assumptions regarding 
future revenue and expenses, working capital, and proceeds from asset disposals on a basis consistent with the company’s strategic plan. if the carrying 
amount exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows, the company discounts the future cash flows using a discount rate required for a similar 
investment of like risk and records an impairment charge as the difference between the fair value and the carrying value of the asset group. Generally, the 
company performs its testing of the asset group at the product-line level, as this is the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are available. 

Product Liability Reserves 
the company has a self-insurance program for product liability that includes reserves for self-retained losses and certain excess and aggregate risk 
transfer insurance. the company uses historical loss experience combined with actuarial evaluation methods, review of significant individual files and 
the application of risk transfer programs in determining required product liability reserves. the company’s actuarial evaluation methods take into account 
claims incurred but not reported when determining the company’s product liability reserve. the company has product liability reserves of $47.3 million 
as of december 31, 2009. While the company believes that it has adequately reserved for these claims, the ultimate outcome of these matters may exceed 
the amounts recorded by the company, and such additional losses may be material to the company’s consolidated Financial Statements. 

Legal and Environmental Reserves 
the company is subject to losses resulting from extensive and evolving federal, state, local, and foreign laws and regulations, as well as contract and 
other disputes. the company evaluates the potential legal and environmental losses relating to each specific case and determines the probable loss based 
on historical experience and estimates of cash flows for certain environmental matters. the estimated losses take into account anticipated costs associated 
with investigative and remediation efforts where an assessment has indicated that a probable liability has been incurred and the cost can be reasonably 
estimated. no insurance recovery is taken into account in determining the company’s cost estimates or reserve, nor do the company’s cost estimates or 
reserve reflect any discounting for present value purposes, except with respect to long-term operations and maintenance comprehensive environmental 
Response, compensation and liability (“ceRcla”) matters which are estimated at present value. the company’s estimate of environmental response 
costs associated with these matters as of december 31, 2009 ranged between $10.7 million and $26.9 million. as of december 31, 2009, the company 
had a reserve of $15.5 million for such environmental response costs in the aggregate, which is included in other accrued liabilities and other noncurrent 
liabilities in the consolidated balance Sheet. 

Income Taxes 
in accordance with relevant authoritative guidance, the company accounts for deferred income taxes using the asset and liability approach. under this 
approach, deferred income taxes are recognized based on the tax effects of temporary differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets 
and liabilities, as measured by current enacted tax rates. Valuation allowances are recorded to reduce the deferred tax assets to an amount that will more 
likely than not be realized. no provision is made for the u.S. income taxes on the undistributed earnings of non-u.S. subsidiaries as substantially all such 
earnings are permanently reinvested. 

the company’s income tax provisions are based on calculations and assumptions that are subject to examination by the iRS and other tax authorities. 
although the company believes that the positions taken on previously filed tax returns are reasonable, it has established tax and interest reserves in recognition 
that various taxing authorities may challenge the positions taken, which could result in additional liabilities for taxes and interest. the company regularly 
reviews its deferred tax assets for recoverability considering historical profitability, projected future taxable income, the expected timing of the reversals of 
existing temporary differences and tax planning strategies. 

For uncertain tax positions, the company applies the provisions of relevant authoritative guidance, which requires application of a “more likely than not” 
threshold to the recognition and derecognition of tax positions. the company’s ongoing assessments of the more likely than not outcomes of tax authority 
examinations and related tax positions require significant judgment and can increase or decrease the company’s effective tax rate as well as impact operating 
results. See Footnote 16 of the notes to consolidated Financial Statements for further information. 
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Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits 
Pension and other postretirement benefit costs and liabilities are dependent on assumptions used in calculating such amounts. the primary assumptions 
include factors such as discount rates, health care cost trend rates, expected return on plan assets, mortality rates and rate of compensation increases, 
as discussed below: 

•   Discount rates : the company generally estimates the discount rate for its pension and other postretirement benefit obligations using an iterative 
process based on a hypothetical investment in a portfolio of high-quality bonds that approximate the estimated cash flows of the pension and other 
postretirement benefit obligations. the company believes this approach permits a matching of future cash outflows related to benefit payments 
with future cash inflows associated with bond coupons and maturities. 

•   Health care cost trend rate : the company’s health care cost trend rate is based on historical retiree cost data, near-term health care outlook and 
industry benchmarks and surveys. 

•   Expected return on plan assets : the company’s expected return on plan assets is derived from reviews of asset allocation strategies and historical 
and anticipated future long-term performance of individual asset classes. the company’s analysis gives consideration to historical returns and 
long-term, prospective rates of return. 

•  Mortality rates : mortality rates are based on actual and projected plan experience. 
•   Rate of compensation increase : the rate of compensation increases reflects the company’s long-term actual experience and its outlook, including 

consideration of expected rates of inflation. 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, actual results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods, 
and therefore, generally affect recognized expense and the recorded obligation in future periods. While management believes that the assumptions used are 
appropriate, differences in actual experience or changes in assumptions may affect the company’s pension and other postretirement plan obligations and future 
expense. See Footnote 13 of the notes to consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on the assumptions used. the following tables summarize the 
company’s pension and other postretirement plan assets and obligations included in the consolidated balance Sheet as of december 31, 2009 (in millions): 
 
        u.S. international

Pension plan assets and obligations, net:
Prepaid benefit cost     $ —  $ 3.5 
accrued current benefit cost      (11.7)  (4.0) 
accrued noncurrent benefit cost      (322.2)  (88.7)
net liability recognized in the consolidated balance Sheet     $ (333.9) $ (89.2)

 
          u.S.

Other postretirement benefit obligations:
accrued current benefit cost        $ (16.0) 
accrued noncurrent benefit cost         (152.1) 
liability recognized in the consolidated balance Sheet       $ (168.1)

 
the following table summarizes the net pre-tax cost associated with pensions and other postretirement benefit obligations in the consolidated Statement 

of operations for the year ended december 31, (in millions) : 
 
         2009 2008 2007  

net pension cost    $ 18.1 $ 18.3 $ 14.4
net postretirement benefit costs     8.7  8.8  10.1
total        $ 26.8 $ 27.1 $ 24.5

 
the company used weighted-average discount rates of 6.2% and 6.3% to determine the expenses for 2009 for the pension and postretirement plans, 

respectively. the company used a weighted-average expected return on assets of 7.3% to determine the expense for the pension plans for 2009. the 
following table illustrates the sensitivity to a change in certain assumptions for the pension and postretirement plan expenses, holding all other 
assumptions constant (in millions): 
 
         Impact on 2009
           Expense

25 basis point decrease in discount rate      +$0.9
25 basis point increase in discount rate      -$0.5
25 basis point decrease in expected return on assets      +$2.6
25 basis point increase in expected return on assets      -$2.6
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the total projected benefit obligations of the company’s pension and postretirement plans as of december 31, 2009 were $1.41 billion and $168.1 million, 
respectively. the company used weighted-average discount rates of 5.7% and 5.8% to determine the projected benefit obligations for the pension and 
postretirement plans, respectively, as of december 31, 2009. the following table illustrates the sensitivity to a change in certain assumptions for the 
projected benefit obligation for the pension and postretirement plans, holding all other assumptions constant (in millions) : 
 
         December 31, 2009
         Impact on PBO

25 basis point decrease in discount rate      +$49.1
25 basis point increase in discount rate      -$46.6

the company has $418.4 million (after-tax) of net unrecognized pension and other postretirement losses ($625.1 million pre-tax) included as a reduction 
to stockholders’ equity at december 31, 2009. the unrecognized gains and losses primarily result from changes to life expectancies and other actuarial assumptions, 
changes in discount rates as well as actual returns on plan assets being more or less than expected. the unrecognized gain (loss) for each plan is amortized 
to expense over the average life of each plan. the net amount amortized to expense totaled $7.3 million (pre-tax) in 2009, and amortization of unrecognized net 
losses is expected to continue to result in increases in pension and other postretirement plan expenses for the foreseeable future. changes in actuarial assumptions, 
actual returns on plan assets and changes in the actuarially determined average life of the plans impact the amount of unrecognized gain (loss) recognized as 
expense annually. 

NEw ACCOuNTINg PRONOuNCEMENTS 
in June 2009, the Financial accounting Standards board (“FaSb”) issued authoritative guidance changing the way entities account for securitizations and 
other transfers of financial instruments. in addition to increased disclosure, this guidance eliminates the concept of qualifying special purpose entities and 
changes the test for consolidation of variable interest entities. this guidance is effective for the company on January 1, 2010. the adoption of the authoritative 
guidance is not expected to have a material impact on the company’s financial statements. 

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS 
For the years ended december 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the company’s non-u.S. businesses accounted for approximately 30%, 31% and 28% of net sales, 
respectively (see Footnote 19 of the notes to consolidated Financial Statements). changes in both u.S. and non-u.S. net sales are shown below for the year 
ended december 31, (in millions, except percentages) : 
 
        2009 vs. 2008 2008 vs. 2007 
     2009 2008 2007 % Change % change

u.S.    $ 3,881.4 $ 4,447.2 $ 4,624.3 (12.7)% (3.8)%
non-u.S    1,696.2  2,023.4  1,783.0 (16.2) 13.5
     $ 5,577.6 $ 6,470.6 $ 6,407.3 (13.8)% 1.0%

 
the company’s office Products segment has operations in Venezuela, and the primary currency used by the Venezuelan operations to transact business is 

the Venezuelan bolivar. through december 1, 2009, the company used the official exchange rate in Venezuela to translate its Venezuelan operations’ financial 
statements into u.S. dollars, and using the official exchange rate, the Venezuelan operations generated net sales of approximately $65 million and operating 
income of approximately $25 million in 2009. based on the challenges the company has faced in repatriating Venezuelan earnings to the u.S. and other facts 
and circumstances, the company adopted the parallel rate to translate its Venezuelan financial statements into u.S. dollars effective december 1, 2009. 
in december 2009, the parallel exchange rate of Venezuelan bolivars to u.S. dollars was approximately three times the official rate. due solely to the change 
in exchange rates used to translate Venezuelan bolivar financial statements in december 2009 (i) net assets, including cash, declined approximately $30 million 
during the quarter ended december 31, 2009 and (ii) the company’s 2010 sales and operating income are anticipated to decline an estimated 1% and 3%, 
respectively, compared to the year ended december 31, 2009 due to the translation of the Venezuelan bolivar at the parallel rate. 

effective January 1, 2010, Venezuela’s economy has been characterized as highly inflationary because three-year cumulative inflation has exceeded 
100%. as a result, changes in the u.S. dollar value of the company’s Venezuelan bolivar net assets attributable to fluctuations in the parallel rate will be 
recorded as gains or losses in the statement of operations rather than in other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders’ equity. 

FAIR vALuE MEASuREMENTS 
Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Various valuation techniques exist for measuring fair value, including the market 
approach (comparable market prices), the income approach (present value of future income or cash flow), and the cost approach (cost to replace the service 
capacity of an asset or replacement cost). these valuation techniques are based upon observable and unobservable inputs. observable inputs reflect market 
data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect the company’s market assumptions. the authoritative accounting guidance for fair 
value provides a hierarchy that prioritizes these two inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels. 
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the following is a brief description of those three levels: 
•   level 1: observable inputs such as quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets. 
•   level 2: observable inputs other than quoted prices that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability, including quoted prices for similar 

assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for similar or identical assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations 
whose inputs are observable or whose significant value drivers are observable. 

•   level 3: unobservable inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions. 

the company’s assets and liabilities adjusted to fair value at least annually are its money market fund investments, included in cash and cash equivalents; 
mutual fund investments, included in other assets; and derivative instruments, primarily included in other assets, other accrued liabilities and other noncurrent 
liabilities, and these assets and liabilities are therefore subject to the measurement and disclosure requirements outlined in the authoritative guidance. the 
company determines the fair value of its money market fund investments based on the values of the underlying assets (level 2) and its mutual fund investments 
based on quoted market prices (level 1). the company generally uses derivatives for hedging purposes, and the company’s derivatives are primarily foreign 
currency forward contracts and interest rate swaps. the company determines the fair value of its derivative instruments based on level 2 inputs in the fair value 
hierarchy. level 2 fair value determinations are derived from directly or indirectly observable (market based) information. 

FORwARD-LOOkINg STATEMENTS 
Forward-looking statements in this Report are made in reliance upon the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities litigation Reform act of 1995. Such 
forward-looking statements may relate to, but are not limited to, information or assumptions about the effects of sales (including pricing), income/(loss), 
earnings per share, operating income or gross margin improvements or declines, Project acceleration, capital and other expenditures, working capital, cash 
flow, dividends, capital structure, debt to capitalization ratios, availability of financing, interest rates, restructuring, impairment and other charges, potential 
losses on divestitures, impact of changes in accounting standards, pending legal proceedings and claims (including environmental matters), future economic 
performance, costs and cost savings (including raw material and sourced product inflation, productivity and streamlining), synergies, management’s plans, 
goals and objectives for future operations, performance and growth or the assumptions relating to any of the forward-looking statements. these statements 
generally are accompanied by words such as “intend,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “project,” “target,” “plan,” “expect,” “will,” “should,” “would” or 
similar statements. the company cautions that forward-looking statements are not guarantees because there are inherent difficulties in predicting future 
results. actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements. important factors that could cause actual 
results to differ materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, the company’s dependence on the strength 
of retail, commercial and industrial sectors of the economy in light of the global economic slowdown; currency fluctuations; competition with other manufacturers 
and distributors of consumer products; major retailers’ strong bargaining power; changes in the prices of raw materials and sourced products and the company’s 
ability to obtain raw materials and sourced products in a timely manner from suppliers; the company’s ability to develop innovative new products and to develop, 
maintain and strengthen its end-user brands; the company’s ability to expeditiously close facilities and move operations while managing foreign regulations 
and other impediments; the company’s ability to manage successfully risks associated with divesting or discontinuing businesses and product lines; the 
company’s ability to implement successfully information technology solutions throughout its organization; the company’s ability to improve productivity and 
streamline operations; the company’s ability to refinance short-term debt on terms acceptable to it, particularly given the uncertainties in the global credit 
markets; changes to the company’s credit ratings; significant increases in the funding obligations related to the company’s pension plans due to declining 
asset values or otherwise; the imposition of tax liabilities greater than the company’s provisions for such matters; significant increases in costs to comply 
with changes in legal, employment, tax, environmental and other laws and regulations; the risks inherent in the company’s foreign operations and those matters 
set forth in this Report generally and item 1a to the company’s annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended december 31, 2009. in addition, there can be no 
assurance that the company has correctly identified and assessed all of the factors affecting the company or that the publicly available and other information 
the company receives with respect to these factors is complete or correct. 
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QuantitatiVe and QualitatiVe diScloSuReS about maRKet RiSK 
MARkET RISk 
the company’s market risk is impacted by changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and certain commodity prices. Pursuant to the company’s 
policies, natural hedging techniques and derivative financial instruments may be utilized to reduce the impact of adverse changes in rates and prices. the company 
does not hold or issue derivative instruments for trading purposes. 

Interest Rates 
interest rate risk is present with both fixed- and floating-rate debt. the company manages its interest rate exposure through its mix of fixed- and floating-rate 
debt and its conservative debt ratio target. interest rate swap agreements designated as fair value hedges are used to mitigate the company’s exposure to changes 
in the fair value of fixed-rate debt resulting from fluctuations in benchmark interest rates. accordingly, benchmark interest rate fluctuations impact the fair 
value of the company’s fixed-rate debt, which are offset by corresponding changes in the fair value of the swap agreements. interest rate swaps may also be 
used to adjust interest rate exposures when appropriate based on market conditions, and for qualifying hedges, the interest differential of swaps is included 
in interest expense. excluding debt for which a fixed rate has been swapped for a floating rate, fixed-rate debt represented approximately 45.0% of the 
company’s $2.51 billion of total debt as of december 31, 2009. 

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates 
the company is exposed to foreign currency risk in the ordinary course of business since a portion of the company’s sales, expenses and operating transactions 
is conducted on a global basis in various foreign currencies. to the extent that business transactions are not denominated in the functional currency of the entity 
entering into the transaction, the company is exposed to transactional foreign currency exchange rate risk. the company’s foreign exchange risk management 
policy emphasizes hedging anticipated intercompany and third-party commercial transaction exposures of one-year duration or less. the company uses foreign 
exchange forward contracts as economic hedges for commercial transactions and to offset the future impact of gains and losses resulting from changes in the 
expected amount of functional currency cash flows to be received or paid upon settlement of the anticipated intercompany and third party commercial transactions. 
Gains and losses related to the settlement of qualifying hedges of commercial and intercompany transactions are deferred and included in the basis of the 
underlying transactions. the company also uses natural hedging techniques such as offsetting or netting like foreign currency flows and denominating contracts 
in the appropriate functional currency. 

the company also incurs gains and losses recorded within shareholders’ equity due to the translation of the financial statements from the functional 
currency of its subsidiaries to u.S. dollars. the company utilizes capital structures of foreign subsidiaries combined with forward contracts to minimize its 
exposure to foreign currency risk. the company may hedge portions of its net investments in foreign subsidiaries, including intercompany loans, with forward 
contracts and cross-currency hedges. Gains and losses related to qualifying forward exchange contracts and cross-currency hedges, which are generally 
used to hedge intercompany loans and net investments in foreign subsidiaries, are recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). 

Commodity Prices 
the company purchases certain raw materials, including resin, corrugate, steel, stainless steel, aluminum and other metals, which are subject to price 
volatility caused by unpredictable factors. the company’s resin purchases are principally comprised of polyethylene and polypropylene in roughly equal 
quantities. While future movements of raw material costs are uncertain, a variety of programs, including periodic raw material purchases, purchases of raw 
materials for future delivery and customer price adjustments help the company address this risk. Where practical, the company uses derivatives as part of 
its risk management process. 

Financial Instruments 
in managing the impact of interest rate changes and foreign currency fluctuations, the company uses interest rate swaps, foreign currency forward contracts 
and cross-currency swaps. derivatives were recorded at fair value in the company’s consolidated balance Sheet at december 31, 2009 as follows (in millions) : 
 
Prepaid expenses and other $ 1.3 
other assets 20.9
other accrued liabilities (1.5)
other noncurrent liabilities (2.5)

See Footnote 11 of the notes to consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on derivatives. 
 



newell Rubbermaid inc. 2009 annual Report

38

value at Risk 
the amounts shown below represent the estimated potential economic loss that the company could incur from adverse changes in either interest rates or 
foreign exchange rates using the value-at-risk estimation model. the value-at-risk model uses historical foreign exchange rates and interest rates to estimate 
the volatility and correlation of these rates in future periods. it estimates a loss in fair market value using statistical modeling techniques that are based 
on a variance/covariance approach and includes substantially all market risk exposures (specifically excluding equity-method investments). the fair value 
losses shown in the table below represent the company’s estimate of the maximum loss that could arise in one day. the amounts presented in the table are 
shown as an illustration of the impact of potential adverse changes in interest and foreign currency exchange rates. the following table sets forth the one 
day value-at-risk as of and for the year ended december 31, (in millions, except percentages) : 

     2009 December 31, 2008 december 31, confidence
market Risk (1)  Average 2009 average 2008 level

interest rates  $ 12.2 $ 9.6 $ 12.2 $ 9.6 95%
Foreign exchange  $ 12.8 $ 12.3 $ 8.9 $ 15.3 95%

(1) the company generally does not enter into material derivative contracts for commodities; therefore, commodity price risk is not shown because the amounts are not material. 

the year-over-year decrease in the end of year value-at-risk in foreign exchange is primarily due to reduced volatility in foreign exchange rates in late 
2009 as well as declines in overall currency exposures. the 95% confidence interval signifies the company’s degree of confidence that actual losses would 
not exceed the estimated losses shown above. the amounts shown here disregard the possibility that interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates 
could move in the company’s favor. the value-at-risk model assumes that all movements in these rates will be adverse. actual experience has shown that 
gains and losses tend to offset each other over time, and it is highly unlikely that the company could experience losses such as these over an extended period 
of time. additionally, since the company operates globally, and therefore, among a broad basket of currencies, its foreign currency exposure is diversified. 
these amounts should not be considered projections of future losses, because actual results may differ significantly depending upon activity in the global 
financial markets. 
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manaGement’S ReSPonSibility FoR Financial StatementS and annual RePoRt  
on inteRnal contRol oVeR Financial RePoRtinG 

the management of newell Rubbermaid inc. is responsible for the accuracy and internal consistency of the consolidated financial statements and footnotes 
contained in this annual report. 
 the company’s management is also responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. newell Rubbermaid 
inc. operates under a system of internal accounting controls designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of published financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. the internal accounting control system is 
evaluated for effectiveness by management and is tested, monitored and revised as necessary. all internal control systems, no matter how well designed, 
have inherent limitations. therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial 
statement preparation and presentation. 
 the company’s management assessed the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting as of december 31, 2009. in making 
its assessment, the company’s management used the criteria set forth by the committee of Sponsoring organizations of the treadway commission (coSo) 
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework. 
 based on the results of its evaluation, the company’s management concluded that, as of december 31, 2009, the company’s internal control over 
financial reporting is effective based on those criteria. 
 the company’s independent registered public accounting firm, ernst & young llP, has audited the financial statements prepared by the management of 
newell Rubbermaid inc. and the effectiveness of newell Rubbermaid inc.’s internal control over financial reporting. their reports on the financial statements 
and on the effectiveness of newell Rubbermaid inc.’s internal control over financial reporting are presented herein. 

neWell RubbeRmaid inc.

atlanta, Georgia
march 1, 2010
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RePoRt oF indePendent ReGiSteRed Public accountinG FiRm 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Newell Rubbermaid Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of newell Rubbermaid inc. and subsidiaries as of december 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related 
consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the three years in the period 
ended december 31, 2009. these financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s management. our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public company accounting oversight board (united States). those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. an audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. an audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of newell Rubbermaid inc. and 
subsidiaries at december 31, 2009 and 2008, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
december 31, 2009, in conformity with u.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public company accounting oversight board (united States), newell Rubbermaid inc.’s internal 
control over financial reporting as of december 31, 2009, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the committee of 
Sponsoring organizations of the treadway commission and our report dated march 1, 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

atlanta, Georgia 
march 1, 2010 
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RePoRt oF indePendent ReGiSteRed Public accountinG FiRm  
on inteRnal contRol oVeR Financial RePoRtinG 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Newell Rubbermaid Inc. 

We have audited newell Rubbermaid inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of december 31, 2009, based on criteria established in 
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the committee of Sponsoring organizations of the treadway commission (the coSo criteria). newell Rubbermaid inc. 
and subsidiaries’ management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of 
internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements and annual Report on internal 
control over Financial Reporting. our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public company accounting oversight board (united States). those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material 
respects. our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

a company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. a company’s internal control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. also, projections of any evaluation of 
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

in our opinion, newell Rubbermaid inc. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of december 31, 2009, 
based on the coSo criteria. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public company accounting oversight board (united States), the consolidated balance sheets 
of newell Rubbermaid inc. and subsidiaries as of december 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity 
and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended december 31, 2009 of newell Rubbermaid inc. and subsidiaries 
and our report dated march 1, 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

atlanta, Georgia 
march 1, 2010 
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conSolidated StatementS oF oPeRationS
(Amounts in millions, except per share data)

year ended december 31,    2009 2008 2007

net sales       $ 5,577.6 $ 6,470.6 $ 6,407.3
cost of products sold      3,528.1  4,347.4  4,150.1

Gross margin      2,049.5  2,123.2  2,257.2
Selling, general and administrative expenses      1,374.6  1,502.7  1,430.9
impairment charges      —  299.4  —  
Restructuring costs      100.0  120.3  86.0

operating income      574.9  200.8  740.3
nonoperating expenses:
 interest expense, net of interest income of $6.3, $8.9 and $13.9 in 2009, 2008  
  and 2007, respectively      140.0  137.9  104.1
 other expense, net      6.7  59.1  4.2

net nonoperating expenses      146.7  197.0  108.3

income before income taxes      428.2  3.8  632.0
income taxes      142.7  53.6  149.7

income (loss) from continuing operations      285.5  (49.8)  482.3
loss from discontinued operations, net of tax      —  (0.5)  (12.1) 

net income (loss)      285.5  (50.3)  470.2
net income noncontrolling interests      —  2.0  3.1

net income (loss) controlling interests     $ 285.5 $ (52.3) $ 467.1

Weighted-average shares outstanding:
 basic        280.8  279.9  278.6
 diluted       294.4  279.9  287.6
 earning per share: 
  basic:
   income (loss) from continuing operations      $ 1.02 $ (0.18) $ 1.72
   loss from discontinued operations      —  —  (0.04) 
   net income (loss) controlling interests      $ 1.02 $ (0.18) $ 1.68
  diluted:
   income (loss) from continuing operations      $ 0.97 $ (0.18) $ 1.72
   loss from discontinued operations      —  —  (0.04) 
   net income (loss) controlling interests      $ 0.97 $ (0.18) $ 1.67
  dividends per share      $ 0.26 $ 0.84 $ 0.84

See notes to consolidated Financial Statements.
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conSolidated balance SHeetS
(Amounts in millions, except par values)

december 31,     2009 2008

Assets
current assets:
cash and cash equivalents        $ 278.3 $ 275.4
accounts receivable, net of allowances of $42.2 for 2009 and $40.6 for 2008      894.1  969.3
inventories, net        688.2  912.1
deferred income taxes        183.8  100.4
Prepaid expenses and other        137.7  136.6

 total current assets        2,182.1  2,393.8
Property, plant and equipment, net        578.1  630.7
Goodwill          2,754.3  2,698.9
other intangible assets, net        646.2  640.5
other assets        263.2  428.6

 total assets        $ 6,423.9 $ 6,792.5

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
current liabilities:
accounts payable        $ 433.6 $ 535.5
accrued compensation        176.4  79.5
other accrued liabilities        656.0  858.1
Short-term debt        0.6  8.3
current portion of long-term debt        492.9  752.7

 total current liabilities        1,759.5  2,234.1
long-term debt        2,015.3  2,118.3
deferred income taxes        0.3  — 
other noncurrent liabilities        866.6  851.5
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, authorized shares, 10.0 at $1.00 par value         —    — 
none issued and outstanding
common stock, authorized shares, 800.0 at $1.00 par value        294.0  293.1
outstanding shares, before treasury:
 2009 — 294.0
 2008 — 293.1
treasury stock, at cost:        (420.6)  (418.0)
Shares held:
 2009 — 16.2 
 2008 — 16.0
additional paid-in capital        669.8  606.7
Retained earnings        1,820.7  1,606.6
accumulated other comprehensive loss        (585.2)  (502.4)

 Stockholders’ equity attributable to Parent        1,778.7  1,586.0 
 Stockholders’ equity attributable to noncontrolling interests       3.5  2.6

 total Stockholders’ equity        1,782.2  1,588.6

 total liabilities and Stockholders’ equity        $ 6,423.9 $  6,792.5

See notes to consolidated Financial Statements.
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conSolidated StatementS oF caSH FloWS
(Amounts in millions)

year ended december 31,    2009 2008 2007

Operating Activities:
net income (loss)      $ 285.5 $ (50.3) $ 470.2
adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities: 
 depreciation and amortization      175.1  183.3  177.0
 non-cash restructuring costs      32.4  46.2  27.7
 deferred income taxes      14.9  8.7  (0.9) 
 loss on sale of assets      0.5  0.5  — 
 impairment charges      —  299.4  — 
 loss on disposal of discontinued operations      —  0.5  11.9
 Stock-based compensation expense      35.1  35.6  36.4 
 other, net      20.6  24.7  (44.7)
changes in operating assets and liabilities, excluding the effects of acquisitions:
 accounts receivable      98.0  168.3  (7.9) 
 inventories      243.1  30.9  (53.6)
 accounts payable      (103.6)  (105.5)  54.0
 accrued liabilities and other      (198.8)  (185.2)  (14.8) 
 discontinued operations      —  (2.2)  —  

net cash Provided by operating activities      $ 602.8 $ 454.9 $ 655.3 

Investing Activities:
acquisitions, net of cash acquired      $ (13.7) $ (655.7) $ (106.0) 
capital expenditures      (153.3)  (157.8)  (157.3) 
disposals of non-current assets and sales of businesses      17.6  9.4  (2.3)

net cash used in investing activities      $ (149.4) $ (804.1) $ (265.6)

Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of debt, net of debt issuance costs       $ 827.3 $ 1,318.0 $ 420.8
Proceeds from issuance of warrants      32.7  —    —
Purchase of call options      (69.0)  —    — 
Payments on notes payable and debt      (1,113.0)  (772.5)  (478.3)
cash dividends      (71.4)  (234.5)  (234.7)
Purchase of noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiaries     (29.2)  —    — 
other, net       (4.4)  (5.0)  25.4 

net cash (used in) Provided by Financing activities      $ (427.0) $ 306.0 $ (266.8)

currency rate effect on cash and cash equivalents      (23.5)  (10.6)  5.3 

increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents      2.9  (53.8)  128.2
cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year      275.4  329.2  201.0

cash and cash equivalents at end of year      $ 278.3 $ 275.4 $ 329.2

Supplemental cash flow disclosures — cash paid during the year for: 
 income taxes, net of refunds      $ 111.7 $ 96.9 $ 99.0
 interest       $ 120.6 $ 144.2 $ 135.5

See notes to consolidated Financial Statements.
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conSolidated StatementS oF StocKHoldeRS’ eQuity and comPReHenSiVe income (loSS)
(Amounts in millions)

      accumulated Stockholders’   
    additional  other equity  total 
  common treasury Paid-in Retained comprehensive attributable noncontrolling Stockholders’ 
  Stock Stock capital earnings loss to Parent interests equity

balance at december 31, 2006 $291.0 $(411.6) $505.0 $1,662.2 $(184.6) $1,862.0 $  5.6 $1,867.6
net income — — — 467.1 — 467.1 3.1 470.2
Foreign currency translation — — — — 28.2 28.2 — 28.2
unrecognized pension and other postretirement  
 benefits, net of $17.8 tax expense — — — — 26.3 26.3 — 26.3
Gain on derivative instruments, including $23.3  
 of tax benefits — — — — 6.9 6.9 — 6.9
total comprehensive income      $   528.5 $  3.1 $  531.6
cash dividends on common stock — — — (234.7) — (234.7) — (234.7)
cash dividends for noncontrolling interests — — — — — — (3.6) (3.6)
exercise of stock options 0.9 — 21.6 — — 22.5 — 22.5
Stock-based compensation and other 0.7 (3.5) 43.7 (0.1) — 40.8 (2.1) 38.7
balance at december 31, 2007 $292.6 $(415.1) $570.3 $1,894.5 $(123.2) $2,219.1 $  3.0 $2,222.1 

net (loss) income — — — (52.3) — (52.3) 2.0 (50.3)
Foreign currency translation — — — — (312.0) (312.0) — (312.0)
unrecognized pension and other postretirement costs,  
 net of $87.0 of tax benefits — — — — (107.4) (107.4) — (107.4)
Gain on derivative instruments, including $22.1 of  
 tax benefits — — — — 39.5 39.5 — 39.5
total comprehensive loss      $ (432.2) $  2.0 $   (430.2)
cash dividends on common stock — — — (234.5) — (234.5) — (234.5)
cash dividends for noncontrolling interests — — — — — — (3.0) (3.0)
exercise of stock options 0.1 — 2.3 — — 2.4 — 2.4
Pension adjustment, net of $0.2 of tax benefits — — — (1.1) 0.7 (0.4) — (0.4)
Stock-based compensation and other 0.4 (2.9) 34.1 — — 31.6 0.6 32.2
balance at december 31, 2008 $293.1 $(418.0) $606.7 $1,606.6 $(502.4) $1,586.0 $  2.6 $1,588.6 

net income — — — 285.5 — 285.5 — 285.5
Foreign currency translation, including $10.2 of  
 tax benefits  — — — — 75.9 75.9 — 75.9
unrecognized pension and other postretirement costs,  
 net of $17.4 of tax benefits — — — — (109.3) (109.3) — (109.3)
loss on derivative instruments, including $46.3 of  
 tax expense  — — — — (49.4) (49.4) — (49.4)
total comprehensive loss          $   202.7 $   — $   202.7 
cash dividends on common stock — — — (71.4) — (71.4) — (71.4)
cash dividends for noncontrolling interests — — — — — — (1.9) (1.9)
Stock-based compensation and other 0.9 (2.6) 34.7 — — 33.0 3.5 36.5
Purchase of call options, net of tax — — (43.0) — — (43.0) — (43.0)
issuance and sale of warrants — — 32.7 — — 32.7 — 32.7
discount on convertible notes, net of issuance costs and tax — — 41.0 — — 41.0 — 41.0
Purchase of noncontrolling interests — — (2.3) — — (2.3) (0.7) (3.0)
Balance at December 31, 2009 $294.0 $(420.6) $669.8 $1,820.7 $(585.2) $1,778.7 $  3.5 $1,782.2

See notes to consolidated Financial Statements.
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noteS to conSolidated Financial StatementS 
FOOTNOTE 1 
deScRiPtion oF buSineSS and SiGniFicant accountinG PolicieS 
Description of Business 
newell Rubbermaid (the “company”) is a global marketer of consumer and commercial products that touch the lives of people where they work, live and 
play. the company’s products are marketed under a strong portfolio of brands, including Rubbermaid®, Graco®, aprica®, levolor®, calphalon®, Goody®, 
Sharpie®, Paper mate®, dymo®, Parker®, Waterman®, irwin®, lenox® and technical concepts™. the company’s multi-product offering consists of well-known 
name-brand consumer and commercial products in three business segments: Home & Family; office Products; and tools, Hardware & commercial Products. 

Principles of Consolidation 
the consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the company, its majority owned subsidiaries and variable interest entities where the company 
is the primary beneficiary, after elimination of intercompany transactions.
 
use of Estimates 
the preparation of these financial statements requires the use of certain estimates by management in determining the company’s assets, liabilities, revenues 
and expenses and related disclosures. actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Reclassifications 
certain 2008 and 2007 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2009 presentation.

 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
the company sells products to customers in diversified industries and geographic regions and, therefore, has no significant concentrations of credit risk. 
the company continuously evaluates the creditworthiness of its customers and generally does not require collateral. 

the company evaluates the collectibility of accounts receivable based on a combination of factors. When aware of a specific customer’s inability to meet 
its financial obligations, such as in the case of bankruptcy filings or deterioration in the customer’s operating results or financial position, the company records 
a specific reserve for bad debt to reduce the related receivable to the amount the company reasonably believes is collectible. the company also records reserves 
for bad debt for all other customers based on a variety of factors, including the length of time the receivables are past due and historical collection experience. 
accounts are also reviewed for potential write-off on a case-by-case basis. accounts deemed uncollectible are written off, net of expected recoveries. if circumstances 
related to specific customers change, the company’s estimates of the recoverability of receivables could be further adjusted. 

the company’s forward exchange contracts, cross-currency interest rate swaps, and option contracts do not subject the company to risk due to foreign 
exchange rate movement, because gains and losses on these instruments generally offset gains and losses on the assets, liabilities, and other transactions 
being hedged. the company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of non-performance by counterparties to certain derivative financial instruments. 
the company does not obtain collateral or other security to support derivative financial instruments subject to credit risk, but monitors the credit standing 
of the counterparties. 

the credit exposure that results from commodity, interest rate, foreign exchange and other derivatives is the fair value of contracts with a positive fair 
value as of the reporting date. the credit exposure on the company’s interest rate and foreign currency derivatives at december 31, 2009 was $20.9 million 
and $1.2 million, respectively. the credit exposure associated with the convertible note hedge transactions is the value of the purchased call options, or 
$306.7 million as of december 31, 2009. the credit exposure on the company’s commodity derivatives at december 31, 2009 was immaterial. 

Sales Recognition 
Sales of merchandise and freight billed to customers are recognized when title passes and all substantial risks of ownership change, which generally occurs 
either upon shipment or upon delivery based upon contractual terms. Sales are net of provisions for cash discounts, returns, customer discounts (such as volume 
or trade discounts), cooperative advertising and other sales related discounts. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
cash and cash equivalents include cash on-hand and highly-liquid investments that have a maturity of three months or less when purchased. 

Inventories 
inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value using the last-in, first-out (liFo) or first-in, first-out (FiFo) methods (see Footnote 5 for additional 
information). the company reduces its inventory value for estimated obsolete and slow moving inventory in an amount equal to the difference between the 
cost of inventory and the net realizable value based upon estimates about future demand and market conditions. as of december 31, 2009 and 2008, the 
company’s reserves for excess and obsolete inventory and shrink reserves totaled $102.1 million and $101.9 million, respectively. if actual market conditions 
are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be required. 
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Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. depreciation expense is calculated 
principally on the straight-line basis. useful lives determined by the company are as follows: buildings and improvements (20-40 years) and machinery and 
equipment (3-12 years). 

goodwill and Other Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets 
the company conducts its annual test for impairment of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets in the third quarter because it coincides with its 
annual strategic planning process. 

the company evaluates goodwill for impairment annually at the reporting unit level, which is one level below the operating segment level. the company 
also tests for impairment if events and circumstances indicate that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is below its carrying amount. 
if the carrying amount of the reporting unit is greater than the fair value, impairment may be present. the company assesses the fair value of each reporting 
unit for its goodwill impairment test based on a discounted cash flow model, an earnings multiple or an actual sales offer received from a prospective buyer, if 
available. estimates critical to the company’s fair value estimates using earnings multiples include the projected financial performance of the reporting unit 
and the applicable earnings multiple. estimates critical to the company’s fair value estimates under the discounted cash flow model include the discount rate, 
projected average revenue growth, projected long-term growth rates in the determination of terminal values and product costs. 

the company measures the amount of any goodwill impairment based upon the estimated fair value of the underlying assets and liabilities of the 
reporting unit, including any unrecognized intangible assets, and estimates the implied fair value of goodwill. an impairment charge is recognized to the 
extent the recorded goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill. 

the company also evaluates indefinite-lived intangible assets (primarily trademarks and trade names) for impairment annually. the company also 
tests for impairment if events and circumstances indicate that it is more likely than not that the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset is below its 
carrying amount. estimates critical to the company’s evaluation of indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment include the discount rate, royalty rates 
used in its evaluation of trade names, projected average revenue growth and projected long-term growth rates in the determination of terminal values. an 
impairment charge is recorded if the carrying amount of an indefinite-lived intangible asset exceeds the estimated fair value on the measurement date. 

See Footnote 7 for additional detail on goodwill and other intangible assets.
 

Other Long-Lived Assets 
the company tests its other long-lived assets for impairment in accordance with relevant authoritative guidance. the company evaluates if impairment indicators 
related to its property, plant and equipment and other long-lived assets are present. these impairment indicators may include a significant decrease in the market 
price of a long-lived asset or asset group, a significant adverse change in the extent or manner in which a long-lived asset or asset group is being used or in its physical 
condition, or a current-period operating or cash flow loss combined with a history of operating or cash flow losses or a forecast that demonstrates continuing losses 
associated with the use of a long-lived asset or asset group. if impairment indicators are present, the company estimates the future cash flows for the asset or group of 
assets. the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows attributable to the asset or group of assets is compared to their carrying amount. the cash flows are estimated 
utilizing various projections of revenues and expenses, working capital and proceeds from asset disposals on a basis consistent with the strategic plan. if the carrying 
amount exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows, the company determines the assets’ fair value by discounting the future cash flows using a discount 
rate required for a similar investment of like risk and records an impairment charge as the difference between the fair value and the carrying value of the asset group. 
Generally, the company performs its testing of the asset group at the product-line level, as this is the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are available. 

Shipping and Handling Costs 
the company records shipping and handling costs as a component of cost of products sold. 
 
Product Liability Reserves 
the company has a self-insurance program for product liability that includes reserves for self-retained losses and certain excess and aggregate risk transfer 
insurance. the company uses historical loss experience combined with actuarial evaluation methods, review of significant individual files and the application of risk 
transfer programs in determining required product liability reserves. the company’s actuarial evaluation methods take into account claims incurred but not reported 
when determining the company’s product liability reserve. While the company believes that it has adequately reserved for these claims, the ultimate outcome of 
these matters may exceed the amounts recorded by the company, and such additional losses may be material to the company’s consolidated Financial Statements. 

Product warranties 
in the normal course of business, the company offers warranties for a variety of its products. the specific terms and conditions of the warranties vary 
depending upon the specific product and markets in which the products were sold. the company accrues for the estimated cost of product warranty at 
the time of sale based on historical experience. 

Advertising Costs 
the company expenses advertising costs as incurred. cooperative advertising with customers is recorded in the consolidated Financial Statements as a 
reduction of net sales and totaled $112.6 million, $143.2 million and $149.5 million for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. all other advertising costs are 
recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses and totaled $139.8 million, $201.2 million and $216.5 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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Research and Development Costs 
Research and development costs relating to both future and current products are charged to selling, general and administrative expenses as incurred. 
these costs totaled $118.4 million, $119.5 million and $111.2 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 

Derivative Financial Instruments 
derivative financial instruments are generally used to manage certain commodity, interest rate and foreign currency risks. these instruments primarily 
include interest rate swaps, cross-currency interest rate swaps, forward exchange contracts and options. the company’s forward exchange contracts, 
options and cross-currency interest rate swaps do not subject the company to exchange rate risk because gains and losses on these instruments generally 
offset gains and losses on the assets, liabilities, and other transactions being hedged. However, these instruments, when settled, impact the company’s 
cash flows from operations to the extent the underlying transaction being hedged is not simultaneously settled due to an extension, a renewal or otherwise. 

on the date in which the company enters into a derivative, the derivative is designated as a hedge of the identified exposure. the company measures 
effectiveness of its hedging relationships both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis. no material ineffectiveness was recorded on designated hedges 
in 2009, 2008 or 2007. 

Interest Rate Risk Management 
Gains and losses on interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges, to the extent that the hedge relationship has been effective, are deferred in other 
comprehensive income (loss) and recognized in interest expense over the period in which the company recognizes interest expense on the related debt 
instrument. any ineffectiveness on these instruments is immediately recognized in interest expense in the period that the ineffectiveness occurs. 

interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges include interest rate swaps on long-term debt, cross-currency interest rate swaps and forward 
exchange contracts. the company records the fair value of interest rate swaps on long-term debt as an asset or liability with a corresponding adjustment to 
the carrying value of the debt. any ineffectiveness on these instruments is immediately recognized in interest expense in the period that the ineffectiveness 
occurs. See foreign currency management below for discussion of cross-currency interest rate swaps and forward exchange contracts. 

Gains or losses resulting from the early termination of interest rate swaps are deferred as an increase or decrease to the carrying value of the related 
debt and amortized as an adjustment to the yield of the related debt instrument over the remaining period originally covered by the swap. the cash received 
or paid relating to the termination of interest rate swaps is included in other as an operating activity in the consolidated Statements of cash Flows. 

Foreign Currency Management 
the company utilizes forward exchange contracts and options to manage foreign exchange risk related to both known and anticipated intercompany transactions 
and third-party commercial transaction exposures of approximately one year in duration or less. For instruments designated as cash flow hedges, the effective 
portion of the changes in fair value of these instruments is reported in other comprehensive income (loss) and reclassified into earnings in the same period or 
periods in which the hedged transactions affect earnings. any ineffective portion is immediately recognized in earnings. For instruments designated as fair value 
hedges, the changes in fair value are reported in earnings, generally offsetting the change in value of the underlying instrument being hedged. 

the company has historically utilized cross-currency interest rate swaps to hedge long-term intercompany financing transactions. Gains and losses 
related to qualifying forward exchange contracts, which hedge certain anticipated transactions, are recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) until 
the underlying transaction occurs. 

the fair values of foreign currency hedging instruments are recorded in the captions Prepaid expenses and other, other assets, other accrued liabilities 
or other noncurrent liabilities in the consolidated balance Sheets depending on the maturity of the company’s cross-currency interest rate swaps and forward 
contracts at december 31, 2009 and 2008. the earnings impact of cash flow hedges relating to forecasted purchases of inventory is generally reported in cost 
of products sold to match the underlying transaction being hedged. For hedged forecasted transactions, hedge accounting is discontinued if the forecasted 
transaction is no longer probable of occurring, in which case previously deferred hedging gains or losses would be recorded to earnings immediately. 

Disclosures About Fair value of Financial Instruments 
the company’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, derivative instruments, convertible note hedge 
instruments, notes payable and short and long-term debt. the carrying values for current financial assets and liabilities, including cash and cash equivalents, 
accounts receivable and accounts payable, approximate fair value due to the short maturity of such instruments. the fair values of the company’s derivative 
instruments are recorded in the consolidated balance Sheets and are disclosed in Footnote 11. the fair values of the company’s convertible note hedge instruments 
are disclosed in Footnote 10. the fair values of certain of the company’s short and long-term debt are based on quoted market prices and are as follows (in millions): 

 
 2009  2008

      Fair value Book value  Fair Value book Value  

medium-term notes   $1,520.7 $1,426.6  $1,418.3 $1,572.3
Preferred securities underlying the junior convertible subordinated debentures 307.5 421.2  219.0 421.2
convertible notes   $  660.3 $ 284.3  n/a n/a

the carrying amounts of all other significant debt, including the term loan, approximate fair value. the term loan is not publicly traded and accordingly, 
the fair value of this instrument was determined using a discounted cash flow model and market rates of interest as of december 31, 2009. 
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Foreign Currency Translation 
assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into u.S. dollars at the rates of exchange in effect at year-end. the related translation adjustments 
are made directly to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). income and expenses are translated at the average monthly rates of exchange in effect 
during the year. Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions of these subsidiaries are included in net income (loss). international subsidiaries operating 
in highly inflationary economies remeasure nonmonetary assets at historical rates, while net monetary assets are remeasured at current rates, with the resulting 
remeasurememt adjustment included in net income (loss) as other expense, net. 

in december 2009, the company ceased the use of the official exchange rate to translate assets, liabilities and income (loss) for its operations in Venezuela 
and instead began using the parallel exchange rate because of the challenges the company has faced in repatriating Venezuelan earnings to the u.S. at the official 
exchange rate and other facts and circumstances. using predominantly the official rate for translation, the company’s Venezuelan operations generated net sales 
of approximately $65.0 million and operating income of approximately $25.0 million in 2009. effective January 2010, Venezuela is designated as a highly 
inflationary economy. 

the company designates certain foreign currency denominated, long-term intercompany financing transactions as economic hedges of net investments 
in foreign operations and records the gain or loss on the transaction arising from changes in exchange rates as a translation adjustment to the extent the 
intercompany financing arrangement is effective as a hedge. 

Income Taxes 
the company accounts for deferred income taxes using the asset and liability approach. under this approach, deferred income taxes are recognized based on the 
tax effects of temporary differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities, as measured by current enacted tax rates. Valuation 
allowances are recorded to reduce the deferred tax assets to an amount that will more likely than not be realized. no provision is made for the u.S. income taxes 
on the undistributed earnings of non-u.S. subsidiaries that are considered to be permanently invested. 

the company’s income tax provisions are based on calculations and assumptions that are subject to examination by the internal Revenue Service and 
other tax authorities. although the company believes that the positions taken on previously filed tax returns are reasonable, it has established tax and interest 
reserves in recognition that various taxing authorities may challenge the positions taken, which could result in additional liabilities for taxes and interest. 
the company regularly reviews its deferred tax assets for recoverability considering historical profitability, projected future taxable income, the expected timing 
of the reversals of existing temporary differences and tax planning strategies. 

the authoritative guidance requires application of a “more likely than not” threshold to the recognition and derecognition of tax positions. the company’s 
ongoing assessments of the more likely than not outcomes of tax authority examinations and related tax positions require significant judgment and can increase 
or decrease the company’s effective tax rate, as well as impact operating results. 

Stock-Based Compensation 
Stock-based compensation expense is adjusted for estimated forfeitures and is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the 
award, which is generally three to five years for stock options and three years for restricted stock, restricted stock units and performance share awards. 
the company estimates future forfeiture rates based on its historical experience. See Footnote 15 for additional information. 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss 
accumulated other comprehensive loss is recorded within stockholders’ equity and encompasses foreign currency translation adjustments, gains (losses) 
on derivative instruments and unrecognized pension and other postretirement costs. the following table displays the components of accumulated other 
comprehensive loss as of and for the year ended december 31, 2009 (in millions) : 

    Foreign unrecognized after-tax accumulated 
    currency Pension & other derivative other 
    translation Postretirement Hedging comprehensive 
    Gain (loss) costs, net of tax Gain (loss) loss

balance at december 31, 2008  $(242.2)  $ (309.1) $ 48.9   $(502.4)   
current-year change  75.9 (109.3) (49.4) (82.8)
Balance at December 31, 2009  $(166.3)   $(418.4) $ (0.5)   $(585.2)   
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Noncontrolling Interests 
in conjunction with its adoption of the Financial accounting Standards board’s (“FaSb”) accounting and disclosure guidance for noncontrolling interests, 
the company also adopted certain authoritative guidance applicable for all noncontrolling interests where the company is required to purchase noncontrolling 
interests in a consolidated subsidiary from the noncontrolling interest holder at a specified future date, and the purchase is outside of the company’s control. 
the company was required to purchase the noncontrolling interest in an international subsidiary at fair value, $28.2 million, in 2009. in connection with the 
adoption of this guidance, the consolidated balance Sheet as of december 31, 2008 has been adjusted to reflect the estimated fair value of the noncontrolling 
interest the company was required to purchase, $28.2 million, as an increase in other accrued liabilities and as a decrease in retained earnings. the following 
table summarizes the impact of the retrospective adoption of the accounting guidance on the company’s balance sheet as of december 31, 2008 (in millions) : 

       Stockholders’ 
       equity 
    other other  attributable to 
    accrued noncurrent Retained noncontrolling 
    liabilities liabilities earnings interests

december 31, 2008, as previously reported  $  829.9  $  854.1  $ 1,634.8  $ —  
minority interest (noncontrolling interests) in consolidated subsidiaries —  (2.6) —  2.6 
Fair value of noncontrolling interest the company is required to purchase 28.2  —  (28.2) —
december 31, 2008, as adjusted  $  858.1  $  851.5  $ 1,606.6  $ 2.6

 
in addition, retained earnings as of december 31, 2006 and 2007 has been adjusted to reflect the estimated fair value of the noncontrolling interest 

the company was required to purchase, $28.2 million, as a decrease in retained earnings. the following table summarizes the impact of the retrospective 
adoption of the accounting guidance on the company’s retained earnings as of december 31, 2007 and 2006 (in millions) : 

 
 2007 2006

     Stockholders’  Stockholders’ 
     equity  equity 
     attributable to  attributable to 
    Retained noncontrolling Retained noncontrolling 
    earnings interests earnings interests

as previously reported  $1,922.7   $ — $1,690.4  $ —
minority interest (noncontrolling interests) in consolidated subsidiaries —  3.0 —   5.6
Fair value of noncontrolling interest the company is required to purchase (28.2) — (28.2) —
as adjusted  $1,894.5  $3.0 $1,662.2  $5.6

 
Subsequent Events 
no significant events occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the issuance of the financial statements that would have a material 
impact on the consolidated Financial Statements. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
in June 2009, the FaSb issued authoritative guidance changing the way entities account for securitizations and other transfers of financial instruments. in 
addition to increased disclosure, this guidance eliminates the concept of qualifying special purpose entities and changes the test for consolidation of 
variable interest entities. this guidance is effective for the company on January 1, 2010. the adoption of the authoritative guidance is not expected to have 
a material impact on the company’s financial statements. 

FOOTNOTE 2 
acQuiSitionS 
Technical Concepts 
on april 1, 2008, the company acquired 100% of the outstanding limited liability company interests of technical concepts Holdings, llc (“technical concepts”) 
for $452.7 million, which includes transaction costs and the repayment of technical concepts’ outstanding debt obligations at closing. technical concepts provides 
touch-free and automated restroom hygiene systems in the away-from-home washroom category. the technical concepts acquisition gives the company’s 
Rubbermaid commercial Products business an entry into the away-from-home washroom market and fits within the company’s strategy of leveraging its existing 
sales and marketing capabilities across additional product categories. in addition, with approximately 40% of its sales outside the u.S., technical concepts 
increased the global footprint of the company’s Rubbermaid commercial Products business. 
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this acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and accordingly, the company allocated the total purchase price to the 
identifiable tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values on the date of acquisition. based on the 
purchase price allocation, the company allocated $48.1 million of the purchase price to identified tangible net assets and $93.5 million of the purchase 
price to identified intangible assets. the company recorded the excess of the purchase price over the aggregate fair values of $311.1 million as goodwill. 
technical concepts’ results of operations are included in the company’s consolidated Financial Statements since the acquisition date. Pro forma results of 
operations for historical periods would not be materially different and therefore are not presented. 

Aprica 
on april 1, 2008, the company acquired substantially all of the assets of aprica childcare institute aprica Kassai, inc. (“aprica”), a maker of strollers, car 
seats and other children’s products, headquartered in osaka, Japan. the company acquired aprica’s assets for $145.7 million, which includes transaction 
costs and the repayment of aprica’s outstanding debt obligations at closing. aprica is a Japanese brand of premium strollers, car seats and other related 
juvenile products. the acquisition provides the opportunity for the company’s baby & Parenting essentials business to broaden its presence worldwide, 
including expanding the scope of aprica’s sales outside of asia. the closing of the purchase of aprica’s operations in china occurred in october 2008, and 
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are included in the amount of net liabilities acquired and goodwill recorded in the aprica acquisition; however, 
the impact of the acquisition of aprica’s china operations did not significantly impact the overall aprica purchase price allocation. 

this acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and accordingly, the company allocated the total purchase price to the 
identifiable tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values on the date of acquisition. based on the 
purchase price allocation, the company allocated $(34.7) million of the purchase price to identified tangible net liabilities and $57.0 million of the purchase 
price to identified intangible assets. the company recorded the excess of the purchase price over the aggregate fair values of $123.4 million as goodwill. 
aprica’s results of operations are included in the company’s consolidated Financial Statements since the acquisition date. Pro forma results of operations 
for historical periods would not be materially different and therefore are not presented. 

Endicia 
on July 1, 2007, the company acquired all of the outstanding equity interests of PSi Systems, inc. (“endicia”), provider of endicia internet Postage, for $51.2 million 
plus related acquisition costs and contingent payments of up to $25.0 million based on future revenues. in 2009, the company paid $10.0 million of the contingent 
payments based on endicia’s revenues, and an additional $15.0 million may be paid in subsequent periods based on endicia’s future revenues. the acquisition of 
endicia, a leading provider of online postage, increases the company’s ability to leverage its other technology brands by developing a full range of innovative and 
integrated solutions for small and medium-sized businesses. this acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and accordingly, based 
on the company’s purchase price allocation, the company has recorded goodwill of $59.2 million in the consolidated balance Sheet at december 31, 2009. Pro forma 
results of operations for historical periods would not be materially different and therefore are not presented. 

endicia is party to a lawsuit filed against it alleging patent infringement which was filed on november 22, 2006 in the u.S. district court for the central district 
of california. in this case, Stamps.com seeks unspecified damages, attorneys’ fees and injunctive relief in order to prevent endicia from continuing to engage in activities 
that are alleged to infringe on Stamps.com’s patents. an unfavorable outcome in this litigation could materially adversely affect the endicia business. 

FOOTNOTE 3 
diScontinued oPeRationS 
the following table summarizes the results of businesses reported as discontinued operations for the years ended december 31, (in millions) : 

 
       2009 2008 2007

net sales    $ — $  — $   3.6
loss from operations of discontinued operations    $ — $  — $ (0.2)
loss on disposal of discontinued operations, net of income tax benefit of $ — million,  
 $0.5 million and $3.0 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively   — (0.5)  (11.9)
loss from discontinued operations, net of tax    $ — $  (0.5) $(12.1)

 
no amounts related to interest expense have been allocated to discontinued operations. 
in September 2006, the company entered into an agreement for the sale of portions of the Home décor europe business to a global manufacturer and marketer 

of window treatments and furnishings. the central and eastern european, nordic and Portuguese operations of this business were sold on december 1, 2006. 
the sale of the operations in Poland and the ukraine closed on February 1, 2007. in october 2006, the company received a binding offer for the sale of the Southern 
european region of the Home décor europe business to another party. the sale of the operations in France and Spain closed on January 1, 2007 and in italy on 
January 31, 2007. 

in connection with these transactions, the company recorded a loss of $10.0 million, net of tax, in 2007 to complete the divestiture of Home décor europe. 
the loss is reported in the table above as part of the loss on disposal of discontinued operations. 

the remainder of the loss on disposal of discontinued operations for 2008 and 2007, approximately $0.5 million and $1.9 million, net of tax, related to 
contingencies associated with other prior divestitures. 
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FOOTNOTE 4 
ReStRuctuRinG coStS 
in the third quarter of 2005, the company announced a global initiative referred to as Project acceleration aimed at strengthening and transforming the 
company’s portfolio. Project acceleration was designed to reduce manufacturing overhead, better align the company’s distribution and transportation 
processes to achieve logistical excellence, and reorganize the company’s overall business structure to align with the company’s core organizing concept, 
the global business unit, to achieve best total cost. in July 2008, the company expanded Project acceleration so that, in addition to the Plan’s original 
objectives, it provides for divesting, downsizing or exiting certain product categories to create a more focused and more profitable platform for growth 
by eliminating selected low-margin, commodity-like, mostly resin-intensive product categories and reduce the company’s exposure to volatile commodity 
markets, particularly resin. 

in total through december 31, 2009, the company has recorded $420.9 million of costs related to Project acceleration, of which $172.4 million related 
to facility and other exit costs, $187.4 million related to employee severance, termination benefits and employee relocation costs, and $61.1 million related 
to exited contractual commitments and other restructuring costs. 

the table below summarizes the restructuring costs recognized for Project acceleration restructuring activities for continuing operations for the years 
ended december 31, (in millions) : 

 
       2009 2008 2007

Facility and other exit costs      $ 32.4 $ 46.1 $27.7
employee severance, termination benefits and relocation costs    48.8 57.5 36.4
exited contractual commitments and other    18.8 13.6 21.9
       $100.0  $117.2(1) $86.0

(1)     during 2008, the company recorded $3.1 million of restructuring charges relating to its 2001 Restructuring Plan, which is not included in the table above but is included in total restructuring costs for the 
year ended december 31, 2008. 

Restructuring provisions were determined based on estimates prepared at the time the restructuring actions were approved by management, are periodically 
updated for changes and also include amounts recognized as incurred. costs incurred include cash payments and the impairment of assets associated with 
vacated facilities. impairments included in restructuring charges totaled $32.4 million, $46.1 million and $27.7 million for the years ended december 31, 2009, 
2008 and 2007, respectively. the impaired assets include vacated land and buildings, land and buildings for which a plan exists to vacate and dispose of the 
facility, and machinery and equipment to be sold or otherwise disposed of prior to the end of its original estimated useful life. the impairments primarily result 
from the consolidation of manufacturing activities as well as the increased use of sourcing partners. 

a summary of the company’s accrued restructuring reserves for continuing operations as of and for the years ended december 31, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively, is as follows (in millions) : 

 
    december 31,   December 31, 
    2008  costs 2009 
    balance Provision incurred Balance

Facility exit costs, including impairments  $ — $ 32.4 $ (32.4) $ —
employee severance and termination benefits  30.7 48.8 (56.2) 23.3
exited contractual commitments and other  20.3 18.8 (27.3) 11.8
       $51.0 $100.0 $(115.9) $35.1

 
    december 31,   december 31, 
    2007  costs 2008 
    balance Provision incurred balance

Facility exit costs, including impairments  $ — $ 46.1 $ (46.1) $   —
employee severance and termination benefits  22.5 57.5 (49.3) 30.7
exited contractual commitments and other  16.2 13.6 (9.5) 20.3   
     $38.7  $117.2 $(104.9) $51.0
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the table below shows restructuring costs recognized for Project acceleration restructuring activities for the years ended december 31, aggregated by 
reportable business segment (in millions) : 

 
Segment    2009 2008 2007

Home & Family    $ 24.0 $ 43.5 $ 5.5
office Products    34.8 35.6 45.0
tools, Hardware & commercial Products    16.6 20.4 30.4
corporate    24.6 17.7 5.1
       $100.0  $117.2 $86.0

 
the following table depicts the changes in accrued restructuring reserves for Project acceleration for the years ended december 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, 

aggregated by reportable business segment (in millions): 
 

    december 31,   December 31, 
    2008  costs 2009 
Segment balance Provision incurred Balance

Home & Family  $ 6.1  $ 24.0 $ (22.1) $ 8.0
office Products  17.5  34.8 (36.6) 15.7
tools, Hardware & commercial Products  16.5  16.6 (29.2) 3.9
corporate  10.9  24.6 (28.0) 7.5
     $51.0 $100.0 $(115.9) $35.1

 
    december 31,   december 31, 
    2007  costs 2008 
Segment balance Provision incurred balance

Home & Family  $ 0.8  $ 43.5 $ (38.2) $ 6.1
office Products  23.1  35.6 (41.2) 17.5
tools, Hardware & commercial Products  13.9  20.4 (17.8) 16.5
corporate  0.9  17.7 (7.7) 10.9
     $38.7   $117.2 $(104.9) $51.0

 
the table below shows total restructuring costs for Project acceleration since inception through december 31, 2009, aggregated by reportable business 

segment (in millions) : 
 

Segment      Provision

Home & Family      $131.1
office Products      162.7
tools, Hardware & commercial Products      78.9
corporate      48.2
           $420.9

 
cash paid for all restructuring activities was $84.0 million, $60.9 million and $53.1 million for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 
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FOOTNOTE 5 
inVentoRieS, net 
the components of net inventories were as follows as of december 31, (in millions) : 

 
         2009 2008

materials and supplies     $118.5 $143.3
Work in process     141.6 174.8
Finished products     428.1 594.0
        $688.2 $912.1

 
inventory costs include direct materials, direct labor and manufacturing overhead, or when finished goods are sourced, the cost is the amount paid to 

the third party. cost of certain domestic inventories (approximately 51.7% and 58.4% of gross inventory costs at december 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively) 
was determined by the liFo method; for the balance, cost was determined using the FiFo method. as of december 31, 2009 and 2008, liFo reserves were 
$24.2 million and $46.5 million, respectively. the income recognized by the company related to the liquidation of liFo-based inventories in 2009 was $16.9 million, 
and the income or cost recognized by the company related to the build-up or liquidation of liFo-based inventories in 2008 and 2007 was not material. 

 

FOOTNOTE 6 
PRoPeRty, Plant & eQuiPment, net 
Property, plant and equipment, net consisted of the following as of december 31, (in millions) : 

 
         2009 2008

land        $    39.4  $    44.4
buildings and improvements     414.7  412.8
machinery and equipment     1,723.5  1,795.0
        2,177.6  2,252.2
accumulated depreciation     (1,599.5) (1,621.5)
        $ 578.1 $ 630.7

 
depreciation expense was $122.1 million, $131.1 million and $143.2 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 
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FOOTNOTE 7 
GoodWill and otHeR intanGible aSSetS, net 
a summary of changes in the company’s goodwill by reportable business segment is as follows for the year ended december 31, (in millions) : 

 
   december 31,   Foreign December 31,
   2008  impairment currency and 2009
Segment balance acquisitions charges other (1) Balance

Home & Family  $  652.0 $ —  $ —  $ (3.3) $  648.7
office Products  1,088.4 —  —  61.1 1,149.5
tools, Hardware & commercial Products  958.5 —  —  (2.4) 956.1
     $2,698.9 $ —  $ —  $55.4 $2,754.3

 
    december 31,   Foreign december 31,
   2007  impairment currency and 2008
Segment balance acquisitions(2) charges (3) other  balance

Home & Family  $  495.7 $147.0  $    —  $   9.3 $   652.0
office Products  1,338.9 2.7  (169.5) (83.7) 1,088.4
tools, Hardware & commercial Products  774.1 317.8  (120.5) (12.9) 958.5
     $2,608.7 $467.5  $(290.0) $(87.3) $2,698.9

(1) office Products includes $10.0 million of contingent payments paid in 2009 based on endicia’s revenues. 
(2)  For Home & Family, represents aprica ($121.5 million) and other individually immaterial acquisitions ($25.5 million); for tools, Hardware & commercial Products, represents technical concepts ($317.8 million). 
(3) Represents non-cash goodwill impairment charges of $169.5 million and $120.5 million for the office Products and tools, Hardware & commercial Products segments, respectively. 

other intangible assets, net consisted of the following as of december 31, (in millions) : 
 

      2009 2008

    gross Carrying Accumulated Net Book Gross carrying accumulated net book
    Amount Amortization  value amount amortization  Value

trade names — indefinite life $320.5 $     N/A $320.5 $319.1 $ n/a $319.1
trade names — other 41.6 (18.9) 22.7 41.5 (14.1) 27.4
other (4)  469.6 (166.6) 303.0 406.3 (112.3) 294.0
    $831.7 $(185.5) $646.2 $766.9 $(126.4) $640.5

 
the table below summarizes the company’s amortization periods for other intangible assets, including capitalized software, as of december 31, 2009: 
 

 Weighted-average
 amortization amortization
 Period Periods

trade names — indefinite life      n/a n/a
trade names — other     11 years 5 — 20 years
other (4)      9 years 3 — 14 years
        9 years

(4) other consists primarily of capitalized software, patents and customer lists with net book values of $185.9 million, $44.8 million and $71.5 million, respectively. 
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amortization expense for intangible assets, including capitalized software, was $53.0 million, $52.2 million and $33.8 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 
as of december 31, 2009, the aggregate estimated intangible amortization amounts for the succeeding five years are as follows (in millions) : 
 

     2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

     $50.6 $42.7 $39.8 $33.9 $32.5

actual amortization expense to be reported in future periods could differ materially from these estimates as a result of acquisitions, changes in useful 
lives and other relevant factors. 

the adverse impact of the macroeconomic environment on the company during the fourth quarter of 2008 combined with the updated outlook for certain 
business units led the company to evaluate the carrying value of goodwill as of december 31, 2008. as a result of the evaluation of the company’s goodwill, 
the company recorded non-cash impairment charges of $299.4 million principally related to the goodwill impairment charges noted above. For purposes of 
determining the amount of the goodwill impairment charges, the fair values of the reporting units were determined using a discounted cash flow approach. 
no similar charges were recorded in 2009 or 2007. 

FOOTNOTE 8 

otHeR accRued liabilitieS 
accrued liabilities included the following as of december 31, (in millions) : 

 
         2009 2008

customer accruals     $237.5 $285.7
accruals for manufacturing, marketing and freight expenses     99.9 97.5
accrued self-insurance liability     82.5 82.4
accrued pension, defined contribution and other postretirement benefits    49.8 47.1
accrued contingencies, primarily legal, environmental and warranty    44.9 53.9
accrued restructuring (See Footnote 4)     33.3 51.7
accrued derivative related liabilities     1.5 130.1
accrual for purchase of noncontrolling interest in subsidiary (See Footnote 1)   — 28.2
other       106.6 81.5
other accrued liabilities     $656.0 $858.1

 
customer accruals are promotional allowances and rebates, including cooperative advertising, given to customers in exchange for their selling efforts 

and volume purchased. the self-insurance accrual is primarily casualty liabilities such as workers’ compensation, general and product liability and auto 
liability and is estimated based upon historical loss experience combined with actuarial evaluation methods, review of significant individual files and the 
application of risk transfer programs. 

  

FOOTNOTE 9 
debt 
the following is a summary of outstanding debt as of december 31, (in millions) : 

 
         2009 2008

medium-term notes (original maturities ranging from 5 to 10 years, average interest rate of 6.83%)  $1,426.6 $1,572.3
term loan     350.0 400.0
convertible notes     284.3 —
Floating rate note     — 448.0
Junior convertible subordinated debentures     436.7 436.7
other debt     11.2 22.3
total debt     2,508.8 2,879.3
Short-term debt     (0.6) (8.3)
current portion of long-term debt     (492.9) (752.7) 
long-term debt     $2,015.3 $2,118.3
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during 2008, the company’s average commercial paper obligations outstanding were $168.9 million at an average interest rate of 3.2%. the company 
had no commercial paper obligations outstanding during 2009. 

the aggregate maturities of debt outstanding, based on the earliest date the obligation may become due, are as follows as of december 31, 2009 (in millions): 
 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 thereafter total

 $493.5 $253.3 $264.0 $505.2 $1.0 $991.8 $2,508.8

Medium-Term Notes 
in march 2009, the company completed the offering and sale of $300.0 million aggregate principal amount of 10.60% senior unsecured notes with a maturity of 
april 15, 2019 (the “notes”). interest on the notes is payable semi-annually on april 15 and october 15. the company’s realized net proceeds from the offering 
of the notes of $290.2 million were used to complete the tender offers (as such term is defined below) and for general corporate purposes. the notes are unsecured 
and unsubordinated obligations of the company and equally ranked with all of its existing and future senior unsecured debt. the interest rate payable on the 
notes will be subject to adjustment if the debt rating assigned to the notes is downgraded (or downgraded and subsequently upgraded). the notes may be 
redeemed by the company at any time, in whole or in part, at a redemption price plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. the redemption price is equal 
to the greater of (1) 100% of the principal amount of the notes being redeemed or (2) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of 
principal and interest thereon (not including any portion of any payments of interest accrued through the date of the redemption), discounted to the date of 
redemption on a semi-annual basis at a specified rate. the notes also contain a provision that allows holders of the notes to require the company to repurchase 
all or any part of the notes if a change of control triggering event occurs. under this provision, the repurchase of the notes will occur at a purchase price of 101% 
of the outstanding principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on such notes to the date of purchase. the notes are classified as long-term debt in 
the company’s consolidated balance Sheet at december 31, 2009 based on their april 2019 maturity date. 

in 2009, the company conducted and completed tender offers through which it repurchased $180.1 million of the $250.0 million aggregate principal 
amount outstanding of 4.625% notes due december 2009 and $144.9 million of the $250.0 million aggregate principal amount outstanding of 4.000% 
notes due may 2010 (the “tender offers”). as a result of premiums paid and fees incurred associated with the tender offers, the company recorded a pre-
tax loss of $4.7 million which is included in other expense, net in the consolidated Statements of operations for the year ended december 31, 2009. the 
$329.7 million paid to complete the tender offers is included as payments on notes payable and debt in the consolidated Statement of cash Flows for the 
year ended december 31, 2009. the company also repaid the remaining $69.9 million principal amount outstanding of the $250.0 million 4.625% notes in 
december 2009. 

in march 2008, the company completed the offering and sale of senior unsecured notes, consisting of $500.0 million in 5.50% senior unsecured notes 
with a maturity of april 15, 2013 and $250.0 million in 6.25% senior unsecured notes with a maturity of april 15, 2018 (collectively, the “Senior unsecured 
notes”). interest on the Senior unsecured notes is payable semi-annually on april 15 and october 15. net proceeds from this offering were used to fund 
acquisitions, repay debt and for general corporate purposes. the Senior unsecured notes are unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the company 
and equally ranked with all of its existing and future senior unsecured debt. the Senior unsecured notes may be redeemed by the company at any time, in 
whole or in part, at a redemption price plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. the redemption price is equal to the greater of (i) 100% of the 
principal amount of the Senior unsecured notes being redeemed or (ii) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and 
interest thereon (not including any portion of any payments of interest accrued through the date of the redemption), discounted to the date of redemption 
on a semi-annual basis at a specified rate. the Senior unsecured notes also contain a provision that allows holders of the Senior unsecured notes to require 
the company to repurchase all or any part of the Senior unsecured notes if a change of control triggering event occurs. under this provision, the repurchase 
of the Senior unsecured notes will occur at a purchase price of 101% of the outstanding principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on such 
Senior unsecured notes to the date of purchase. the Senior unsecured notes are classified as long-term debt in the company’s consolidated balance Sheet 
at december 31, 2009 based on their april 2013 and april 2018 maturity dates. 

in July 2008, note holders owning $65.0 million of the company’s $75.0 million of outstanding medium-term notes, issued in July 1998 and due July 2028, 
exercised their put option, which entitled the holders of the notes to require the company to repay the notes at par. as a result, the company repaid $65.0 million 
of the outstanding notes in July 2008. the remaining $10.0 million were not put to the company and continue to bear interest at 6.11% through maturity in 
July 2028. the company utilized its commercial paper program to fund the redemption of the notes. the $10.0 million of outstanding notes are classified as 
long-term debt in the company’s consolidated balance Sheet at december 31, 2009 based on their July 2028 maturity date. 

in July 2008, the company redeemed its $250.0 million of Reset notes due July 2028, and recorded a loss on the extinguishment of the Reset notes of 
$52.2 million associated with the purchase of the remarketing option embedded in the Reset notes. the company utilized its commercial paper program to 
fund the redemption of the Reset notes and the purchase of the remarketing option. the loss on extinguishment of $52.2 million is included in other expense, 
net in the consolidated Statement of operations for 2008. the $302.2 million aggregate amount paid to redeem the Reset notes is included as payments 
on notes payable and long-term debt in the consolidated Statement of cash Flows for 2008. the company did not have any Reset notes outstanding as of 
december 31, 2008 or december 31, 2009. 

the company also has two additional series of medium-term notes with aggregate principal amounts of $105.1 million and $250.0 million outstanding 
with coupon rates of 4% and 6.75%, respectively, that mature in may 2010 and march 2012, respectively.
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Interest Rate Swaps 
as of december 31, 2009, the company had entered into fixed-for-floating interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges. the interest rate swaps relate 
to $1.0 billion of the principal amount of the medium-term notes and result in the company effectively paying a floating rate of interest on the medium-term notes 
subject to the interest rate swaps. the medium-term notes balance at december 31, 2009 and 2008 include mark-to-market adjustments of $18.4 million and 
$62.3 million, respectively, to record the fair value of the hedges of the fixed-rate debt, and the mark-to-market adjustments had the effect of increasing the 
reported value of the medium-term notes. 

Convertible Notes 
in march 2009, the company issued $345.0 million convertible senior notes (the “convertible notes”). the convertible notes bear interest at a rate of 5.5% 
per year, which is payable semi-annually, and the convertible notes mature on march 15, 2014. the convertible notes are convertible at an initial conversion 
rate of 116.198 shares of the company’s common stock per $1,000 principal amount of convertible notes (representing an initial conversion price of 
approximately $8.61 per share of common stock), subject to adjustment in certain circumstances. upon conversion, a holder will receive cash up to the 
aggregate principal amount of the convertible notes converted, and cash, shares of common stock or a combination thereof (at the company’s election) in 
respect of the conversion value above the convertible notes’ principal amount, if any. the conversion obligation is based on the sum of the “daily settlement 
amounts” for the 40 consecutive trading days that (i) begin on, and include, the second trading day after the day the convertible notes are surrendered for 
conversion if the relevant conversion date occurs prior to november 15, 2013, or (ii) begin on, and include, the 42nd scheduled trading day immediately 
preceding march 15, 2014, if the relevant conversion date occurs on or after november 15, 2013. 

the convertible notes will be convertible only in the following circumstances: (i) during any calendar quarter (and only during such calendar quarter), 
if the last reported sale price of the company’s common stock for at least 20 trading days in a period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading 
day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter is greater than or equal to 130% of the conversion price (initially $11.19) in effect on each applicable 
trading day; (ii) during the five business day period after any 10 consecutive trading day period in which the trading price per $1,000 principal amount of 
convertible notes for each trading day of the period was less than 98% of the product of the last reported sale price of the company’s common stock and the 
applicable conversion rate on each such day; (iii) upon the occurrence of specified corporate events; and (iv) at any time from, and including, november 15, 
2013 through the second scheduled trading day immediately preceding march 15, 2014, the maturity date of the convertible notes. 

because the last reported sale price of the company’s common stock exceeded $11.19 for at least 20 of the last 30 consecutive trading days in the three 
months ended december 31, 2009, the convertibles notes are convertible at the election of the holders of the convertible notes at any time during the three 
months ending march 31, 2010. Since conversion of the convertible notes is outside the control of the company, the convertible notes are classified as current 
portion of long-term debt in the consolidated balance Sheet at december 31, 2009. Holders electing to convert the convertible notes would receive cash up to 
the aggregate principal amount of the convertible notes converted, and cash, shares of common stock or a combination thereof (at the company’s election) 
in respect of the conversion value above the convertible notes’ principal amount. based on the closing price of the company’s common stock on december 31, 
2009 of $15.01 per share, approximately $256.7 million (in addition to the principal amount) would be due to the holders of the convertible notes upon 
conversion if the holders elected to convert the convertible notes. the amount could be paid in cash or shares of the company’s stock or a combination 
thereof, at the company’s option. the company entered into convertible note hedge transactions to reduce the company’s cost of the conversion option. 
See Footnote 10 for more information. 

Holders of the convertible notes may require the company to purchase all or a portion of the convertible notes at a price equal to 100% of the principal 
amount of the convertible notes to be purchased, plus accrued and unpaid interest, in cash, upon the occurrence of certain fundamental changes involving 
the company. net proceeds from this offering were used to complete the convertible note hedge transactions (see Footnote 10) and the tender offers and to 
repay debt and for general corporate purposes. 

accounting standards require the company, as issuer of the convertible notes, to separately account for the liability and equity components of the 
convertible notes in a manner that reflects the company’s nonconvertible debt borrowing rate at the date of issuance when interest cost is recognized in 
subsequent periods. the company allocated $69.0 million of the $345.0 million principal amount of the convertible notes to the equity component, which 
represents a discount to the debt and will be amortized into interest expense using the effective interest method through march 2014. accordingly, the 
company’s effective interest rate on the convertible notes is 10.8%, so the company will recognize interest expense during the twelve months ending 
december 31, 2010 on the convertible notes in an amount that approximates 10.8% of $284.3 million, the liability component of the convertible notes 
at december 31, 2009. the interest expense recognized for the convertible notes in the twelve months ending december 31, 2011 and subsequent periods 
will be greater as the discount is amortized and the effective interest method is applied. 

Term Loan 
in September 2008, the company entered into a $400.0 million credit agreement (the “agreement”), under which the company received an unsecured 
three-year term loan in the amount of $400.0 million (the “term loan”). the company is required to repay the outstanding principal amount of the term 
loan of $350.0 million at december 31, 2009 according to the following schedule: $100.0 million in September 2010 and $250.0 million in September 2011, 
the maturity date. borrowings under the agreement bear interest at a rate of liboR plus a spread that is determined based on the credit rating of the 
company, and interest is payable quarterly. the $350.0 million of outstanding borrowings under the agreement at december 31, 2009 bear interest at a 
weighted-average interest rate of 2.5%. the agreement has covenants similar to those in the company’s syndicated revolving credit facility, including, 
among other things, the maintenance of interest coverage and total indebtedness to total capital ratios and a limitation on the amount of indebtedness 
subsidiaries may incur, and the company was in compliance with such covenants as of december 31, 2009. net proceeds from the term loan were used to 
repay outstanding commercial paper and for general corporate purposes. 
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Receivables-Related Borrowings 
under a 2001 receivables facility with a financial institution, the company created a financing entity that is consolidated in the company’s financial statements. 
under this facility, the company regularly entered into transactions with the financing entity to sell an undivided interest in substantially all of the company’s 
u.S. trade receivables to the financing entity. in 2001, the financing entity issued $450.0 million in preferred debt securities to the financial institution. in September 2006, 
in accordance with the terms of the receivables facility, the financing entity caused the outstanding preferred debt securities to be exchanged for a two-year 
floating rate note in an aggregate principal amount of $448.0 million (the “note”) and other consideration, and in 2008 the maturity date of the note was 
extended from September 2008 to September 2009. the note was repaid in September 2009, at which time, the company was able to access the financing 
entity’s receivables that secured the note. 

in September 2009, the company completed a new 364-day receivables facility that provides for borrowings of up to $200.0 million and expires in 
September 2010. under this facility, the company and certain operating subsidiaries (collectively, “the originators”) sell their receivables to a financing 
subsidiary as the receivables are originated. the financing subsidiary is wholly owned by the company and is the owner of the purchased receivables and the 
borrower under the facility. the assets of the financing subsidiary are restricted as collateral for the payment of debt or other obligations arising under the 
facility, and the financing subsidiary’s assets and credit are not available to satisfy the debts and obligations owed to the company’s or any other originator’s 
creditors. the company includes the financing subsidiary’s assets and liabilities in its consolidated financial statements. the facility requires, among other 
things, that the company maintain certain interest coverage and total indebtedness to total capital ratios, and the company was in compliance with such 
requirements as of december 31, 2009. as of december 31, 2009, $562.2 million of outstanding accounts receivable were owned by the financing subsidiary, 
and these amounts are included in accounts receivable, net in the company’s consolidated balance Sheet at december 31, 2009. the amount that may be 
borrowed under the facility is subject to various limitations based on the character of the receivables owned by the financing subsidiary. as of december 31, 
2009, no amounts were outstanding under the facility and $188.8 million was available for borrowing. 

Revolving Credit Facility and Commercial Paper 
on november 14, 2005, the company entered into a syndicated revolving credit facility (the “Revolver”). the Revolver expires in november 2012. the company 
currently has $690.0 million available for borrowing under the Revolver (in november 2010, the availability is reduced to $665.0 million). at december 31, 2009 
and 2008, there were no borrowings under the Revolver. the Revolver permits the company to borrow funds on a variety of interest rate terms. the Revolver 
requires, among other things, that the company maintain certain interest coverage and total indebtedness to total capital ratios, as defined in the agreement. 
the Revolver also limits the amount of indebtedness subsidiaries may incur. as of december 31, 2009, the company was in compliance with the provisions of 
the agreement governing the Revolver. 

in lieu of borrowings under the Revolver, the company may issue up to $690.0 million of commercial paper. the Revolver provides the committed backup 
liquidity required to issue commercial paper; however, access to the commercial paper markets is dependent on the company’s short-term debt credit ratings. 
accordingly, commercial paper may only be issued up to the amount available for borrowing under the Revolver. the Revolver also provides for the issuance of 
up to $100.0 million of standby letters of credit so long as there is a sufficient amount available for borrowing under the Revolver. there was no commercial 
paper outstanding at december 31, 2009 and 2008. there were no standby letters of credit issued under the Revolver for either period. 

Junior Convertible Subordinated Debentures 
in 1997, a 100% owned finance subsidiary (the “Subsidiary”) of the company issued 10.0 million shares of 5.25% convertible preferred securities (the “Preferred 
Securities”). Holders of the Preferred Securities are entitled to cumulative cash dividends of 5.25% of the liquidation preference of $50 per Preferred Security, or 
$2.625 per year. each of these Preferred Securities is convertible into 0.9865 of a share of the company’s common stock. during 2005 and 2004, the company 
purchased an aggregate of 1.6 million shares of its Preferred Securities from holders at an average price of $45.27 per share ($71.3 million). as of december 31, 
2009, the company fully and unconditionally guarantees the 8.4 million shares of the Preferred Securities issued by the Subsidiary that were outstanding as of 
that date, which are callable at 100% of the liquidation preference of $421.2 million. 

the proceeds received by the Subsidiary from the issuance of the Preferred Securities were invested in the company’s 5.25% Junior convertible 
Subordinated debentures (the “debentures”). in addition, the Subsidiary received approximately $15.5 million of the company’s debentures as payment for 
a $15.5 million loan the company borrowed from the Subsidiary to purchase 100% of the common equity interests in the Subsidiary. as a result, the company 
issued an aggregate of $515.5 million of debentures, and the Subsidiary is the sole holder of the debentures. the debentures are the sole assets of the 
Subsidiary, mature on december 1, 2027, bear interest at an annual rate of 5.25%, are payable quarterly and became redeemable by the company beginning 
in december 2001. the company may defer interest payments on the debentures for a period of up to 20 consecutive quarters, during which period distribution 
payments on the Preferred Securities are also deferred. under this circumstance, the company may not declare or pay any cash distributions with respect to its 
common or preferred stock or debt securities that do not rank senior to the debentures. the Preferred Securities are mandatorily redeemable upon the repayment 
of the debentures at maturity or upon acceleration of the debentures. as of december 31, 2009, the company has not elected to defer interest payments. in connection 
with the company’s purchase of the Preferred Securities in 2005 and 2004, the company negotiated the early retirement of the corresponding debentures 
with the Subsidiary. the company accounted for these transactions as extinguishments of debt, which resulted in $436.7 million of debentures outstanding 
as of december 31, 2009. 
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FOOTNOTE 10 
conVeRtible note HedGe and WaRRant tRanSactionS 
in connection with the issuance of the convertible notes, the company entered into separate convertible note hedge transactions and warrant transactions 
with respect to the company’s common stock to minimize the impact of the potential dilution upon conversion of the convertible notes. the company 
purchased call options in private transactions to cover 40.1 million shares of the company’s common stock at an exercise price of $8.61 per share, subject 
to adjustment in certain circumstances, for $69.0 million. the call options generally allow the company to receive shares of the company’s common stock 
from counterparties equal to the number of shares of common stock payable to the holders of the convertible notes upon conversion. these call options will 
terminate the earlier of the maturity date of the related convertible notes or the first day all of the related convertible notes are no longer outstanding due 
to conversion or otherwise. as of december 31, 2009, the estimated fair value of the call options was $306.7 million. 

 the company also sold warrants permitting the purchasers to acquire up to 40.1 million shares of the company’s common stock at an exercise price 
of $11.59 per share, subject to adjustment in certain circumstances, in private transactions for total proceeds of $32.7 million. the warrants expire over a 
period of seventy-five trading days beginning on June 13, 2014 and are european-style warrants (exercisable only upon expiration). For each warrant that is 
exercised, the company will deliver to the counterparties a number of shares of the company’s common stock equal to the amount by which the company’s 
stock price exceeds the exercise price, divided by the stock price. the company will not be required to deliver a number of the company’s shares in connection 
with the net settlement of the warrants in excess of the aggregate number of shares subject to the warrants, or 40.1 million shares of the company’s common 
stock. as of december 31, 2009, the estimated fair value of the warrants to the holders was $238.9 million. 

the company has analyzed the convertible note hedge transactions and warrant transactions under the applicable authoritative guidance, and the 
company determined that they meet the criteria for classification as equity transactions. as a result, the company recorded the purchase of the call options 
as a reduction in additional paid-in capital, net of tax, and the proceeds from the warrants as an increase to additional paid-in capital, and the company 
does not recognize subsequent changes in the fair value of the instruments in its financial statements. 

FOOTNOTE 11 
deRiVatiVe Financial inStRumentS 
the use of financial instruments, including derivatives, exposes the company to market risk related to changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange 
rates and commodity prices. the company enters into interest rate swaps related to debt obligations with maturity dates ranging from five to ten years. 
the company uses interest rate swap agreements to manage its interest rate exposure and to achieve a desired proportion of variable and fixed-rate debt. 
these derivatives are designated as fair value hedges based on the nature of the risk being hedged. the company also uses derivative instruments, such as 
forward contracts, to manage the risk associated with the volatility of future cash flows denominated in foreign currencies and changes in fair value resulting 
from changes in foreign currency exchange rates. the company’s foreign exchange risk management policy generally emphasizes hedging transaction 
exposures of one-year duration or less and hedging foreign currency intercompany financing activities with derivatives with maturity dates of one year or less. 
the company uses derivative instruments to hedge various foreign exchange exposures, including the following: (i) variability in foreign currency-denominated 
cash flows, such as the hedges of inventory purchases for products produced in one currency and sold in another currency and (ii) currency risk associated 
with foreign currency-denominated operating assets and liabilities, such as forward contracts and other instruments that hedge cash flows associated with 
intercompany financing activities. additionally, the company purchases certain raw materials which are subject to price volatility caused by unpredictable 
factors. Where practical, the company uses derivatives as part of its commodity risk management process. the company reports its derivative positions in 
the consolidated balance Sheets on a gross basis and does not net asset and liability derivative positions with the same counterparty. the company monitors 
its positions with, and the credit quality of, the financial institutions that are parties to its financial transactions. 

derivative instruments are accounted for at fair value. the accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative depends on the intended use and 
designation of the derivative instrument. For a derivative instrument that is designated and qualifies as a fair value hedge, the gain or loss on the derivative 
as well as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in current earnings. For derivative instruments that 
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative is initially reported as a component of accumulated 
other comprehensive income (loss) (“aoci”), net of tax, and is subsequently reclassified into earnings when the hedged transaction affects earnings. the 
ineffective portion of the gain or loss is recognized in current earnings. For derivatives designated as qualifying hedges of net investments, the gain or loss 
on the instruments is recognized in aoci. Gains and losses from changes in fair values of derivatives that are not designated as hedges for accounting 
purposes are recognized currently in earnings, and such amounts were not material for the year ended december 31, 2009. 
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the following table summarizes the company’s outstanding derivative instruments and their effects on the consolidated balance Sheet as of 
december 31, 2009 (in millions) : 

 
 assets liabilities

derivatives designated as hedging instruments  balance Sheet location Fair Value balance Sheet location Fair Value  

interest rate swaps other assets $20.9 other noncurrent liabilities $2.5
Foreign exchange contracts on inventory-related purchases Prepaid expenses and other 0.6 other accrued liabilities 1.5 
Foreign exchange contracts on intercompany borrowings Prepaid expenses and other 0.7 other accrued liabilities —  
    total assets $22.2 total liabilities $4.0

 
the fair values of outstanding derivatives that are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes were not material as of december 31, 2009. 

the company is a party to an interest rate swap in an asset position for which settlement could be accelerated if the company’s credit rating falls below investment 
grade. the company is not a party to any derivatives that require collateral to be posted prior to settlement. 

Fair value Hedges 
the pre-tax effects of derivative instruments designated as fair value hedges on the company’s consolidated Statements of operations for the year ended 
december 31, 2009 were as follows (in millions) : 

 
      location of gain (loss) net gain (loss)
instruments in fair value relationships   recognized in income recognized in income

interest rate swaps    interest expense, net $(43.9)
Fixed-rate debt    interest expense, net $  43.9

 
the company did not record any ineffectiveness related to fair value hedges during the year ended december 31, 2009. 

Cash Flow Hedges 
the pre-tax effects of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges on the company’s consolidated Statements of operations and aoci for the 
year ended december 31, 2009 were as follows (in millions) : 
 
     Gain (loss) Gain (loss)
    location of gain (loss) reclassified from recognized
derivatives in cash flow hedging relationships recognized in income aoci into income in aoci 

Foreign exchange contracts on inventory related purchases cost of products sold $(2.6) $(9.5)
Foreign exchange contracts on intercompany borrowings interest expense, net 2.5 7.7
commodity contracts  cost of products sold (0.2) —
       $(0.3) $(1.8)

 
the company did not record any ineffectiveness related to cash flow hedges during the year ended december 31, 2009. 
the company paid approximately $109.0 million to settle foreign exchange contracts on intercompany borrowings during the year ended december 31, 2009, 

and such amount is included in changes in accrued liabilities and other in the consolidated Statement of cash Flows for the year ended december 31, 2009. 
the company estimates that during the next 12 months it will reclassify net losses of approximately $0.9 million included in the pre-tax amount 

recorded in aoci as of december 31, 2009 into earnings, as the anticipated cash flows occur. 
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Net Investment Hedges 
the company enters into cross-currency interest rate swaps associated with investments and intercompany borrowings designated as investments in non-u.S. 
subsidiaries. effective changes in the fair value of the currency agreements resulting from changes in the spot non-u.S. currency exchange rate are recognized 
in aoci in the consolidated balance Sheets to offset the change in the carrying value of the investment being hedged. any changes in the fair value of these 
hedges that are the result of ineffectiveness are recognized immediately in interest expense, net in the consolidated Statements of operations. 

the following table summarizes the pre-tax effects of instruments outstanding during the year ended december 31, 2009 designated as hedges of 
investments (in millions) : 

 
      Gain (loss)
      reclassified from Gain (loss)
derivatives in cash flow hedging relationships   aoci into income recognized in aoci

cross-currency interest rate swaps     — $(4.4)

the company paid approximately $17.6 million to settle cross-currency interest rate swaps during the year ended december 31, 2009, and such amount is 
included in changes in accrued liabilities and other in the consolidated Statement of cash Flows for the year ended december 31, 2009. as of december 31, 2009, 
the company was not a party to any cross-currency interest rate swaps. 

the company did not record any ineffectiveness related to derivative and non-derivative instruments designated as hedges of investments during the 
year ended december 31, 2009. 

FOOTNOTE 12 
commitmentS 
Lease Commitments 
the company leases manufacturing, warehouse and other facilities, real estate, transportation, and data processing and other equipment under leases that 
expire at various dates through the year 2020. Rent expense, which is recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term, was $120.2 million, 
$129.2 million and $109.7 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 

Future minimum rental payments for operating leases with initial or remaining terms in excess of one year are as follows as of december 31, 2009 (in millions): 
 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 thereafter total

 $96.5 $77.3 $60.4 $43.6 $35.8 $90.7 $404.3

Purchase Obligations 
the company enters into certain obligations to purchase finished goods, raw materials, components and services pursuant to legally enforceable and 
binding obligations, which include all significant terms. 

as of december 31, 2009, the company’s future estimated total purchase obligations are as follows (in millions) : 
 

    2010 2011 2012 total

    $340.9  $45.3 $28.4 $414.6
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FOOTNOTE 13 
emPloyee beneFit and RetiRement PlanS 
the company and its subsidiaries have noncontributory pension, profit sharing and contributory 401(k) plans covering substantially all of their international 
and domestic employees. Plan benefits are generally based on years of service and/or compensation. the company’s funding policy is to contribute not less 
than the minimum amounts required by the employee Retirement income Security act of 1974, as amended, the internal Revenue code of 1986, as amended, 
or foreign statutes to assure that plan assets will be adequate to provide retirement benefits. 

included in aoci at december 31, 2009 is $625.1 million ($418.4 million net of tax) related to net unrecognized actuarial losses and unrecognized prior 
service credit that have not yet been recognized in net periodic pension cost. the company expects to recognize $13.0 million ($8.8 million net of tax) of 
costs in 2010 associated with net actuarial losses and prior service credit. 

effective January 1, 2008, the company prospectively adopted updated authoritative guidance applicable to the measurement date provisions for defined 
benefit plans, which requires the measurement date for defined benefit plan assets and obligations to coincide with the date of the employer’s fiscal year end 
balance sheets, which for the company is december 31. the company had historically measured defined benefit plan assets and liabilities for the majority of 
its plans on September 30 for its year-end consolidated balance Sheets. the impact on the consolidated Financial Statements of the adoption of the change 
in measurement date for the company’s defined benefit and postretirement plans with September 30 plan year-ends resulted in an adjustment to decrease 
retained earnings at January 1, 2008 by $1.1 million and an after-tax benefit to aoci of $0.7 million. 

the company’s tax-qualified defined benefit pension plan is frozen for the entire non-union u.S. work force, and the company has replaced the defined 
benefit pension plan with an additional defined contribution benefit. the defined contribution benefit has a three-year cliff-vesting schedule. the company 
recorded $17.3 million, $19.4 million and $19.9 million in expense for the defined contribution benefit arrangement for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 
the liability associated with the defined contribution benefit arrangement as of december 31, 2009 and 2008 is $17.3 million and $19.4 million, 
respectively, and is included in other accrued liabilities in the consolidated balance Sheets. 

as of december 31, 2009 and 2008, the company maintained various non-qualified deferred compensation plans with varying terms. the total liability 
associated with these plans was $69.8 million and $69.3 million as of december 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. these liabilities are included in other 
noncurrent liabilities in the consolidated balance Sheets. these plans are partially funded with asset balances of $46.2 million and $41.4 million as of 
december 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. these assets are included in other assets in the consolidated balance Sheets. 

the company has a Supplemental executive Retirement Plan (“SeRP”), which is a nonqualified defined benefit plan pursuant to which the company will 
pay supplemental pension benefits to certain key employees upon retirement based upon the employees’ years of service and compensation. the SeRP is partially 
funded through a trust agreement with the northern trust company, as trustee, that owns life insurance policies on approximately 300 active and former key employees 
with aggregate death benefits of $234.1 million. at december 31, 2009 and 2008, the life insurance contracts had a cash surrender value of $97.1 million and 
$90.7 million, respectively. the SeRP is also partially funded through cash and mutual fund investments, which had a combined value of $14.5 million and 
$11.8 million at december 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. these assets, as well as the cash surrender value of the life insurance contracts, are included in other 
assets in the consolidated balance Sheets. the projected benefit obligation was $98.7 million and $94.1 million at december 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 
the SeRP liabilities are included in the pension table below; however, the company’s investment in the life insurance contracts is excluded from the table as they 
do not qualify as plan assets under the relevant authoritative guidance. 

the company’s matching contributions to the contributory 401(k) plan were $14.0 million, $15.9 million and $15.6 million for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 
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Defined Benefit Pension Plans 
the following provides a reconciliation of benefit obligations, plan assets and funded status of the company’s noncontributory defined benefit pension 
plans, including the SeRP, as of december 31, (in millions, except percentages) : 

 
 u.S. international

      2009 2008 2009 2008

change in benefit obligation: 
 benefit obligation at beginning of period  $ 863.7 $ 868.6 $ 391.6 $ 568.8
 Service cost   4.8  4.5  4.9  6.6
 interest cost   52.1  52.2  24.5  29.2
 actuarial (gain) loss   49.3  (2.8)  71.6  (77.2)
 acquisitions    —  —  —  10.0
 currency translation   —  —  35.0  (117.3)
 benefits paid (1)   (59.1)  (70.6)  (22.5)  (26.5)
 measurement date adoption adjustments (2)   —  11.8  —  2.0
 curtailments, settlement costs and other   —  —  (5.3)  (4.0)
 benefit obligation at end of period  $ 910.8 $ 863.7 $ 499.8 $ 391.6 

change in plan assets:
 Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period  $ 492.4 $ 763.7 $ 362.9 $ 453.3
 actual return on plan assets (1)   60.9  (208.7)  11.2  34.1
 acquisitions    —  —  —  8.9
 contributions   82.7  8.0  21.0  24.6
 currency translation   —  —  36.5  (124.7)
 benefits paid (1)   (59.1)  (70.6)  (22.5)  (26.5)
 Settlement charges and other   —  —  1.5  (6.8)
 Fair value of plan assets at end of period  $ 576.9 $ 492.4 $ 410.6 $ 362.9
 Funded status at end of period  $ (333.9) $ (371.3) $ (89.2) $ (28.7)

amounts recognized in the consolidated balance Sheets:
 Prepaid benefit cost, included in other assets  $ — $ — $ 3.5 $ 45.2
 accrued current benefit cost, included in other accrued liabilities  (11.7)  (7.0)  (4.0)  (3.8)
 accrued noncurrent benefit cost, included in other noncurrent liabilities  (322.2)  (364.3)  (88.7)  (70.1)
 total     $ (333.9) $ (371.3) $ (89.2) $ (28.7)

amounts recognized in aoci: 
Prior service cost  $ (11.5) $ (12.9) $ — $ —
net loss    (522.0)  (484.7)  (81.2)  (3.5)
aoci, pre-tax  $ (533.5) $ (497.6) $ (81.2) $ (3.5)

accumulated benefit obligation  $ 904.2 $ 854.1 $ 489.1 $ 378.9

(1) For plans with September 30 measurement dates prior to January 1, 2008, the 2008 amounts include activity for the 15 month period from october 1, 2007 to december 31, 2008. 
(2)  adjustment for service and interest costs for the three months ended december 31, 2007 relating to the adoption of the measurement date provisions of relevant authoritative guidance for plans 

historically measured at September 30. 

  
 u.S. international

      2009 2008 2009 2008

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligation: 
 discount rate   5.75%  6.25%  5.68%  6.01%
 long-term rate of compensation increase   3.00%  4.00%  4.20%  3.94%
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net pension cost includes the following components for the years ended december 31, (in millions, except percentages) : 

 u.S. international

    2009 2008 2007 (1) 2009 2008 2007 (1)

Service cost-benefits earned during the year $ 4.8 $ 4.5 $ 3.8 $ 4.9 $ 6.6 $ 7.3
interest cost on projected benefit obligation  52.1  52.2  51.2  24.5  29.2  27.7 
expected return on plan assets  (57.2)  (57.7)  (58.6)  (22.2)  (28.5)  (27.4)
amortization of:
 Prior service cost  1.3  1.3  1.1  —  —  — 
 actuarial loss  8.3  7.1  7.6  0.1  3.6  4.5 
curtailment, settlement and termination benefit costs  —  —  —  1.3  —  (2.8)

net pension cost $ 9.3 $ 7.4 $ 5.1 $ 8.6 $ 10.9 $ 9.3

(1)  For plans with September 30 measurement dates prior to January 1, 2008, the 2007 amounts represent 12 months of net pension costs for the period october 1, 2006 to September 30, 2007. net pension 
cost activity for the three months ended december 31, 2007 is included in the $1.1 million decrease in retained earnings and after-tax benefit to aoci of $0.7 million recorded as of January 1, 2008. 

 
 u.S. international

    2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net  
 periodic benefit cost:
  discount rate  6.25%  6.25%  6.00%  6.08%  5.52%  5.16%
  long-term rate of return on plan assets  8.50%  8.50%  8.50%  5.65%  6.77%  6.33%
  long-term rate of compensation increase  4.00%  4.00%  4.50%  3.83%  4.31%  3.85%

the company is not required to make contributions to its primary u.S. pension plan in 2010, but the company expects to make cash contributions of 
approximately $32.7 million to its defined benefit pension plans in 2010, substantially all of which is for the company’s international defined benefit 
pension plans. 
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Plan Assets 

Current Allocation 
the fair value of each major category of pension plan assets as of december 31, 2009 is as follows (in millions) : 

 
 u.S. non-u.S.

    Quoted Prices     Quoted Prices
    in active Significant    in active Significant
    markets for other Significant  % of total markets for other Significant  % of total
    identical observable unobservable  assets as of identical observable unobservable  assets as of
    assets inputs inputs total december 31, assets inputs inputs total december 31,
description (level1) (level 2) (level 3) u.S. 2009 2008 (level 1) (level 2) (level 3) non-u.S. 2009 2008

equity (1) 
 u.S. large cap $ —   $146.1 $ —   $146.1   $ 7.2 $ 19.2 $ —   $ 26.4
 u.S. small cap —   18.3 —   18.3     —   —   —   —  
 international —   140.2 —   140.2     —   45.7 —   45.7

  total equity —   304.6 —   304.6 53% 53% 7.2 64.9 —   72.1 18% 20%
Fixed income (2)

 u.S. treasury —   28.1 —   28.1     —   1.2 —   1.2
 other government —   49.8 —   49.8     4.6 15.1 —   19.7
 asset-backed  
  securities —   33.9 —   33.9    —   7.4 —   7.4
corporate bonds —   48.2 —   48.2    —   52.9 —   52.9
Short-term  
 investments —   30.2 —   30.2    —   —   —   —  

  total fixed income — 190.2 —   190.2 33 25 4.6 76.6 —   81.2 20 12
insurance contracts(3) —   17.9 —   17.9 3 4 —   105.6 —   105.6 26 5
Venture capital and
 partnerships (4) —   4.3 32.9 37.2 6 8 14.6 12.3 2.0 28.9 7 6
Real estate (5) —   —   18.8 18.8 3 7 2.9 1.6 6.4 10.9 2 2
cash and cash  
 equivalents (6) —   3.7 —   3.7 1 1 25.3 74.6 —   99.9 24 39
other   —   —   4.5 4.5 1 2 —   10.4 1.6 12.0 3 16
total   $ —   $520.7 $56.2 $576.9 100% 100% $54.6 $346.0 $10.0 $410.6 100% 100%

(1)  equity securities are primarily comprised of mutual funds and common/collective trust funds. investments in mutual funds and common/collective trust funds are valued at the net asset value per share or 
unit multiplied by the number of shares or units held as of the measurement date. the common/collective trust funds are generally actively managed investment vehicles. 

(2)  Fixed income investments are primarily comprised of mutual funds and common/collective trust funds that invest in corporate and government bonds. investments in mutual funds and common/collective 
trust funds are valued at the net asset value per share or unit multiplied by the number of shares or units held as of the measurement date. the investments in fixed income securities include both actively 
managed funds and index funds. 

(3)  the fair values of insurance contracts are estimated based on the future cash flows to be received under the contracts discounted to the present using a discount rate that approximates the discount rate 
used to measure the associated pension plan liabilities. 

(4) Venture capital and partnerships are valued at net asset value, which is generally calculated using the most recent partnership financial reports. 
(5)  Real estate investments are generally investments in limited partnerships, real estate investment trusts and similar vehicles that invest in real estate. the values of the investments are generally based on 

the most recent financial reports of the investment vehicles. the managers of each of the investment vehicles estimate the values of the real estate assets underlying the real estate investments using third 
party appraisals and other valuation techniques and analysis. 

(6) cash and equivalents include investments in stable value funds. Stable value funds are generally invested in common trust funds and interest-bearing accounts. 
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a reconciliation of the change in the fair value measurement of the defined benefit plans’ consolidated assets using significant unobservable inputs 
(level 3) for the year ended december 31, 2009 is as follows (in millions) : 

 
      Venture
      capital and Real
      Partnerships estate other total

Fair Value as of January 1, 2009   $33.2 $36.9 $12.5 $ 82.6
Realized gains (losses)   —   0.6 (1.8) (1.2)
unrealized gains (losses)   (4.6) (9.0) (0.4) (14.0)
Purchases, Sales and Settlements, net   6.3 (3.3) (4.2) (1.2)
Fair value as of December 31, 2009   $34.9 $25.2 $ 6.1 $66.2

 
Investment Strategy 
the company has established formal investment policies for the assets associated with its pension plans. the objectives of the investment strategies 
generally include maximizing long-term return at acceptable risk levels, diversifying among asset classes, if appropriate, as well as establishing relevant 
risk parameters within each asset class. investment policies reflect the unique circumstances of the respective plans, and risk tolerance is established 
through consideration of plan liabilities, plan funded status and corporate financial condition. asset allocation targets are based on periodic asset liability 
and/or risk budgeting study results which help determine the appropriate investment strategies for acceptable risk levels. the investment policies permit 
variances from the targets within certain parameters. 

the target asset allocations for the company’s u.S. pension plan and primary non-u.S. pension plans are as follows as of december 31, 2009: 
 

 target 

asset category     u.S. non-u.S.

equity      45% 22%
Fixed income     40 14
insurance contracts     — 27
cash and equivalents     — 20
other investments (1)     15 17
total       100% 100%

 (1) other investments include private equity funds, hedge funds and real estate funds. 

the company recently adopted an updated target investment allocation for its primary u.S. pension plan, and as of december 31, 2009, the company 
was in the process of reallocating the assets in the u.S. pension plan to align with the updated target investment allocation. 

Expected Long-term Rate of Return on Plan Assets 
the company employs a building block approach in determining the long-term rate of return for plan assets. Historical markets are studied and long-term 
historical relationships between equities and fixed-income are preserved consistent with the widely accepted capital market principle that assets with higher 
volatility generate a greater return over the long run. current market factors, such as inflation and interest rates, are evaluated before long-term capital 
market assumptions are determined. the long-term portfolio return is established giving consideration to investment diversification and rebalancing. Peer data 
and historical returns are reviewed to assess for reasonableness and appropriateness. 

the weighted average expected long-term rates of return are based on a January 2010 review of the target investment allocation and the historical and 
expected rates of return of the asset classes included in the pension plans’ target asset allocations. 
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Other Postretirement Benefit Plans 
Several of the company’s subsidiaries currently provide retiree health care and life insurance benefits for certain employee groups. the following provides a 
reconciliation of benefit obligations and funded status of the company’s other postretirement benefit plans as of december 31, (in millions, except percentages) : 

 
        2009 2008

change in benefit obligation: 
  benefit obligation at beginning of period     $ 162.5 $ 164.5
  Service cost      1.5  1.6 
  interest cost      9.6  9.6 
 actuarial loss      10.3  5.6 
 benefits paid, net (1)      (15.8)  (21.6) 
 measurement date adoption adjustments (2)      —  2.8
 benefit obligation at end of period     $ 168.1 $ 162.5

 Funded status and net liability recognized at december 31     $ (168.1) $ (162.5) 

amounts recognized in the consolidated balance Sheets: 
 accrued current benefit cost, included in other accrued liabilities    $ (16.0) $ (16.1) 
 accrued noncurrent benefit cost, included in other noncurrent liabilities    (152.1)  (146.4)  
 total      $ (168.1) $ (162.5)  

amounts recognized in aoci: 
 Prior service credit     $ 15.7 $ 18.1
 net loss      (26.1)  (15.4) 
  aoci, pre-tax     $ (10.4) $ 2.7

(1) the 2008 amounts include activity for the 15-month period from october 1, 2007 to december 31, 2008. 
(2)  adjustment for service and interest costs for the three months ended december 31, 2007 relating to the adoption of the measurement date provisions of authoritative guidance for plans historically 

measured at September 30. 

 
        2009 2008

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligation: 
discount rate     5.75% 6.25%
long-term health care cost trend rate     4.50% 5.00%

there are no plan assets associated with the company’s other postretirement benefit plans. 
other postretirement benefit costs include the following components for the years ended december 31, (in millions) : 
 

       2009 2008 2007 (1)

Service cost-benefits earned during the year    $  1.5 $  1.6 $ 1.7
interest cost on projected benefit obligation    9.6 9.6 10.7 
amortization of: 
 Prior service benefit    (2.4) (2.4) (2.4)
 actuarial loss    — — 0.1
net postretirement benefit costs    $  8.7 $  8.8 $10.1

(1)  For plans with September 30 measurement dates prior to January 1, 2008, the 2007 amounts represent 12 months of net other postretirement benefit plan costs for the period october 1, 2006 to  
September 30, 2007. net other postretirement benefit plan cost activity for the three months ended december 31, 2007 is included in the $1.1 million decrease in retained earnings and after-tax 
benefit to aoci of $0.7 million recorded as of January 1, 2008. 
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the weighted-average discount rate for the company’s other postretirement benefit plans is developed using a spot interest yield curve based on a 
broad population of corporate bonds rated aa or higher. the following are the weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost 
for the other postretirement benefit plans for the years ended december 31,: 

 
       2009 2008 2007

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost:
discount rate    6.25% 6.25% 6.00%
long-term health care cost trend rate    5.00% 5.00% 6.00%

assumed health care cost trends have been used in the valuation of the benefit obligations for postretirement benefits. the trend rate used to measure 
the benefit obligation was 8.7% for all retirees in 2010, declining to 4.5% in 2028 and thereafter. 

the health care cost trend rate significantly affects the reported postretirement benefit costs and obligations. a one-percentage point change in the 
assumed rate would have the following effects (in millions) : 

 
        1% increase 1% decrease

effect on total of service and interest cost components    $ 1.1 $ (0.9)  
effect on postretirement benefit obligations     $15.0 $(13.3)  

Estimated Future Benefit Payments 
estimated future benefit payments under the company’s defined benefit pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans are as follows as of 
december 31, 2009 (in millions): 

 
     2010 2011 2012 2013 2014   2015-2019  

Pension benefits (1) $84.1 $79.0 $82.4 $84.3 $101.6 $442.5
other postretirement benefits $16.0 $15.4 $14.7 $14.3 $    13.7 $    64.9

(1) certain pension benefit payments will be funded by plan assets. 

the estimated other postretirement benefit payments are net of annual medicare Part d subsidies of approximately $2.3 million per year. the company 
expects to make direct cash benefit payments of approximately $16.0 million for its other postretirement benefit plans in 2010. 

FOOTNOTE 14 
eaRninGS PeR SHaRe 
on January 1, 2009, the company retrospectively adopted the authoritative guidance which provides that unvested share-based payment awards that 
contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are participating securities and should be included in the 
computation of earnings per share. the retrospective adoption of the authoritative guidance impacted basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for 
2008 and 2007, as follows: 

 
    2008 2007
    loss per loss per continuing net
    share from share – basic diluted basic diluted
    continuing controlling earnings earnings earnings earnings
    operations interests  per share per share per share  per share

earnings (loss) per share, as reported $(0.19) $(0.19) $  1.74 $1.72 $  1.69 $  1.68
adjustment attributable to  
 participating securities 0.01 0.01 (0.02) — (0.01) (0.01)
earnings (loss) per share, as adjusted $(0.18) $(0.18) $  1.72 $1.72 $  1.68 $  1.67

net income (loss) attributable to participating securities, which consisted of certain of the company’s outstanding restricted stock awards and restricted 
stock units, was $3.0 million, $(1.2) million and $4.5 million for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 
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the impact of the adoption of the authoritative guidance is included in the below calculation and reconciliation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per 
share for the years ended december 31, (in millions, except per share data) :

 
       2009 2008 2007

numerator for basic earnings (loss) per share: 
 net income (loss) controlling interests    $ 285.5 $ (52.3) $ 467.1
 loss from discontinued operations     —  0.5   12.1
 dividends and equivalents for share-based awards expected to be forfeited   0.2  0.6   —
  income (loss) from continuing operations for basic earnings (loss) per share   285.7  (51.2)  479.2
 loss from discontinued operations     —  (0.5)  (12.1) 
  net income (loss) controlling interests for basic earnings (loss) per share  $ 285.7 $ (51.7) $ 467.1

numerator for diluted earnings (loss) per share:
 income (loss) from continuing operations for basic earnings (loss) per share    $ 285.7 $ (51.2) $ 479.2
 effect of Preferred Securities (1)     —  —   14.2
  income (loss) from continuing operations for diluted earnings (loss) per share   285.7  (51.2)  493.4
 loss from discontinued operations     —  (0.5)  (12.1) 
  net income (loss) controlling interests for diluted earnings (loss) per share    $ 285.7 $ (51.7) $ 481.3

denominator for basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share:
 Weighted-average shares outstanding     277.7  277.0   276.0
 Share-based payment awards classified as participating securities    3.1  2.9   2.6
   denominator for basic earnings (loss) per share     280.8  279.9   278.6
 dilutive securities (2)     1.1  —   0.7
 convertible notes (3)     9.0  —   —
 Warrants (4)     3.5  —   — 
 Preferred Securities (1)     —  —   8.3
  denominator for diluted earnings (loss) per share    294.4  279.9   287.6

basic earnings (loss) per share:
 income (loss) from continuing operations    $ 1.02 $ (0.18) $ 1.72
 loss from discontinued operations     —  —   (0.04)
 net income (loss) controlling interests    $ 1.02 $ (0.18) $ 1.68

diluted earnings (loss) per share:
 income (loss) from continuing operations    $ 0.97 $ (0.18) $ 1.72
 loss from discontinued operations     —  —   (0.04) 
 net income (loss) controlling interests    $ 0.97 $ (0.18) $ 1.67

(1)  the convertible preferred securities are anti-dilutive for 2009 and 2008, and therefore have been excluded from diluted earnings per share. Had the convertible preferred securities been included in the 
diluted earnings per share calculation, $14.2 million of expenses would have been added back to the net income (loss) for both 2009 and 2008. Weighted-average shares outstanding would have increased 
by 8.3 million shares for both 2009 and 2008. 

(2)  dilutive securities include “in the money” options, non-participating restricted stock units and performance share awards. the weighted-average shares outstanding for 2009, 2008 and 2007 exclude the 
effect of approximately 13.2 million, 17.2 million and 9.5 million stock options, respectively, because such options were anti-dilutive. 

(3)  the convertible notes issued in march 2009 were dilutive for the year ended december 31, 2009 because the average price of the company’s common stock during quarterly periods since the convertible 
notes were outstanding was greater than $8.61, the conversion price of the convertible notes. the dilutive effect of the convertible notes for the year ended december 31, 2009 was based on the average 
quarterly dilutive effect for 2009. 

(4)  the warrants issued in march 2009 were dilutive for the year ended december 31, 2009 because the average price of the company’s common stock during quarterly periods since the warrants were outstanding 
was greater than $11.59, the exercise price of the warrants. the dilutive effect of the warrants for the year ended december 31, 2009 was based on the average quarterly dilutive effect for 2009. 

 



newell Rubbermaid inc. 2009 annual Report

71

FOOTNOTE 15 
StocK-baSed comPenSation 
the company offers stock-based compensation to its employees that includes stock options, restricted stock awards, and time-based and performance-based 
restricted stock units, as follows:
 
Stock Options 
the company’s stock plans include plans adopted in 1993 and 2003. the company has issued both nonqualified and incentive stock options at exercise 
prices equal to the company’s common stock price on the date of grant with contractual terms of ten years. Historically, stock options issued by the 
company generally vested and were expensed ratably over three to five years, except that in the case of termination due to death, disability or retirement at 
age 65 or older, options became fully vested and were exercisable for one year following termination. in 2008, the company modified the retirement 
provisions applicable to future option grants so that in the case of retirement (as defined in the stock option agreement), options fully vest and are 
exercisable for a period of time depending on the employee’s age and years of service. Stock option grants are generally subject to forfeiture if employment 
terminates prior to vesting. 

Restricted Stock and Time-Based Restricted Stock Units 
awards of restricted stock and restricted stock units are independent of stock option grants and are generally subject to forfeiture if employment 
terminates prior to vesting. the awards generally cliff-vest three years from the date of grant. in 2008, the company modified the retirement provisions 
applicable to future restricted stock awards so that in the case of retirement at age 65 or older, the awards fully vest. With respect to future awards of 
restricted stock units, in the case of retirement (as defined in the award agreement), awards vest depending on the employee’s age and years of service. 
Prior to vesting, ownership of restricted shares cannot be transferred. the restricted stock has the same dividend and voting rights as the common stock, 
and the time-based restricted stock units have rights to dividend equivalents payable in cash. the company expenses the cost of restricted stock awards 
and restricted stock units ratably over the vesting period, which is generally three years. 

Performance-Based Restricted Stock Units and Performance Shares 
Performance-based restricted stock units and performance share awards issued under the 2003 Stock Plan represent the right to receive unrestricted shares of stock 
based on the achievement of company performance objectives and/or individual performance goals established by the organizational development & compensation 
committee and the board of directors. in 2009, the company awarded approximately 1.2 million performance-based restricted stock units which entitle recipients 
to shares of the company’s stock at the end of a three-year vesting period if specified market conditions are achieved by the company. the performance-based 
restricted stock units entitle recipients to shares of common stock equal to 0% up to 200% of the number of units granted at the vesting date depending on the 
level of achievement of the specified conditions. Performance-based restricted stock units are not subject to the payment of dividend equivalents in the same 
manner as time-based restricted stock units. Rather, with respect to performance-based restricted stock units, dividend equivalents are credited to the recipient 
and are paid only to the extent the applicable performance criteria are met and the performance-based restricted stock units vest and the related stock is issued. 
the company also awarded performance shares that immediately vested in February 2007 based on 2006 performance. 

as of december 31, 2009, the company had 29.5 million shares authorized for issuance under the 2003 Stock Plan, of which 20.5 million were reserved for 
issuance for 14.9 million options outstanding, 3.4 million restricted stock awards and restricted stock units outstanding, and 2.2 million reserved for issuance 
for performance-based restricted stock units, which represents 200% of the outstanding performance awards granted in 2009. as of december 31, 2009, 
the company had 9.0 million shares available for issuance under the 2003 Stock Plan. as of december 31, 2009, the company had 1.4 million options 
outstanding under the 1993 plan. 

the company accounts for stock-based compensation pursuant to relevant authoritative guidance, which requires measurement of compensation cost 
for all stock awards at fair value on the date of grant and recognition of compensation, net of estimated forfeitures, over the requisite service period for awards 
expected to vest. 

the table below summarizes the expense related to share-based payments for the years ended december 31, (in millions) : 
 

       2009 2008 2007

Stock options    $14.4   $16.9   $17.2
Restricted stock    20.7 18.7 19.2
Stock-based compensation    $35.1   $35.6 $36.4

Stock-based compensation, net of income tax benefit of $5.3 million, $11.6 million and  
 $13.8 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively     $29.8   $24.0 $22.6
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the fair value of stock option awards granted during the years ended december 31, was estimated using the black-Scholes option pricing model with 
the following weighted-average assumptions: 
 

          2009     2008   2007

Risk-free interest rate    2.2% 2.8%  4.7%
dividend yield    5.2% 3.8%  2.8%  
expected volatility    35% 25%  25%  
expected life (in years)    6.8 5.5  5.5  

the company considered the retirement and forfeiture provisions of the options and utilized its historical experience to estimate the expected life of the 
options and volatility. 

the following summarizes the changes in the number of shares of common stock under option for the following periods (shares and aggregate intrinsic 
value in millions) : 
 

     Weighted-average 
   exercisable  Fair Value of aggregate
  Weighted-average at end Weighted-average options Granted intrinsic
 Shares exercise Price of year exercise Price during the year Value

outstanding at december 31, 2006  14.1  $26 6.8 $28   $52.2
Granted  4.3  30     $7 
exercised (0.9) 25       $ 3.4
Forfeited/expired (1.5) 29
outstanding at december 31, 2007 16.0  $27 7.3 $27   $19.7
Granted  4.7  22   $4 
exercised (0.1) 23       $ 0.1
Forfeited/expired (4.2) 27 
outstanding at december 31, 2008 16.4  $26 6.6 $27   $ — 
Granted  3.2  8     $2 
Forfeited/expired (3.3) 26 
Outstanding at December 31, 2009 16.3  $22 7.6 $26   $21.1

vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2009 15.2  $22 
 

at december 31, 2009, the aggregate intrinsic value of exercisable options was $0.2 million. 
the weighted-average remaining contractual life for options outstanding and options exercisable was seven years and five years, respectively, as of 

december 31, 2009. 
the following table summarizes the changes in the number of shares of restricted stock, restricted stock units and performance-based restricted stock 

units for the following periods (shares in millions) : 
 

         Weighted-
         average Grant
        Shares date Fair Value

outstanding at december 31, 2006      2.2  $24
Granted      1.2  30
Vested      (0.5) 23
Forfeited     (0.3) 24
outstanding at december 31, 2007     2.6  $26
Granted      1.4  20
Vested      (0.4) 23
Forfeited     (0.4) 26
outstanding at december 31, 2008     3.2  $24
Granted      2.8  8
Vested      (0.9) 24
Forfeited     (0.5) 22
Outstanding at December 31, 2009     4.6  $15

Expected to vest at December 31, 2009     4.2  $16
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during the year ended december 31, 2009, the company awarded approximately 1.2 million performance-based restricted stock units which entitle recipients 
to shares of the company’s common stock at the end of a three-year vesting period if specified market conditions are achieved. the performance-based 
restricted stock units entitle recipients to shares of common stock equal to 0% to 200% of the number of units granted at the vesting date depending on the 
level of achievement of the specified conditions. the performance-based restricted stock units are included in the preceding table as if the participants earned 
shares equal to 100% of the units granted, and there are 1.1 million performance-based restricted stock units outstanding at december 31, 2009. 

the following table summarizes the company’s total unrecognized compensation cost related to stock-based compensation as of december 31, 2009 (in millions): 
 

            Weighted-average 
       unrecognized Period of
       compensation expense Recognition
       cost (in years)

Stock options     $23.4 2
Restricted stock and time-based and performance-based restricted stock units   23.2 2
total       $46.6 

 

FOOTNOTE 16 

income taxeS 
as of december 31, 2009 and 2008, the company had unrecognized tax benefits of $147.9 million and $135.0 million, respectively. if recognized, $141.4 million 
and $128.4 million as of december 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, would affect the effective tax rate. the company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, 
related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense. as of december 31, 2009 and 2008, the company had recorded accrued interest 
and penalties related to the unrecognized tax benefits of $43.7 million and $35.0 million, respectively. during the years ended december 31, 2009 and 2008, 
the company recognized approximately $8.7 million and $16.3 million, respectively, of interest and penalties. 

the following table summarizes the changes in gross unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended december 31, (in millions) : 
 

         2009 2008

unrecognized tax benefits balance at January 1,     $135.0   $151.9
increases in tax positions for prior years     2.5  4.6
decreases in tax positions for prior years     (0.1) (21.7) 
increases in tax positions for current year     11.3  13.0
Settlements with taxing authorities     (0.8) — 
lapse of statute of limitations     —  (12.8)
unrecognized tax benefits balance at december 31,     $147.9  $135.0

 
the provision for income taxes consists of the following for the years ended december 31, (in millions) : 
 

       2009 2008 2007

current: 
Federal     $ 56.4 $ (6.0) $ 81.3
State      8.1 4.7 4.0 
Foreign     63.3 46.2 66.7
total current    127.8 44.9 152.0 
deferred     14.9 8.7 (2.3)
total provision    $142.7  $53.6 $149.7

 
the non-u.S. component of income before income taxes was $171.5 million, $208.4 million and $226.5 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 
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a reconciliation of the u.S. statutory rate to the effective income tax rate is as follows for the years ended december 31,: 
 

       2009 2008 2007

Statutory rate    35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
add (deduct) effect of: 
State income taxes, net of federal income tax effect    1.2 49.4 0.4
Foreign tax credit    (7.3) (1,255.2) (1.5)
Foreign rate differential and other    2.5 620.8 1.0
Resolution of tax contingencies    (0.7) (570.7) (11.2)
tax basis differential on goodwill impairment    — 2,702.4 —
Reversal of previously recorded valuation reserve    0.9 (214.3) —  
Stock compensation    1.7 61.5 0.2
effective rate    33.3% 1,428.9% 23.9%

 
the company files numerous consolidated and separate income tax returns in the u.S. federal jurisdiction and various state and foreign jurisdictions. 

the statute of limitations for the company’s u.S. federal income tax returns has expired for years prior to 2005. the company has received an iRS Revenue 
agent Report for tax years 2005 and 2006, assessing additional tax and interest relating to the company’s tax treatment of the financing entity described 
in Footnote 9 under “Receivables-Related borrowings.” the company disagrees with the iRS’ characterization of the entity and the associated assessment, 
and in January 2009, the company filed a protest with the iRS and requested a conference with the iRS appeals office. the company believes it is 
adequately reserved for the uncertain tax position relating to this issue. the company’s canadian income tax returns are subject to examination for years 
after 2000. With few exceptions, the company is no longer subject to other income tax examinations for years before 2006. 

it is reasonably possible that there could be a change in the amount of the company’s unrecognized tax benefits within the next 12 months due to 
activities of the iRS or other taxing authorities, including proposed assessments of additional tax, possible settlement of audit issues, or the expiration of 
applicable statutes of limitations. the range of the possible change in unrecognized tax benefits within the next 12 months cannot be reasonably estimated 
at december 31, 2009. 

 the components of net deferred tax assets are as follows as of december 31, (in millions) : 
 

        2009 2008

deferred tax assets: 
accruals not currently deductible for tax purposes       $ 180.9 $ 147.1
Postretirement liabilities     60.3 59.0
inventory reserves     3.7 2.2
Pension liabilities     88.4 108.8
Self-insurance liability     10.3 10.5
Foreign tax credit carryforward     97.1 84.7
Foreign net operating losses     275.8 227.0
other       105.2 137.4
 total gross deferred tax assets     821.7 776.7
less valuation allowance     (320.2) (303.3)
 net deferred tax assets after valuation allowance     $ 501.5 $ 473.4

deferred tax liabilities: 
accelerated depreciation     $  (89.9) $  (81.6)
amortizable intangibles     (228.1) (179.6) 
other       — (4.0) 
 total gross deferred tax liabilities     (318.0) (265.2)
net deferred tax assets     $ 183.5 $ 208.2

current deferred income tax assets     $ 183.8 $ 100.4
noncurrent deferred income tax (liabilities) assets     (0.3) 107.8 
         $ 183.5 $ 208.2

 
no u.S. deferred taxes have been provided on the undistributed non-u.S. subsidiary earnings that are considered to be indefinitely invested. at december 31, 

2009, the estimated amount of total unremitted non-u.S. subsidiary earnings is $558.4 million. it is not practical to estimate the amount of u.S. tax that might be 
payable on the eventual remittance of such earnings. 

of the company’s $2.8 billion of goodwill at december 31, 2009, approximately $1.1 billion is deductible for tax purposes. 
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FOOTNOTE 17 
otHeR exPenSe, net 
other expense, net consists of the following for the years ended december 31, (in millions) : 

 
           2009 2008 2007    

equity in earnings    $(0.6) $  (1.3) $(0.1) 
currency transaction loss    2.1  7.3  4.2 
losses on debt extinguishment (1)    4.7  52.2  —
other      0.5  0.9  0.1 
       $   6.7  $59.1  $  4.2 

 (1) See Footnote 9 for further information regarding charges recognized related to debt extinguishments. 

FOOTNOTE 18 
FaiR Value 
accounting principles generally accepted in the u.S. define fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants. as such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market 
participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. the authoritative guidance discusses valuation techniques, such as the market approach (comparable 
market prices), the income approach (present value of future income or cash flow), and the cost approach (cost to replace the service capacity of an asset or 
replacement cost). these valuation techniques are based upon observable and unobservable inputs. observable inputs reflect market data obtained from 
independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect the company’s market assumptions. as the basis for evaluating such inputs, a three-tier value hierarchy 
prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows: 

•  level 1: observable inputs such as quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets. 
•   level 2: observable inputs other than quoted prices that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability, including quoted prices for similar assets 

or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for similar or identical assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations whose 
inputs are observable or whose significant value drivers are observable. 

•  level 3: unobservable inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions. 

the company’s financial assets and liabilities adjusted to fair value at least annually are its money market fund investments included in cash and cash 
equivalents, its mutual fund investments included in other assets, and its derivative instruments, which are primarily included in prepaid expenses and other, 
other assets, other accrued liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities. as the company adjusts the value of its investments and derivative instruments to fair 
value each reporting period, no adjustment to retained earnings resulted from the adoption of the authoritative guidance on fair value in 2008. 

the company determines the fair value of its mutual fund investments based on quoted market prices (level 1). 
level 2 fair value determinations are derived from directly or indirectly observable (market based) information. Such inputs are the basis for the fair 

values of the company’s money market investments and derivative instruments. the money market investments held by the company and included in cash 
and cash equivalents are not publicly traded, but the fair value is determined based on the values of the underlying investments in the money market fund 
(level 2). the company generally uses derivatives for hedging purposes pursuant to the relevant authoritative guidance, and the company’s derivatives are 
primarily foreign currency forward contracts and interest rate swaps. the company determines the fair value of its derivative instruments based on level 2 
inputs in the fair value hierarchy. 
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the following tables present the company’s non-pension related financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value on a recurring basis 
and that are subject to the disclosure requirements of the authoritative guidance as of december 31, 2009 and 2008 (in millions) : 

 
      Quoted Prices in
     Fair Value as active markets Significant other Significant
     of december 31, for identical observable unobservable
description  2009 assets (level 1) inputs (level 2) inputs (level 3)

assets 
 money market fund investments $ 14.6 $ — $ 14.6 $ —
 investment securities, including mutual funds  31.6  6.6  25.0  —
 interest rate swaps  20.9  —  20.9  —
 Foreign currency derivatives  1.3  —  1.3  —
 total  $ 68.4 $ 6.6 $ 61.8 $ —

liabilities
 interest rate swaps $ 2.5 $ — $ 2.5 $ —
 Foreign currency derivatives  1.5  —  1.5  —
  total  $ 4.0 $ —   $ 4.0 $ —

  
      Quoted Prices in
     Fair Value as active markets Significant other Significant
     of december 31, for identical observable unobservable
description  2008 assets (level 1) inputs (level 2) inputs (level 3)

assets
 money market fund investments $ 42.1 $ — $ 42.1 $ —
 investment securities, including mutual funds  11.7  5.3  6.4  —
 interest rate swaps  62.3  —  62.3  —
 Foreign currency derivatives  6.9  —  6.9  —
 total  $ 123.0  $ 5.3  $ 117.7 $ —

liabilities
 Foreign currency derivatives $ 130.1  $ — $ 130.1 $ —
 total  $ 130.1 $ — $ 130.1 $ —

 
on January 1, 2009, the company adopted the provisions of the fair value measurement accounting and disclosure guidance related to nonfinancial 

assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. the company’s nonfinancial assets which are measured at fair value on 
a nonrecurring basis include property, plant and equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets. during the year ended december 31, 2009, the company 
recorded $32.4 million of impairments associated with plans to dispose of certain property, plant and equipment. the company generally uses projected 
cash flows, discounted as necessary, to estimate the fair values of the impaired assets using key inputs such as management’s projections of cash flows on 
a held-and-used basis (if applicable), management’s projections of cash flows upon disposition and discount rates. accordingly, these fair value measurements 
fall in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. these assets and certain liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as part of the company’s 
impairment assessments and as circumstances require. 

FOOTNOTE 19 
induStRy SeGment inFoRmation 
in the first quarter of 2009, the business units within the previously reported cleaning, organization & décor segment were reorganized into the tools & Hardware 
and Home & Family segments. the Rubbermaid commercial Products business unit was transferred to the newly named tools, Hardware & commercial Products 
segment, and the Rubbermaid consumer Products and décor business units were transferred to the Home & Family segment. the reorganization allows the company 
to realize structural selling, general and administrative efficiencies. the company’s reportable segments reflect the company’s focus on building large consumer 
brands, promoting organizational integration, achieving operating efficiencies in sourcing and distribution and leveraging its understanding of similar consumer 
segments and distribution channels. 
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the reportable segments are as follows: 

Segment  description of Products

Home & Family  infant and juvenile products such as car seats, strollers, highchairs, and playards; gourmet cookware, 
bakeware, cutlery and small kitchen electrics; hair care accessories; cabinet hardware, drapery hardware 
and window treatments; and indoor/outdoor organization, food storage, and home storage products

office Products  Writing instruments, including markers, highlighters, pens, pencils, and fine writing instruments; office 
technology solutions such as label makers and printers, interactive teaching solutions, card-scanning 
solutions, and on-line postage; and art products

tools, Hardware & commercial Products  Hand tools, power tool accessories, industrial bandsaw blades, propane torches, and manual paint applicators; 
window hardware; cleaning and refuse products, hygiene systems and material handling solutions

 
the company’s segment results are as follows as of and for the years ended december 31, (in millions) : 
 

        2009 2008 (1) 2007 (1)

net Sales (2)

Home & Family      $ 2,377.2 $ 2,654.8 $ 2,610.8
office Products     1,674.7  1,990.8  2,026.2 
tools, Hardware & commercial Products     1,525.7  1,825.0  1,770.3
       $ 5,577.6 $ 6,470.6 $ 6,407.3

operating income (3)

Home & Family    $ 274.7 $ 218.3 $ 307.5
office Products     235.2  212.4  315.8
tools, Hardware & commercial Products     245.6  271.7  285.0
corporate     (80.6)  (81.9)  (82.0)
impairment charges     —  (299.4)  —
Restructuring costs     (100.0)  (120.3)  (86.0) 
          $ 574.9 $ 200.8 $ 740.3

depreciation & amortization
Home & Family    $ 51.3 $ 52.1 $ 54.9
office Products     39.6  49.7  52.2
tools, Hardware & commercial Products     48.9  51.0  46.6
corporate     35.3  30.5  23.3
       $ 175.1 $ 183.3 $ 177.0

capital expenditures (4) 
Home & Family      $ 30.8 $ 35.3 $ 36.4
office Products     35.2  20.9  25.4
tools, Hardware & commercial Products     26.2  33.4  26.8
corporate     61.1  68.2  68.7
         $ 153.3 $ 157.8 $ 157.3 

identifiable assets
Home & Family    $ 878.8 $ 987.3 
office Products     970.3  1,184.6 
tools, Hardware & commercial Products     892.2  969.4 
corporate (5)     3,682.6  3,651.2 
       $ 6,423.9 $ 6,792.5 
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geographic Area Information 
 

        2009 2008 2007

net Sales
united States      $ 3,881.4  $ 4,447.2 $ 4,624.3
canada      326.5  413.4  425.7 
        4,207.9  4,860.6  5,050.0
europe, middle east and africa     795.1  1,000.1  880.7
latin america     262.9  275.4  250.2
asia Pacific     311.7  334.5  226.4
          $ 5,577.6 $ 6,470.6 $ 6,407.3

operating income (loss) (3), (6)

united States      $ 489.3 $ 152.4 $ 572.4
canada      65.4  92.0  108.5
        554.7  244.4  680.9 
europe, middle east and africa     (20.1)  (98.9)  10.9
latin america     23.0  8.9  11.9
asia Pacific     17.3  46.4  36.6 
          $ 574.9 $ 200.8 $ 740.3

Property, Plant and equipment, net
united States    $ 394.1 $ 428.8  
canada      11.6  11.7 
        405.7  440.5 
europe, middle east and africa     102.6  114.1 
latin america     24.9  22.2 
asia Pacific     44.9  53.9 
         $ 578.1 $ 630.7 

(1) the 2008 and 2007 financial information have been adjusted to reflect the segment structure as of december 31, 2009. 
(2)  all intercompany transactions have been eliminated. Sales to Wal-mart Stores, inc. and subsidiaries amounted to approximately 12% of consolidated net sales for the year ended december 31, 2009 and 

13% of consolidated net sales for each of the years ended december 31, 2008 and 2007, substantially across all segments. 
(3)  operating income (loss) is net sales less cost of products sold and selling, general and administrative expenses. certain headquarters expenses of an operational nature are allocated to business segments and 

geographic areas primarily on a net sales basis. 
(4) corporate capital expenditures primarily relate to the SaP implementation. 
(5) corporate assets primarily include goodwill, capitalized software, cash and cash equivalents and deferred tax assets. 
(6) the following table summarizes the restructuring costs and impairment charges by region included in operating income (loss) above: 

 
        2009 2008 2007

Restructuring costs:
united States      $ (32.6) $ (80.9) $ (32.5)
canada      (5.7)  —   (0.1) 
        (38.3)  (80.9)  (32.6)
europe, middle east and africa     (36.4)  (38.7)  (41.1)
latin america     (6.3)  —   (5.1)
asia Pacific     (19.0)  (0.7)  (7.2)
         $ (100.0) $ (120.3) $ (86.0) 
 
        2009 2008 2007

impairment charges:
united States      $ — $ (129.9) $ — 
canada      —  —   — 
        —  (129.9)  —
europe, middle east and africa     —  (169.5)  —
latin america     —  —   — 
asia Pacific     —  —   — 
        $ — $ (299.4) $ —
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FOOTNOTE 20 
litiGation and continGencieS 
the company is involved in legal proceedings in the ordinary course of its business. these proceedings include claims for damages arising out of use of the 
company’s products, allegations of infringement of intellectual property, commercial disputes and employment matters, as well as environmental matters. 
Some of the legal proceedings include claims for punitive as well as compensatory damages, and certain proceedings may purport to be class actions. 

the company, using current product sales data and historical trends, actuarially calculates the estimate of its exposure for product liability. as a result 
of the most recent analysis, the company has product liability reserves of $47.3 million as of december 31, 2009. the company is insured for product liability 
claims for amounts in excess of established deductibles and accrues for the estimated liability as described up to the limits of the deductibles. all other claims 
and lawsuits are handled on a case-by-case basis. 

in July 2007, the company acquired all of the outstanding equity interests of PSi Systems, inc. (“endicia”), provider of endicia internet Postage. endicia is 
party to a lawsuit against it alleging patent infringement which was filed on november 22, 2006 in the u.S. district court for the central district of california. 
in this case, Stamps.com seeks unspecified damages, attorneys’ fees and injunctive relief in order to prevent endicia from continuing to engage in activities 
that are alleged to infringe on Stamps.com’s patents. 

as of december 31, 2009, the company was involved in various matters concerning federal and state environmental laws and regulations, including 
matters in which the company has been identified by the u.S. environmental Protection agency and certain state environmental agencies as a potentially 
responsible party (“PRP”) at contaminated sites under the Federal comprehensive environmental Response, compensation and liability act (“ceRcla”) 
and equivalent state laws. 

in assessing its environmental response costs, the company has considered several factors, including the extent of the company’s volumetric contribution 
at each site relative to that of other PRPs; the kind of waste; the terms of existing cost sharing and other applicable agreements; the financial ability of other 
PRPs to share in the payment of requisite costs; the company’s prior experience with similar sites; environmental studies and cost estimates available to the 
company; the effects of inflation on cost estimates; and the extent to which the company’s, and other parties’, status as PRPs is disputed. 

the company’s estimate of environmental response costs associated with these matters as of december 31, 2009 ranged between $10.7 million and 
$26.9 million. as of december 31, 2009, the company had a reserve equal to $15.5 million for such environmental response costs in the aggregate, which 
is included in other accrued liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities in the consolidated balance Sheets. no insurance recovery was taken into account in 
determining the company’s cost estimates or reserve, nor do the company’s cost estimates or reserves reflect any discounting for present value purposes, 
except with respect to four long-term (30 year) operations and maintenance ceRcla matters which are estimated at their present value of $9.9 million by 
applying a 5% discount rate to undiscounted obligations of $17.1 million. 

because of the uncertainties associated with environmental investigations and response activities, the possibility that the company could be identified as a 
PRP at sites identified in the future that require the incurrence of environmental response costs and the possibility that sites acquired in business combinations 
may require environmental response costs, actual costs to be incurred by the company may vary from the company’s estimates. 

the city of Sao Paulo’s Green and environmental office (the “Sao Paulo G&e office”) is seeking fines of up to approximately $4 million related to alleged 
improper storage of hazardous materials at the company’s tool manufacturing facility located in Sao Paulo, brazil. the company has obtained a stay of enforcement 
of a notice of fine due october 1, 2009 issued by the Sao Paulo G&e office. the company plans to continue to contest the fines. 

although management of the company cannot predict the ultimate outcome of these legal proceedings with certainty, it believes that the ultimate resolution 
of the company’s legal proceedings, including any amounts it may be required to pay in excess of amounts reserved, will not have a material effect on the company’s 
consolidated financial statements. 

in the normal course of business and as part of its acquisition and divestiture strategy, the company may provide certain representations and indemnifications 
related to legal, environmental, product liability, tax or other types of issues. based on the nature of these representations and indemnifications, it is not possible 
to predict the maximum potential payments under all of these agreements due to the conditional nature of the company’s obligations and the unique facts and 
circumstances involved in each particular agreement. Historically, payments made by the company under these agreements did not have a material effect on the 
company’s business, financial condition or results of operations. 

as of december 31, 2009, the company had $59.4 million in standby letters of credit primarily related to the company’s self-insurance programs, including 
workers’ compensation, product liability and medical. 
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common StocK PRice PeRFoRmance GRaPH
the following common stock price performance graph compares the yearly change in the company’s cumulative total stockholder returns on its common 
stock during the years 2005 through 2009, with the cumulative total return of the Standard & Poor’s 500 index and the dow Jones consumer Goods index, 
assuming the investment of $100 on december 31, 2004 and the reinvestment of dividends. 
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    2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

newell Rubbermaid inc. $100 $101.96 $128.09 $117.92 $46.69 $ 73.83
S&P 500 index $100 $104.91 $121.48 $128.16 $80.74 $102.11
dJ consumer Goods index $100 $102.04 $117.26 $128.62 $95.57 $118.37



newell Rubbermaid inc. 2009 annual Report

81

maRKet FoR common eQuity and Related StocKHoldeR matteRS
the company’s common stock is listed on the new york and chicago Stock exchanges (symbol: nWl). as of January 31, 2010, there were 15,383 stockholders 
of record. the following table sets forth the high and low sales prices of the common stock on the new york Stock exchange composite tape for the calendar 
periods indicated:

    2009 2008

Quarters High Low High low

First   $10.95 $ 4.51 $25.94 $21.24
Second  12.15 6.22  24.08 16.68
third   16.10 9.79 21.38 14.89
Fourth  15.73 13.66 17.59 9.13

 the company has paid regular cash dividends on its common stock since 1947. the company paid a quarterly cash dividend of $0.21 per share for the 
year ended december 31, 2008. For the year ended december 31, 2009, the company paid a quarterly cash dividend of $0.105 per share in the first quarter 
and $0.05 per share in each of the second, third and fourth quarters. the company currently expects to pay quarterly dividends of $0.05 per share during 
the year ending december 31, 2010; however, the payment of dividends to holders of the company’s common stock remains at the discretion of the board of 
directors and will depend upon many factors, including the company’s financial condition, earnings, legal requirements and other factors the board of directors 
deems relevant. 

Reconciliation oF non-GaaP Financial meaSuReS
operating income, excluding charges
      2007 2008 2009

operating income as reported   $ 740.3  $  200.8 $   574.9
add: Restructuring costs     86.0     120.3  100.0
add: impairment charges   —    299.4 —

operating income, excluding charges   $ 826.3  $  620.5 $   674.9
net sales   $6,407.3 $6,470.6 $5,577.6
operating margin   12.9% 9.6% 12.1%

“normalized” ePS
     2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

diluted earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations, as reported  $  1.48  $  1.70  $  1.72  $(0.18) $0.97 
Project acceleration restructuring costs  $  0.12 $  0.17 $  0.24 $  0.31  $0.26 
convertible notes dilution  — — — — $0.06 
costs associated with the retirement of notes  — — — $  0.13 $0.01 
tax benefits  $(0.27) $(0.36) $(0.15) $(0.10) —
non-cash impairment charges  — — — $  1.06  —
other items, net  $(0.08) — — — $0.01

“normalized” ePS  $  1.25 $  1.51  $  1.81  $  1.21  $1.31
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boaRd oF diRectoRS

Michael T. Cowhig 
chairman of the board — newell Rubbermaid inc. and
Former President, Global technical and manufacturing — 
the Procter & Gamble company 

Mark D. ketchum 
President and chief executive officer — newell Rubbermaid inc. 

Thomas E. Clarke 
President of new business Ventures — nike, inc.

Scott S. Cowen 
President and Seymour S Goodman memorial Professor  
of business — tulane university

Elizabeth Cuthbert-Millett 
Private investor

Domenico De Sole 
chairman — tom Ford international

william D. Marohn 
Former President and chief operating officer — Whirlpool corporation

Cynthia A. Montgomery 
timken Professor of business administration —  
Harvard university Graduate School of business

Michael B. Polk
President — unilever americas

Steven J. Strobel 
chief Financial officer — blueStar energy Services

Michael A. Todman 
President — Whirlpool international 

Raymond g. viault 
Former Vice chairman — General mills, inc.

executiVe oFFiceRS

Mark D. ketchum
President and chief executive officer

Hartley D. Blaha
President, corporate development

Paul g. Boitmann
President, Sales operations and Global Wal-mart 

william A. Burke
Group President, tools, Hardware & commercial Products

Juan R. Figuereo
executive Vice President and chief Financial officer 

Jay D. gould
Group President, Home & Family

g. Penny McIntyre
Group President, office Products

J. Eduardo Senf 
President, newell Rubbermaid international

gordon C. Steele
Senior Vice President, Program management office  
and chief information officer

John k. Stipancich
Senior Vice President, General counsel and corporate Secretary

James M. Sweet
executive Vice President, Human Resources  
and corporate communications

Theodore w. woehrle
Senior Vice President and chief marketing officer

FoRWaRd-looKinG StatementS

We discuss expectations regarding future performance, events and outcomes, such as our business outlook and objectives, in this annual report. all such 
statements are “forward-looking statements,” and are based on financial data and our business plans available as of the date of this annual report, which 
may become out-of-date or incomplete. We assume no obligation to update any forward-looking statements as a result of new information, future events  
or other factors. Forward-looking statements are inherently uncertain and investors must recognize that actual results could be significantly different from 
our expectations. Risks and uncertainties that could cause results to differ from expectations are detailed in item 1a in newell Rubbermaid’s annual 
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended december 31, 2009, and in our other filings with the Securities and exchange commission.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Newell Rubbermaid is traded on the New York Stock Exchange 

under the symbol NWL. Additional copies of this annual report, 

Newell Rubbermaid’s Form 10-K and proxy statement fi led with 

the Securities and Exchange Commission, dividend reinvestment 

plan information, recent and historical financial data, and other 

information about Newell Rubbermaid are available without 

charge to interested stockholders upon request. 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

All requests and inquiries should be directed to:

Newell Rubbermaid Inc.

Investor Relations

3 Glenlake Parkway

Atlanta, GA 30328

(800) 424-1941

investor.relations@newellco.com

www.newellrubbermaid.com

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
The annual meeting of stockholders will be held on 

Tuesday, May 11, 2010, at 9:00 a.m. ET at: 

Newell Rubbermaid Inc.

Corporate Headquarters

3 Glenlake Parkway

Atlanta, Georgia 30328

Phone: (770) 418-7000

STOCKHOLDER ACCOUNT MAINTENANCE
Communications concerning the transfer of shares, lost certifi cates, 

dividends, dividend reinvestment, duplicate mailings or change of 

address should be directed to the Transfer Agent and Registrar:

Computershare Investor Services

P.O. Box 43036 

Providence, RI  02940-3036

(877) 233-3006

www.computershare.com

This annual report should be read in conjunction with 

Newell Rubbermaid’s 2010 annual meeting proxy 

statement and the 2009 Form 10-K. Copies of the 

proxy statement and Form 10-K may be obtained 

online at www.newellrubbermaid.com.

BRAND WEB DIRECTORY
aceformen.com

amerock.com

aprica.com

bernzomatic.com

calphalon.com

cardscan.com

dymo.com

endicia.com

expomarkers.com

goody.com

gracobaby.com

irwin.com

kirsch.com

lenoxtools.com

levolor.com

liquidpaper.com

mimio.com

papermate.com

parkerpens.com

prismacolor.com

rcpworksmarter.com

rolodex.com

rubbermaid.com

sharpie.com

sharpieuncapped.com

shurline.com

solanopower.com

technicalconcepts.com

teutonia.com

uniball-na.com 

waterman.com
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3 Glenlake Parkway
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